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In 2023, the momentum of growth slowed and was uneven
worldwide against a backdrop of interest rate increases,
unprecedented monetary policy tightening to combat the
highest inflation in decades, and geopolitical conflict. The
difficulties of recent years continued to affect capital markets
in both mainland China and Hong Kong, which experienced a
succession of challenges that inevitably affected the Group's
business operations. In Hong Kong, the financial landscape
was subject to significant market volatility, with a notable
decline in stock prices, amid which the Hang Seng Index
recorded an unprecedented fourth consecutive year of decline.
Investors generally adopted a cautious approach, tilting their
portfolios to lower-risk investments, and sentiment among

them was fragile.
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Amid volatility on financial markets, the results of the Group's
principal financial services business were inevitably affected.
In overcoming these adverse conditions, we became better
equipped with expertise and experience to strengthen our
position in the market, while at the same time being in the
vanguard of change. Going into 2024, investors generally see
that the prolonged bearish market has hit bottom, and a
rebound is expected. An assessment report released by the
International Monetary Fund (the “IMF") has reaffirmed Hong
Kong's role as a major international financial hub, highlighting
its robust institutional frameworks, substantial capital and
liquidity buffers, high-quality finance sector regulation, and
well-functioning linked exchange rate system. The Hong Kong
government's unwavering efforts to bolster the territory's
economic and financial development will also strengthen the
impetus for economic growth and competitiveness. To drive
the expansion of our presence in equity markets, we will
continue to maintain close ties with our clients and explore
market opportunities — particularly in corporate financing — as
the market stabilises. We will also continue to hone our
industry-leading innovations, aiming to offer world-class smart,
professional, one-stop financial services to better serve
investors' needs and support them on their investment
journeys. We also intend to expand into private equity as we
seek to expedite the development of the Group’s asset

management business.

EEMMEHBHENER T AKENSE
BMRBEETEXRB I XERLRIFE AR

RELDFGHNRE  ZPEETEZE
EMBLER FUEBEDSMA - Rt
FRBELRE-BA_T_NF REEELERE
REERHARTCEBE THHEEHAR
B B e ESEM ([IMF]) BEROFMG
BEF-RBEEERERIEZEEERESHP L
BMAL WREBEERARBENGERE
RHUNERANMRBDECET BROSRIT
XEE BBEXGENGIREE - FBK
FREESHAMEESRER - THEHE
FRERERSHHIRZEFN - BRIERERMER
EMENEBAR  RASEERTPER
EEBE LERCEREIH  EmEE
RERRTHEE - BT BB <= M
RBRITEMAIFE D - NIRHEERARNE
B EXRUAEBRBEABEE  Eifit
MEREERE  RRFHORERERHAX
FreRMRERAKBEEEEXEBER
BATEREELSRERERSE -



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA 7

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT X JEiR&E=E

Acknowledging the importance of business diversification and
improved resilience amid market volatility, the Group has been
diligently pursuing investment opportunities in other business
segments, while endeavouring simultaneously to nurture its
current operations. This strategic approach aims to augment
the Group's business agility, broaden its revenue sources, and
invigorate its overall business prospects amid a challenging

economic environment.

I would like to take this opportunity to convey our genuine
appreciation and heartfelt gratitude to the management team
and all the Group's staff for their unwavering professional
dedication, diligent work, steadfast commitment and valuable
contributions throughout the Reporting Year. With substantial
efforts being made to drive growth in various parts of our
operations, our longstanding ties with clients, and a healthy
and balanced investment portfolio, the Group has built solid

foundations to advance its development into the future.

Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2024

Annual Report 2023 F#§

ARBRAMEM SR TEHZ T RIER
FUEMNERE At EENERAGED
MR RNREET-BEEEMEEOBFTS
HIRERE - IR TSt 5 EEBRAEEN
EBBERE AREWRERR - ARETW
KBONKERETAASENERBEBAS
EABT -

AAEENBgERNERERRAEELEE
THARLHE  BRARERBEFEAN
BRREXER HEILE BRRARESR
BR - BRESEBANESHERNEKRE
N-BEFPHNEHBE MERFENORKRE
e AEBCARKBEREEEZEMNEMR

FERHTEF

B

BB
—E-_WFE=A=-1+N\H



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA A
Annual Report 2023 F3§

MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEF &5

VC Group is an established financial services group committed

to delivering premier financial services and products that fulfill
various investment and wealth management needs of clients
in the Greater China region and extended into digital assets
industry as well. The Group's expertise includes (i) provision
of financial services comprising securities brokering and
dealing, financing services, corporate finance and other
advisory services, asset management and insurance brokerage;
(ii) proprietary trading; and (iii) sales and marketing of digital

assets.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

For the Reporting Year, the global economy slowed further
due to interrelated challenges, including elevated inflation,
monetary policy tightening by major central banks, and weak
global trade and investment. During the Reporting Year, the
US Federal Reserve raised interest rates by 25 basis points in
February, March, May and July 2023, causing a ripple effect
on financial markets. Data from the IMF indicated that global
growth decelerated from 3.59% in 2022 to 3.0% in 2023,
significantly below the average of 3.8% during 2000-2019.

While China achieved a 5.2% Gross domestic product (“GDP")
growth during the Reporting Year, the country's economy
continued to face persistent uncertainties and challenges. Both
the labour and property markets displayed weaknesses, with
property development investment declining by 9.6% year on
year. The Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock
Exchange retained their status as the world's two largest IPO
markets in 2023, while the China Securities Index 300 Index
("CSI 300 Index") registered an unprecedented third
consecutive year of declines, slumping 11.8% to a position as

one of the world’s worst-performing stock indices.

The Hong Kong stock market also experienced a slow year in
2023. The Hang Seng Index, one of the worst-performing
share indices in Asia-Pacific, recorded its fourth year of
declines, falling 14% during the Reporting Year. Companies
and investors alike exercised extra caution in the uncertain
market environment, and Hong Kong's IPO market
performance was sluggish, with only 73 initial public offerings
("IPOs") during the Reporting Year, down 19% on 2022, and
raising a total of just HK$46.3 billion, a drop of 56% from the

previous year.
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The prolonged stock market slump in Hong Kong triggered a
new wave of shutdowns and layoffs at local brokerages.
Around 30 local brokerages ceased operation during 2023.
Small and medium-sized local brokerages, whose revenue
comes mainly from trading commissions and margin business,

bore the brunt of the overall market slump.

The above situation in the local securities market had negative
impacts on the Group's operations. To mitigate risk, the Group
has been actively seeking diversified business development
opportunities and identifying new revenue growth drivers to

expand its portfolio.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Leveraging its financial prowess and extensive experience in
the financial services industry throughout the Reporting Year,
the Group continued to advance its traditional finance
operations and provide high-quality services to its clients. Amid
market volatility, in addition to maintaining the sound
operation of its core brokerage and financing businesses, the
Group also sought to achieve progress in its newly-acquired
asset management operations, also in its insurance brokerage
and digital asset businesses, and its unwavering business
diversification efforts began to bear fruit. The expansion of
these businesses contributed to a moderate rise in the
Group's revenue as it also focused on cost control. However,
due to a one-off share-based payment expense, devaluation in
proprietary holding value and higher impairment losses on
accounts receivable, the Group recorded a bigger loss during

the Reporting Year than it did during the previous year.
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The Group's principal revenue streams were derived from its
traditional brokerage and financing operations, collectively
contributing approximately 79% of its total revenue. During
the Reporting Year, the Group maintained its provision of
various financial services, including local and overseas
securities trading, derivatives and trading in other structured
products, placements, underwriting, and margin financing
through VC Brokerage Limited (“VC Brokerage"). Additionally,
the Group offered financing services through VC Finance
Limited (“VC Finance"). The Group also took on the role of
placing agent and underwriter for fundraising activities of Hong
Kong-listed companies. It provided a range of financial and
strategic advisory support services to clients, including offering
corporate finance and other advisory services such as mergers
and acquisitions advisory through VC Capital Limited ("VC
Capital”) and company secretarial services through VC
Corporate Services Limited (“VCCS"). Due to market volatility
and reflecting the financial market downturn, the Group's
brokerage commissions, underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing commissions declined notably,
alongside corporate finance and other advisory services,

resulting in a reduction in segment revenue.

During the Reporting Year, following the completed acquisition
of VC International Asset Management Limited (“VCIAM";
formerly known as “Anli Asset Management Limited”) and Anli
Investment Fund SPC (“AIF") in April, the Group observed an
encouraging expansion in its asset management operations
that began to generate revenue. The Group also continued to
spearhead the expansion of its insurance brokerage services
through Experts Management Limited, which possesses an
insurance brokerage license and is authorised to participate in
the long-term insurance market. Capturing the opportunities
arising from the reopening of the Hong Kong and mainland
China borders, the Group's senior management team
proactively reached out and attracted more clientele from
mainland China, and the Group’s insurance brokerage

segment began to generate revenue.
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With regards to its proprietary trading business, the Group held
financial assets for trading, comprising equity securities listed
in Hong Kong, worth approximately HK$155.1 million as of 31
December 2023, a 48% decrease in market value from the
previous year against the backdrop of a poor performing
equity market and bearish investor sentiment. During the
Reporting Year, the Group held stocks mainly in industrials,
which tumbled on weak corporate earnings. The Group
generally invested in high-beta stocks whose volatility level
was above that of the broader market, so the business

segment faced fluctuations during the Reporting Year.

The Group's focus on diversification was in evidence, as was
its proactive approach to adapting to ever-changing market
dynamics and exploring emerging opportunities. By expanding
sales and marketing efforts in digital assets segment, the
Group sought to leverage the potential of the growing market
and capitalise on increasing demand. Thanks to improved
sales, the sales and marketing of digital assets business

enjoyed a revenue increase during the Reporting Year.
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Establishment of a joint venture securities company
in Guangx

In July 2016, the Company announced that VC Brokerage, an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement (the “Joint Venture
Agreement”) with three independent third parties to establish
a joint venture securities company in Guangxi, the PRC (the
“PRC JV Company”). Subject to the approval by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC"), the PRC JV
Company is expected to be a full-licensed securities company
permitted to provide securities brokerage, trading and
investment advisory, underwriting, sponsorship and asset
management services in the PRC. Pursuant to the Joint
Venture Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445
million (equivalent to approximately HK$488 million),

representing 44.5% shareholding in the PRC JV Company.

Details of the transaction please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 24 July 2016, 20 September 2016, 26
October 2016, 18 November 2016, 17 January 2017, 29
March 2017, 28 June 2017, 20 September 2017, 12 October
2017, 12 January 2018, 27 March 2018, 27 June 2018, 20
July 2018, 28 August 2018, 6 September 2018, 28
November 2018 and 21 February 2019; and the Company's
circulars dated 26 September 2016, 27 February 2017, 22
September 2017, 23 February 2018, 3 August 2018 and 31
January 2019.
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An application was made to the CSRC in October 2023 to
retrieve the application for establishment of the PRC JV
Company (the “Retrieval Application”). With the name of the
PRC JV Company having disappeared from the relevant public
domain of the PRC since December 2023, the Retrieval
Application is considered to have been approved. VC
Brokerage does not have to pay any money for, and does not
have to bear any liability with respect to, the Retrieval

Application.

Acquisition of VCIAM and AIF
On 25 November 2022, VC Financial Group Limited (the

“Purchaser”), being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Anli Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) entered
into the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the entire
portfolio of 7,775,000 issued ordinary shares in VCIAM and
the entire portfolio of 100 Management Shares in AlF as at
the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement at the
consideration of HK$15,000,000 by issuing consideration
shares of the Company to the Vendor. In addition, subject to
the fulfilment of the conditions of the earnout (the “Earnout”)
to be determined by a formula set out in the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, the Vendor shall be entitled to the
Earnout of not more than HK$25,000,000 by issuing further
shares by the Company to the Vendor. The transaction was

completed on 3 April 2023.

Further details of the transaction are disclosed in the
Company's announcements dated 25 November 2022, 16
December 2022, 13 February 2023, 2 March 2023 and 3
April 2023 and the Company's circular dated 14 February
2023.
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Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 14 March 2023, the Company successfully completed the
placing of 300,000,000 new shares of the Company at issue
price of HK$0.12 per share through VC Brokerage as the
placing agent (the “Placing”). The 300,000,000 placing shares
represent (i) approximately 14.43% of the aggregated number
of the Company's issued shares immediately before the
completion; and (ii) approximately 12.61% of the aggregated
number of the Company's issued shares as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the 300,000,000 placing shares. The
gross proceeds of the Placing amounted to HK$36.0 million.
Further details of the Placing are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 21 February 2023 and 14 March
2023.

The net proceeds from the Placing were used as follows:

Intended
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Actual use of Expected
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up to balance of utilising the
unutilised  unutilised

use of 31 December

Period under review Purpose of usage net proceeds

2023 net proceeds  net proceeds

BE-%-=F
RB®E t=A=t+-H AfERe  RARBRE
FEEE ZMBNERE EME BREZEH
=1 /& 59 5 Rz EREE EREASE BREH G£AREX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TET
Since completion of Placing on  General working capital 20,200 20,200 - N/A
14 March 2023
B-T-=F —REEES TEHR
=AtmA
THEEFEL
Potential investment 15,000 15,000 - N/A
opportunities
BERE#SE NER

35,200

35,200 =
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Details of the Group’s business performance of each operating
segment for the year ended 31 December 2023, together
with the comparative figures of the corresponding period in
2022, are given in the section "FINANCIAL REVIEW" below.

Placing of Convertible Bonds under General Mandate
(the “Placing”) — lapsed

On 25 September 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with VC Brokerage (the
“Placing Agent"), pursuant to which the Company proposed to
offer for subscription, and the Placing Agent agreed to procure
subscriptions for the convertible bonds of the Company (the
“Convertible Bonds”) on a best effort basis on the terms and
subject to the conditions set out in the Placing Agreement.
The Placing Agent shall procure not less than six (6) placees
to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$81.6 million during the placing
period. In the case of the conversion rights having been
exercised in full at the initial conversion price of HK$0.17
(subject to adjustment), a maximum of 480 million
conversion shares to be allotted and issued by the Company,
representing (i) approximately 19.43% of the existing total
number of the Company’s issued Shares as at the Company's
announcement dated 25 September 2023; and (ii)
approximately 16.27% of the total number of the Company's
issued Shares as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the

480 million conversion shares.

Pursuant to the Company's announcement dated 19 January
2024, since the conditions precedent as set out in the Placing
Agreement were not fully satisfied or fulfilled, the Placing

Agreement lapsed and the Placing will not proceed.

BERASESKEDHMNRBE_T_=F
T-A=T - BLEEREZEBRREFRN_-F
“_FRPZERET  WHELE T2
R & -

BE-—RERERETRRES ((RES
H]) —B&X
RZE_=ZFAA-+HHB  ARAEER
FH(REREBDITLREHZ ([BREH
D) B ARAEERELEERE
i i & K32 B B AR R AL & 17 P &l 2 1R R
FEEMES G ZRBRT - IRIBEMAEEER
BARBIARRES ([ATRREHF]) 2R
BoMERBARESHARKTIRAE
A ARBAR R AR 781,600,000/ 7T
ZABMKRES BRERRERV S RRKRE
01787t (AT FRE) BEITHE - NAFHE
B I % 17 &% %480,000,000/% 32 B& B 17 - 48
ER(ORARARBBHA-ZZT=_=FN1A
“+REAZAMBERBEBRITRAAFRKRG
BB H19.430% 5 R(ii)£ B % & %17
480,000,000 % 32 iz fi% 17 M #8 K 2 B BT A
NEIRGD HBBHI16.27% ©

BEAARABNA-E-—NFE—A+hAZ
D R ELE BB R RS
EEMSAR  RERADESEY  TRE
FEEFGET -
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Disposal of VC Financial Investment Holdings
Limited

On 8 December 2023, the Group completed disposed of the
entire issued share capital of VC Financial Investment Holdings
Limited which in turn wholly owned VC Asset Management
Limited at cash consideration of HK$6.4 million. Gain on
disposal of approximately HK$2.4 million was recorded

accordingly.

OUTLOOK

The IMF has forecast that global growth will reach 3.1% in
2024. The anticipated global economic outlook for the year is
multifaceted, with various factors influencing the path of
expansion. Notably, global growth has shown resilience
despite remaining subdued. Additionally, global headline
inflation is expected to fall gradually from an estimated 6.8%
annual average in 2023 to 5.8% in 2024, contributing to a

further easing of financial conditions.

China’s economic activity in 2024 is expected to be impacted
by structural headwinds and challenges such as increasing
debt levels, an aging and shrinking workforce, insufficient
domestic demand, a prolonged property market downturn,
and mounting geopolitical tensions. On a positive note, the
Chinese government implemented a wide range of measures
to encourage institutional and individual stock purchases in
early 2024, in the hope of strengthening investor confidence
and boosting the stock market. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") expects 200-240 A-share IPOs throughout the year,
with expected fundraising ranging from RMB160-190 billion.

HEERSHMBREZRERAF

RIZZBZ=F+ZANB XEETKINE
% R 186,400,000 THEER S RIREZ
BRERAG (A2EREEREEEREAR
RA)ZEHBEBITRA - FUESEEK
# #92,400,0007 7T °

RE

BIBIMFER - — T - ME2HRKHE R X
BIEFZ1% - SFERREENTBEHRNSE
B8 TRAERROTELEER -BER
KERGEAZH BERHBERRIM - It
Hh - RIRERABAREBEAEA-T_=FH
FTEEFH6.8%  BF THRE T _NFH
5.8% ' A —FHESBRIKHEERE T -

—E_MF - BEPELERH IR
BURNERZINBESEBKE B8 HE
RIERZERE AFTTE  FHEMSREAK
KU RMEBOEBERBDE MBI FhE
ZopE FRBMNR T _MNFMNHDT
—RINZERBERRPRERENEKE - #
BB RIEE EEOFMRIRR™ - BERUKE
S EBHA ((EEFKED EA - SF8
E200FE240fEARRIPOLETT - BRI E BN
T ARM1,60018£1,90018 7T 2 A °
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Predicting that the Hong Kong IPO market will gradually
stabilise in 2024, PwC expects 80 companies to list in the
territory, with total funds raised expected to exceed HK$100
billion. Meanwhile, the Hong Kong government's commitment
to boosting financial markets through expanding the Stock
Connect scheme and deepening co-operation with Middle
Eastern and ASEAN countries is expected to strengthen the
investor base in Hong Kong and enhance liquidity and
valuations. The city's capital markets are expected to stabilise
amid a retreat of bearish sentiment and substantial demand

for corporate financing.

In the financial services sector, the Group will continue to
maintain its position as a comprehensive service provider. To
further strengthen its market position, it plans to adopt
strategic initiatives and allocate additional resources to the
development of its asset management business, which is
expected to achieve attractive returns for the Group in the
near future. The Group recognises the value of leveraging the
established reputations and management expertise of VCIAM
and AIF, which can help it attract a broader range of clients
and offer them a comprehensive suite of asset management
services. To expedite the growth of its asset management
business, the Group also intends to expand into private equity
in 2024. In adopting business diversification and risk
mitigation strategies, the Group will make every effort to
accelerate the growth of its insurance brokerage and sales and

marketing of digital assets businesses.

BERKERA  FEAPOMBER =T
—WHEHBRE - Ei S E80R A REERE
- REREEEHIB,0008 8T o A
R BEFBRBRDBBEXNBRET
o ARRCEARRRABRK 2 A ERRE
EERMISEE  HAARSREFINRES
MIREEER RedeRpERMEE - &
RMARSHERCEREZTRKRINE R
T ABEAMSALOIE -

EeRREIE NEESEEETEER
RERBHERNBL - RE-—FEBRED
SHAL - NG BT ISR S ME IR B A R R
BEEEXY BHHEBERHBRTASRKA
REAKETRABLOR ARERE EF
EREREEEENMAFMRIFBE R B
ERGEHHATR LTARFREZERN
BEEERY RIREETEEBHNER
S AEETRR S _MFEELER
BESRDY - BERAXHZ T MERE
R AREKE N MNRERRELEREBE
BEHEMEERBHERSK -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's

consolidated revenue was approximately HK$76.1 million,
which increased by about 4% as compared with the same
period in 2022 of approximately HK$73.3 million. The Group
recorded a consolidated loss attributable to shareholders
amounted to approximately HK$287.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 compared to approximately
HK$178.1 million for the same period in 2022.

The loss in the Group's consolidated result attributable to
shareholders in 2023 compared to 2022 was mainly
attributable to (i) increase in impairment loss on accounts
receivable of approximately HK$127.4 million; (ii) increase in
share-based payment expense of approximately HK$11.1
million; but (iii) partially offset by the decrease of the net
realised and unrealised loss on financial assets held-for-trading

of approximately HK$45.0 million.

To facilitate the review, the Group's revenue and segment
information shown in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated
financial statements is reproduced below after some

rearrangements:

2 EI-

HE-_Z_=F+-_A=+—HILEFE &
SE iAW ELAT76,100,0008 T - W=
T = ZF[FEF#I73,300,0008 T 1E K 494% °
REFRBEE_E-_=%+_-_A=+—H1t
F 2 8515 IR B 15 45 & B 18 £9287,800,000
BIL M —ZF = _F[R B RI%178,100,000

BT o

MU —ZT_—F AEER_ZT_=F2RK
RELGEEEEBRBER  TEZRAR ()
J& U2 BR R 2 R 1B JES 18 1 N 49127,400,0007%
T (DA, A ERA I E MY
11,100,000 ¢ M(INHIFIEEERE 2
BB IR ORI B 18 F §R 4 4945,000,000
BITATEE D8 o

BEREE  EHERaVBHRRMFIRAA
RZAEBRFEL D BER BRI EEH
m
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Revenue Analysis Wz 2 A
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-—F
Proportion
of total Proportion of
revenue total revenue
R4 & h B E
k6l t 4
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TERT TET
Revenue from: TEUTEK 2 Uz
Brokerage and Financing BEREE 59,674 79% 63,968 87%
Brokerage commission and RiemeREAMm
other related fees HEER 4,414 6% 6,792 9%
Underwriting, sub-underwriting, 8% 8% B &
placing and sub-placing EoRERE
commission 1,459 2% 4,256 6%
Interest income from brokerage KERREBEFZ
clients MEHA 19,507 26% 14,051 19%
Interest income from money REMEXBEFPZ
lending clients FEYA 34,294 45% 38,869 530%
Corporate Finance and Other ERE & fh B
Advisory Services AR 7% 4813 6% 7,001 10%
Asset Management AEER 2,165 3% - -
Insurance Brokerage IR a2 6,663 8% - -
Proprietary Trading BEEE - - 250 -
Sales and Marketing of Digital ~ EIEAEHE KR
Assets 2,823 4% 2,062 3%
Total revenue YE 76,138 100% 73,281 100%

19

Increase
(decrease)
2 m

CRi )

%

(7%)

(35%)

(66%)
39%
(12%)
(319%)
100%
100%
(100%)

37%

49
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Segment Analysis 2ED
2023 2022
—E-= -z
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Segment results: DEPRE
Brokerage and Financing R k@& (110,531) 22,948
Corporate Finance and Other Advisory 1Rl & K H A R AR %5
Services (5,788) (3,175)
Asset Management BEEER (630) (1,710)
Insurance Brokerage RBR &40 (274) (502)
Proprietary Trading BEEEE (132,370) (173,725)
Sales and Marketing of Digital Assets BIEEEHEREE (2,815) (8,198)
Group segment loss SEHHEE (252,408) (164,362)
Gain on acquisition of financial assets Weig R N TE S IR R FE
at fair value through profit or loss BaEREEZ
MBEE WS - 9,040
Fair value change on financial asset BAFEIERRE
at fair value through profit or loss BaBREE s MBEEY
NEEEY (5,400) 500
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR s 2,437 -
Unallocated administrative costs ROBLITEAAR (38,287) (23,440)
Share of profit of an associate DGR E R R) 2 5 61 96
Loss before taxation B 5 B ES 18 (293,597) (178,166)
Income tax credit s R 5,399 74
Loss for the year FEEBE (288,198) (178,092)
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Brokerage and Financing

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company,
through VC Brokerage, provides securities brokering and
dealing, margin financing, and placing and underwriting
services. It also through another indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, VC Finance, provides money lending services. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, the brokerage and
financing businesses recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$59.7 million as compared with approximately HK$64.0
million for the same period last year, representing a decrease
of about 7%, and accounted for about 79% of the Group's

total revenue.

Brokerage service

The Group's brokerage commission and other related fees
from dealing in securities for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to approximately HK$4.4 million, which was
about 35% lower than that of 2022 of approximately HK$6.8
million, and accounted for about 6% of the Group's total
revenue. The Group’s brokerage transactions recorded
decrease with average daily trading turnover decreasing from
approximately HK$10.3 million in 2022 to that of 2023 of
approximately HK$5.9 million, being a decrease of about
439%.

Financing

Meanwhile, the Group's total interest income from financing
for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased by about
2% to approximately HK$53.8 million from approximately
HK$52.9 million for the same period last year, and accounted
for about 719% of the Group's total revenue. The revenue
included the interest income derived from both the brokerage

business and the money lending business.

RERBEEK
BE_E_=F+_-_A=+—HLEFEE &K
/\_J L/Em;m%%i{\nn%i(«iﬂﬁgg}%&

B RESCBHERY UAREERBHR
% o $’Aﬂmu@ﬁﬁ—ﬁaﬂﬁaﬂ%§%éﬁw%@
AERMBRENERS BE_T-_=F
TZA=+T—HILEFE  KLRBEXEBH
15 #959,700,000/%8 7T 2 48 Wz - =5 A B8
#9 /564,000,0007% 7T - &L 18 40 A7% - it

Y 25 11 7 5= B 48 M 25 497 9% ©

AE AR

AEERBE_Z_=F+_RA=+—H1t
FECEEZFF 2K RASRAREMIERE
W& #) /4,400,000 70  RZTEZZF 4
6,800,000 JTJ& 2> #935% -+ I {h 7N & [F 42
W #h6% AREB KL XFHEMAD
SHFEHKREHR T = =F4910,300,000
P TR D #143%% = T = = 4 495,900,000
BIT ©

AE

—FE BET-_=F+-A=+—H
Lt¢§* CAEECZREERBNEMALTEH
2 4 [A) #1 4952,900,00058 7T - F #1200 F 49
53,800,000/ 7T + 1 bk 45 %5 15 A 5% B 48 W &
W71% - B ELLEBRNEELE
HEZFBIA o
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Financing service: Brokerage clients

Among the above, the Group's interest income from our
brokerage clients recorded approximately HK$19.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, representing an increase
of about 39% as compared to approximately HK$14.1 million
for the same period last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of average loan portfolio of our
brokerage clients by about 23% for the year ended 31
December 2023 as compared with the same period last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was an
additional impairment loss of approximately HK$43.4 million
on brokerage client receivables (2022: HK$1.1 million) in
accordance with the Group's credit control policies and
procedures and requirements of relevant accounting standard.
The average interest rate for brokerage clients is approximately
12%. Almost all brokerage client receivables are pledged with

securities held by the clients.

Financing service: Money lending clients

The Group also provides money lending services to our
clients. This aims at broadening our revenue base and also
offering our clients with more financial flexibility to meet their
personal and business needs. The Group's interest income
generated from the money lending services was approximately
HK$34.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
representing a decrease of about 12% as compared to
approximately HK$38.9 million for the same period last year.
The decrease was mainly attributable to decrease of average
loan portfolio of the money lending business by 31% in 2023

as compared with the same period last year.

BERE - A EEES
FRFMBBRAES  AEERBE_T_=
FHZA=T—HILEFERERELLES
B Z B U A 419,500,000 T+ EF
& B 4914,100,0007% JT 14 N £9399% ° Y A 3%
MEEDHRAEERBE_Z-_=F1+=
A=+ BUEFERNELEBEFPRHZT
HERHBEE BEFR AL IE INZ23% © &
EE_=FFTA=+—HLEFE KR
REEBZ EEEEBERREFARIE@EE
HARE - BRELEBE P RIASRGEI
BB 5 1B 443,400,000 T (ZE = =
1,100,000 7T) ° M 4L E B % P WEZ T
HFRLB12% - BRIFD R LCEBE
FREHEEFHER 2 ERmIEER -

FBERE  MEXBEES
REETMEFIRERERS - LEEEX
AEBZHEER RASATEFPRHERH
BEUEUNRGEBAAREBZE - AKER
HEZZ-_=F+-_A=+—HLFERH
FUIE PR 75 P 2 A 2 T B M A K9 534,300,000
BT B K F R H14938,900,0007%8 TR 4 49
120 < WA BMARPDFERANR T =
FHREEKZFHEREAEREFRBRD
310 °
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Additional information on money lending business

(1) Business model

The Group’s money lending business is managed through
our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC Finance, with
money lenders license issued under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group's customers principally include high net worth
individuals, private companies or listed companies
introduced to the directors of the Company through
business/personal networks or are referred to the Group
by its existing or former customers. There is no specific
target loan size but each application would be dealt on
its own merit. The Group finances this money lending
business mainly by internal resources. The following

internal control procedures are put in place:

Assessment and approval

Prior to granting of a loan, the Group carries out credit
risk assessment on the customer, taking into account,
inter alias, background of the customer or the customer’s
shareholders (as the case maybe), purpose of the loan,
source of repayment, value of collateral and guarantee(s),
if any, and the financial strength of the customer/

shareholders/guarantors.

The approval process for granting loans include the
completion of account opening form (for new customer)
and know-your-customer assessment. The finance
department would verify the information obtained
(including identity, business background information and
collateral information), check against supporting
documents (including identity documents, address proof,
securities statements, documents by conducting public
searches and financial statements (for corporate
borrowers)) and initiate credit assessment form for
further processing. The board of directors of VC Finance
would be responsible for approving the grant of the
loans. The legal and compliance department would

prepare the loan documentation for signing.

BRINELEZ BN BN

M
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Monitoring and recovery

If a customer does not repay the loan principal or
accrued interest in accordance with the loan agreement,
the finance department would promptly report to the
credit committee of VC Finance including all directors of
VC Finance. The credit committee members of VC
Finance meet once a month to review the status of all
customers, discuss necessary actions required and serves
as an input for loan classification in calculating
impairment loss on loan receivables for financial reporting

purpose.

The actions taken for recovering delinquent loans would
include examination and evaluation of the relevant loan
status, discussion with the customer and internal
discussion about formulating possible action plan.
Recovery strategy involve a wide range of actions
including revision of repayment terms, addition of
collaterals/guarantee, execution of settlement agreement,
foreclosure of collaterals/enforcement of guarantees and
commencement of legal proceedings. The Group strives
to strike a successful balance in its business operations
and risk management by adhering to its credit policies in
order to control the quality of its loan portfolio. The
Group has also appointed an independent internal control
advisor to conduct independent review on adequacy and
effective of internal control systems of the Group's

money lending business.
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(I) Major terms of the loans granted

Summary wZ
2023
—E_=H
Number of active loan accounts ERENEFHA 25
Average loan amount THEXE HK$13.5 million
13,500,000 T
Percentage of amount of total loans and RERARPZEREERK
interest receivables from the largest customer Flsmmbe2BREERR
MEZBRBZED 10%
Percentage of amount of total loans and RERAAKFP ZERERR
interest receivables from the largest FEEBEE2BRRERR
5 customers MEz@EzAAL 39%
Average duration TR 8.5 months
8.5f8 A
Interest rate range (per annum) FIREGE (FFIX) 8% to 18%
8%Z 18%
Secured Loans BRFEZ
2023
—E-=H
Percentage of loans secured by collaterals ERMEAD (BELTR
including listed and unlisted equity securities FETREEFRMELTE
and legal charge on properties tEERY I | yﬂ((ﬁﬁﬁ% %)
(“Secured Loans”) HERBE LR 35%
Average duration THER 9.2 months
9.2f8 A
Interest rate range (per annum) FIREE (FFIX) 12% to 18%
12%Z18%

() EFRfE 2 EEZER

2022
—— —

—_

24
HK$12.6 million

12,600,000/% 7T

9%

40%

8.0 months
8.01E A
8% to 18%
8%Z% 18%

2022

—Eo—-F

66%

9.2 months
9.21& A
12% to 18%
12%%18%
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(I

Unsecured Loans
Percentage of loans with no collateral W KR o 2 B K
("Unsecured Loans") ([mERE])
HERREZADL
Average duration 15 BAPR
Interest rate range =&

When determining the terms of unsecured loans, the
Group paid further attention on business background,
financial position, repayment ability and reputation
(including but not limited to their disclosed shareholdings
and directorship in various listed companies) of
respective borrowers and the Group's potential business
opportunities with them. The Group will take appropriate
legal actions against the unsecured borrowers with an
aim of recovery from their other assets in the event of

prolonged defaults.

Impairment recognition as at year end

The Group applies the general approach, which is often
referred to as “three-stage model”, under HKFRS 9, in
which Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") of loan receivables
are determined based on (a) the changes in credit
quality of the loan receivables since initial recognition,
and (b) the estimated expectation of an economic loss of

the loan receivables under consideration.

B IFE A

2023 2022

—E—== —E-—
65% 34%
7.8 months 6.9 months
7.818 A 6.91E A
8% to 18% 8% to 18%
8%Z18% 8%Z18%
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BRENREE(BRETRRERA
REBLM AR ZRERE) UEAS
BEXERAEEETEZEEEE -
HEERBBRZEN  AEEKYHE
ERERARBORETE - AFEIEE
RAE M E B U B 5R0R
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AEBERBEEEREERFEIRK
A—EFRHE EBEBRI=ZKER
BBt BREFZBHEES
BEBEEERD HREQEKE
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Under the general approach, there are two measurement
bases for allowance of ECL: (a) 12-month ECL, which are
the ECL that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date and are
calculated as the allowance for ECL on loan receivables
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over
the 12 months after the reporting date; (b) lifetime ECL,
which are the ECL that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of loan receivables and are
calculated as the allowance for ECL on loan receivables
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over

the entire life of the loan receivables.

The allowance for ECL on loan receivables are derived
from gross credit exposure, recovery rate and probability
of default. The Group uses the following ECL formula to

calculate the allowance for ECL on its loan receivables:

Allowance for ECL = gross credit exposure x adjusted

probability of default x (1 — recovery rate)

For ECL assessment, the Group’s loan receivables are

classified as follows:

(i) Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that
have not had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at
the reporting date. For these loan receivables,

12-month ECL are recognised.

(i) Stage 2 (Doubtful) includes loan receivables that
have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at
the reporting date) but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables,

lifetime ECL are recognised.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsT:s/i &9

BEFHRME EHREEEEERAM
Bt 2R : () 12@AEHEERE -
s REBEI2EAATEEEZ
BRNEHMEBRCEREEES  HiR
BREBHENREANREZZOBX
Mgz BEER BREEERERT
B ORAFEDEHEEBE A
REKERERSGTAMBEAIREREEY
ENEHMBRERAEEEE  BiR
BRESREAFERANRBZEHOBREX
Mgz BRERZ BBREEEEEHT
o

U ER 2 BREEBERERDIREE
ERBRARE  WREREOBRRGEL -
AEBFEAUATEREESEQIARE
BERUERZAREEBEERS

FEHEEBIEERE = ZERREENK
FREBOBER x (1 - W XR)

7%%%&%&5%%%%%5 CAREZEEE
/_\*EQDT

() F—EERH) BEENIER
AREE R EBELN - IR
BEAZEERRRBEZEREE
Ko ERKERME - EIHER
12@AFEMEEEE -

(i) F_EERURER) BERENTER
VAPRAE B B & R EE 4L hn (BR SER
BERBZEERRKEER)  EXLE
EBEREEBRCRKRER -z T
RKRERNE - BRERAREFTEY
EHEEEE-
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(i) Stage 3 (Default) includes loan receivables that have
objective evidence of impairment and are

considered as credit-impaired financial assets at the

(i) F=ER (EHN &

BAERERE

EEANBESERER—HEER
EMBEEZRRER - FR

reporting date. For these loan receivables, lifetime WERME @ FEIRAERBEGFESRE
ECL are recognised. HEEERE -
Details of impairment recognition is as below: WEBRZHBOAT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-ZEZ= R-ZZT=—=
+=A +=H
=t+—H =+—8~
HK$'million HK$'million
BERT BEBTT
Stage 1 F—EE 0.1 0.5
Stage 2 FE_MEER 93.1 21.7
Stage 3 F=FEER 78.5 56.1
Total e 171.7 78.3

To ensure the adequacy of allowance for ECL on loan
receivables, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuer to conduct a valuation on the
allowance for ECL on loan receivables recognised for

each reporting period.

REREBRUERZBHREERIEER
FRAEERBEBEUEXMAEMES

B & MR R ERZ A

EBRERETHE-

==

1S
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(IV) Additional impairment loss for the year ended

31 December 2023

v 8=

FERBINRERE

29

—F-=F+-A=+—ALt

= i

No. of loans Amount
EXR®E -]
HK$'million
BEET
Fully repaid during the year (1 loan) FRABHREER(—FEN) N/A
T iE A 0.1)

Existing Stage 2 loans REF_EBREX
— With ECL impairment - RISTEHBEEERREAE 13 75.9
— With ECL reversal -BEREHEEEERE 2 (0.5)
— No movement — I f% 2 &) 1 -
Existing Stage 3 loans REFE=FRERK
— With ECL impairment - RISTEHEEERRE 2 18.0
— No movement — I 5 -
Newly granted Stage 1 loan TR E-BERER
— With ECL impairment - BEEHEEEERE 2 0.1
Total # st 25 93.4
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Analysis of significant impairment on certain customers forthe &HZE—ZFT-_=F+_-_A=+—HLtFEEH
year ended 31 December 2023 are presented below: ETERPZERBREZANML2HMT :

Detailed reasons for
Impairment amount  additional impairment

HEEZHE BHAREIFARE

HK$'million
BEBTT
Existing Stage 2 loans
REF_BBRER
Customer A 20.6  No repayment despite repeated demands
EPA ZRERTIHRER
Customer B 16.2  No repayment despite repeated demands
EFB ZRERKTIHRER
Customer C 11.6  Minimal repayment despite repeated demands
®PC ZRERTEEREERK
Customer D 6.9  Reduction in value of securities as collaterals
®FPD BHmzBEREEBETK
Customer E 4.7  No repayment despite repeated demands
B PE ZRERTIHRER
Customer F 4.5  Reduction in value of securities as collaterals
BPF KiFmz BEREETK
Customer G 2.6 No repayment despite repeated demands
®PG ZRERTHRERK
6 other customers 8.8
HihRE2% P
75.9
Existing Stage 3 loan
REE=FRBRER
Customer H 10.4  Reduction in value of securities as collaterals and not
responsive
% PH KR moBHREBETS®K  EXEDE
Customer | 7.6 Reduction in value of securities as collaterals and not
responsive
Z P KR moBREETSK  EXEDE

18.0
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In summary, aggregate ECL impairment was approximately
HK$94.0 million (2022: HK$30.0 million) while aggregate ECL
reversal was approximately HK$0.6 million (2022: HK$22.2
million), resulting in net ECL impairment of approximately
HK$93.4 million (2022: HK$7.8 million) during the year.

Loan by categories and their collaterals details were as below:

A EXFl - FABREEBRRE S
%4 /94,000,000 L (ZTE == F :
30,000,000/ 7T) - MEHEEEERED 2
MEH HB600,0008 L (=T ==
22,200,000/ 7T) " B HEBREEEE
A2 F R4 593,400,000 T (ZE = =
& : 7,800,000 L) °

REUNEEARRFRIADZERET

Receivables Interest
Number gross rate range
Category of of carrying per
borrowers Loan products loans amount annum  Collateral details
FE e BR T
BRARR EXREm ENEE BEH FREEE EHARFS
HK$'million
BEBTT
Corporate Term loan 3 56.8 15.6%-18%  Shares of certain listed
companies
ot 3 EHIE R AT EHRRES
Term loan 6 87.0 8%-18%  Nil
EEE R i
9 143.8
Individual Term loan 1 17.8 18%  Landed properties in
Hong Kong
EA EHER BEEME
Term loan 4 44.6 12%-18%  Shares of certain listed
companies
EHE R T EFMARES
Term loan 11 131.5 12%-18%  Nil
EHER e
16 193.9
25 337.7
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Loan by borrowers’ background or industry profile details were

as below:

BERAZESIAETEIDZERNAT

Receivables
Number of gross carrying

loans amount

FE W BR TH

ENHE HWEE

HK$'million

BEBTT

Private investors FLAREE 13 127.3
Substantial shareholder or director of AR EFERRKES

listed companies 5 90.3

Financial services provider TRRBREMAE 3 73.1

Energy EERES 2 21.4

Manufacturing BlEE 1 18.9

Subsidiary of listed company mAarlzZHME AR 1 6.7

25 337.7

The Group rely on its own credit assessment more particularly
described in this section above in conducting the money

lending business and hence does not obtain external credit

rating on the borrowers.

Maturity profile of the loans were as below:

Matured
To be matured in 6 months

£ 25
7 ME A R B HR

AEBEZMEXEBKBANG EXE REHR
ZEEBH ZERFG - LRI ERER
ABUEBINEBIEEREAR -

at

ERZBBWARRET

Receivables
gross carrying No. of
amount rollover times

FE W EBRE
e REIRE

HK$'million

ER-:

326.4 0-7
11.3

337.7
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For those matured loans, the Company held negotiations with
the borrowers in serious manner with an aim to agree
settlement plans or obtain further collaterals to protect the
Company's position. For those borrowers from whom
satisfactory responses are unable to obtain, the Company shall

take formal legal actions to recover the loans.

The Company has complied with requirements set out in
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules when it granted or renewed
loans to each of the borrowers. Renewal agreements were
entered into with the borrowers in all renewal cases. To the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief based
on internal records, the Company does not have any
agreement, arrangement, understanding or undertaking
(whether formal or informal and whether express or implied)
with a connected person with respect to the grant of loans to
the borrowers whose loans were still outstanding as at 31
December 2023.

The credit risk assessment of the unsecured loans was
performed by the Company using an internal process with
holistic consideration on background, financial resources,
source of repayment and repayment history of the relevant
borrowers and purpose of the loans. The Company's directors
consider the terms of each of the unsecured loans are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders.

The Group has put efforts on implementing our credit control
policies and procedures to review our clients’ creditworthiness
and credit limits from time to time so as to minimise our
credit risk exposure. The Group's credit control policies and
procedures are principally based on the doubtful unsecured
exposure having assessed the fair value of the clients’
collaterals held, the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of the client accounts. The Group will take all
necessary legal actions against the relevant clients to follow up

the settlement of the outstanding loans.

RAAERmELE  AAFFRRENAD
#1785 LBEER -

DH_

ARBERAZERARLHBEEBERE - 19
BT EMBRAE 4B ZRE - EEHBRT
BEERATLEERE - BEFERAE
RCERFT AN ~ PR P AE » N AR & 5L A A5
FABRLER(MREEFRR_FT_=F
T-A=1t—HMAREE MEABEALE
P 15 5% ~ K BE - AR SRR (M am IE
HIEER - M AWATREIMT)

SRR 2 B R A A AR
BEFREEZRABERAZSR HRE
B BIORRR R IA R B R 2 MR
W7o RAATEERA  SEMEMER
BERATAR - FARRTREBREL FI -

AEERNEREEEZERRLER LT
FREEFNEEERRERR  #USKE
B EERRBERE AREZEEER
BREEFDEZREREFARE AR
REDFHEEREEPERRz2TE ¥
E R P RE 2 AT E R EBUA R BRI 24T - R
SERAEETEPRER— B EERTE
PABRE R E& B2 WK o
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Placing and underwriting services

Meanwhile, the Group offers placing and underwriting services
to our clients, and acts as placing agent and underwriter for
Hong Kong listed companies’ fund-raising activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's placing and
underwriting commission was approximately HK$1.5 million as
compared with approximately HK$4.3 million for the same
period last year. The Group will continue to put efforts to
capture the opportunities towards the local initial public

offerings and other fund-raising exercises.

Overall, the brokerage and financing businesses recorded a
loss after tax of approximately HK$110.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 as compared with a profit of
approximately HK$22.9 million for the same period last year.
The deterioration of the performance in 2023 was mainly due
to the substantial impairment in accounts receivable based the
ECL model.

Corporate Finance and Other Advisory Services

The Company through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC
Capital, provides corporate finance and other advisory services
to its clients. The Company through its another indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, VCCS, provides corporate services, including
company secretarial services, registered office and business

services, etc,, to listed and private companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company's
corporate finance and other advisory services recorded
revenue and loss after tax of approximately HK$4.8 million
and HK$5.8 million as compared with revenue of
approximately HK$7.0 million and loss after tax of
approximately HK$3.2 million for the same period last year,

respectively.

& R B 5 R%

o REBARPIEHEE R BHERE -
WAZREBLTRAREEEEZH RS
RKELRBHEE BHE-_ZT-_=ZF+=A
=+—RALEFE AEEHE2REEREH
& %9 /1,500,0007% 7T - M & 4 [A) HA B 49
734,300,000 7T - A& B K EBR B EIR
NEBREBEBRAARBEREMEZZHAA
RIR 2 #iE

BRNE  KLERMEEBERBE_ZT_=
F+ A=+t BLEEEHEY
110,500,000/ T2 Br 12 BB - M EF A
HA RN $% 1538 7 £922,900,0008 L - — T ==
FrRABRFZEDARBEEHREERBRE
BREFE 2 BRERRERE

TEBMEREMERREER

ARREBEAE2EMNBRARERZMER
HEPRHECEXMELEMBERMRYE - A2
AEBES—MHEE2ENBARERWE
RBHBLETRILARTHRREERY - B
NEAWERYE  EMBHERELRBERESF -

HEZT-_=-F+-A=+—HIEFE &K
"ETZ@%E&E&E?@EEF&JHlﬁ%%i‘““ | $%

S W 2= 494,800,000/ 7T I R 7t 12 5 18 49
5,800,000 7T * E RN EF R BB 5 B &K
#= #97,000,0008 T KB 1& BB O
3,200,000 7T °
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Asset Management

Following the completion of acquisition of VCIAM and AIF
disclosed above, it immediately brings contribution to the
Group's asset management segment. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group's asset management segment
recorded revenue and loss after tax of approximately HK$2.2
million (2022: Nil) and approximately HK$0.6 million (2022:
HK$1.7 million), respectively. Following the reopen of borders
which allows the Group's senior members visit potential
clients in China, the Group is optimistic on asset management

of providing solid results.

Insurance Brokerage

The Group, through Experts Management Limited, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary, was engaged in the provision for
insurance brokerage service. Experts Management Limited
owns insurance broker company licence and is entitled to
conduct long term insurance business. During the year, Experts
Management Limited recorded revenue of HK$6.7 million
(2022: Nil) with a loss after tax of approximately HK$274,000
(2022: HK$502,000).

EEEEEY

FXBRBEZERBEREEE IR RAFZ Y E
K% EARARNSE EEETRBEB D
HEskER - BE-_T-_=F+_-_/F=+—
HIEEE XEBZEEETREBH D5
85 ULER 492,200,000 T (ZE == F : &)
KB Fi & BB #600,0008 L (Z T =4 :
1,700,000 7T) - BEZEEBRER - XEE 2
BRBEEREASTEFNEERR  FA%
EHEEEEEBMEGRERNRRILE -

R RLER
AEEBEZEBHEEZEE2EMNB R FExperts
Management Limited#t = 42 £ {R i 45 42 iR
% ° Experts Management Limited % A {R i ¢
MARRR TARKERBRREER - F
A+ Experts Management Limited 15 I 25
6,700,000/ 7T (= F = — 4 : &) MR HR
&5 8 £9274,0007% 7T (ZF = — 4 : 502,000
BT °
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Proprietary Trading

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held equity securities
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$155.1 million (31
December 2022: HK$300.6 million) as financial assets held-
for-trading, which was stated at market value. The fair value of
these listed equity securities represents about 30% of the
Group's total assets as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: 37%). A few securities with relatively heavy weighs
within the portfolio were not performing well during the year
ended 31 December 2023, resulting in an overall loss during

the year.

The Group invests mainly through purchases in the secondary
market. The management follows strictly the internal securities
investment policy and seeks the approval from the Board,
when necessary, so as to enhance the financial returns to the
shareholders and limit the risk exposure associated therewith.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was net
sale in securities investment of approximately HK$129.3
million (2022: purchase of HK$33.8 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of Nil (2022: HK$250,000) from the proprietary
trading business. The Group recognised net loss of
approximately HK$126.7 million (including a realised loss of
approximately HK$109.5 million and unrealised loss of
approximately HK$17.2 million) on the trading investments for
the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to
approximately HK$171.7 million (including realised loss of
approximately HK$14.2 million and unrealised loss of
approximately HK$157.5 million) for the same period in
2022.

REEEXER
R-ZTE-_ZF+_A=+—H8 A£EES
REBELTZRAZR (BRHIEEENKE
) #9155,100,000 T (ZE=Z=F+= A
=+—H : 300,600,000/ ) * JiiR AT
B -RELTRABFN_-_T-_=F+=A
ZT—BZAFEGAEBBEEELNZ0% (=
EFFTZHA=Z+T—R:37%) c REE
—EZ=F+ZA=+— EJLEFE'J\*EA
BHREAPELEBRECHFRARE B
FANERISEEERE -
AEBZREDFEZFBNE_MHEE -
EREBRETABIFREBR RN

ERARBESSIOE  BRERAR
RSB 2 R - IR R A8 B 3% & P A 2R
Z 2, nob‘Aﬁifyf*¢+ A=+—H
LEFE BHFEREZFLHEENAR
129,300,000 T (ZE % : FHEH
33,800,000/ L) °

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLEEFE K
SECEEEEEBEBRERAE(ZF
Z 4 :250,00087T) c AEBERBE_Z
=+ A=+ BLFERREEER

REIBIF 126,700,000/ T (BIEE &R
5 #8 49109,500,0007% 7T I & # IR E 1B 4
17,200,000/ 7T) * MR —ZF = —F R H A
#7171,700,0008 T (BREEZREELD
14,200,000 T R REREELD
157,500,000/ 7T) °



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZR#ZRERA T

Annual Report 2023 £

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsT:s/i &9

Below is an analysis of the financial assets held-for-trading

AEER _ZE_=F+_A=1+—HAFKEE

held by the Group as at 31 December 2023: BZUBEESTAOT :

Unrealised

gain (loss)

Market value Percentage for the

as at to the  year ended

31 December Group’s 31 December

Industries 173 2023  total assets 2023
B=E

—EC-=F

S =R

—E-=F Sqr—1E

+=A LtFEZ

=t+-—H hAEE KRERKH

2hE BREEBIHL (&B1])

HK$" million HK$" million

BEBTT BEBTT

Energy EENH 15.4 2.7% 2.6
Information technology B EHR 11.3 2.0% (40.3)
Consumer goods and services BE M &R 33.2 5.8% (14.1)
Financials SR 20.0 3.5% (5.3)
Industrials T 74.4 13.1% 45.7
Construction [ES5a 0.8 0.2% (5.8)
155.1 27.3% (17.2)

While the performance of different industries did vary, the
Group cautiously monitors the investment portfolio and shall
be determined to make any strategic moves. The loss incurred
during year 2023 was in line with the plummet of global
capital market. Overall, the Group's proprietary trading
business recorded loss after tax of approximately HK$132.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$173.7 million).

RETRMTEZRBRLE  EASBEFHAR
BILEHEE  UEBRTEEDEMREEE -
—ECCFEBRFEBE2REATISRK
ZIERER BERBmE  AEEEEEE
EBREBEE_TS-_=F+-A=+—HIF
E8%1549132,400,000/8 L2 BrFi & 518 (=
T4 : 173,700,000 T) °
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Sales and Marketing of Digital Assets
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group

recorded gross merchandise value and revenue of
approximately HK$288.5 million and HK$2.8 million (2022:
HK$363.1 million and HK$2.1 million) and with a loss after
tax of approximately HK$2.8 million (2022: HK$8.2 million)
respectively. The decrease of the loss was due to the absence
of set-up research administrative cost and professional fee

expenses incurred in 2023.

Unallocated administrative costs

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the unallocated
administrative costs amounted to approximately HK$38.3
million as compared with approximately HK$23.4 million for
the same period last year, which mainly included the
unallocated corporate operating expenses. The increase in the
unallocated administrative costs of approximately HK$14.9
million in 2023 was mainly attributable to the unallocated

share-based payment expense and corporate staff cost.

Income tax credit

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
income tax credit of approximately HK$5.4 million (2022:
HK$74,000) which included current tax expenses of
approximately HK$71,000, overprovision of approximately
HK$3.9 million and deferred tax credit of approximately
HK$1.5 million (2022: underprovision of approximately
HK$31,000 and deferred tax expenses of HK$105,000). The
current tax expenses in 2023 was made for the provision of
PRC Enterprise Income Tax charge in relation to the
profitability generated from the digital assets business. The
deferred tax (credit) expenses was recognised mainly in

relation to the convertible bonds issued by the Company.

BIREEHERKEEXER
REE-_T-_=F+-_A=+—HLEE"
AEEZEE AR ERERKE D AL
288,500,000/ 7T %&2,800,0008 7t (= &
— =% : 363,100,000t % 2,100,000/ 7T.)
LA &2 B B 1% B5 18 492,800,000 L (Z T = =
% : 8,200,000 7T) - BEBIEFETIBHER
MRER_T_=FELEZHARXMAERER 217
BERAREXEERARAX -

K7 EAT B A
BHE_ZT-_=ZF+_-A=+—RHILEE Xk
S BT A 49 538,300,000/ 7 © =&
B #3814 523,400,000 7 * TEBFERD
R ECERY T =F2RHETR
FX S35 A0 %914,900,0008 7T * EERR K S
z2ARNDAERINRAZIREEETK
z]g o

FrigBiiE %
HE_T-_ZF+-A=+—BHLEE XK
S E RS HE % 45,400,0008 T (ZF
% 740008 7T) c BB ENHABIE
i 52 #971,0007T - 8 #8 £ & £93,900,0007%
JT KR FE 7 I8 K %2 491,500,000 T (ZF
ZoF  BETR31,00008 T RIELER A
f1£1050008 L) - — T _=F 2 BIEA®
HRXTDARBIEEEEBE &R
PEGCERERAXBEMIED - REHIA
(BR)BAX T EERAQRFEITAIRKRE
SLEBEEBEEB I RHEEENBEE R
SR MER
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Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$3.8 million (2022:
HK$3.2 million), out of which approximately HK$0.6 million
(2022: HK$0.6 million) was incurred pursuant to the effective
interest expense of convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023, together with
some finance costs incurred in relation to the Group's
brokerage and financing businesses and interest expenses on

lease liabilities.

Headcount and employee information

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 74
employees (31 December 2022: 72), which excluded 12 self-
employed account executives for brokerage services and asset
management services (31 December 2022: 9), and 64 and
10 (31 December 2022: 60 and 12) were located in Hong
Kong and the PRC respectively. Salaries and staff benefit costs
(including the Directors’ emoluments) and staff commission
amounted to approximately HK$55.2 million and HK$2.2
million respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023 as
compared with approximately HK$40.9 million and HK$2.2
million respectively for the same period last year. The increase
in the salaries and staff benefits costs of approximately
HK$14.3 million in 2023 was mainly attributable to the (i)
share based payment of approximately HK$11.1 million
pursuant to share options granted on 31 January 2023; and

(i) the new staff pursuant to acquisition of VCIAM.

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their performance and qualifications. In
addition to basic salaries and participation in Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also provides medical
coverage, sales commission, discretionary and performance
related bonus, discretionary share options and share awards to
its employees. Meanwhile, employees are provided or funded
to attend training and development programs which are

relevant to their works.

& B A
BHE-_T-_=F+_A=+—HILEEE K
S B 2 B & KR4 73,800,000 T (ZF
— Z % : 3,200,000/ 7T) & # 49600,000
BIL(ZZE Z =% : 600,000 L) T L A2
ARBE_S_=F+=-A=T—HLFE
FRBITRAIMRES 2 ERMNERXMESE
SERAEERLCRRMEXBEEZET
MEXKARHAEABEZFERAX °

BEEABKREEEHR

RZTE_=F+-A=+—0 A&EEEHA
GHR74BEE(ZE_F+=_A=+—8:
%) BENEREBZIKLERBREE
EERBEFPEA(ZE =+ A
=+—H:9%) A4 ARFERIOA
REBRIE(ZE__F+_A=+—H8:
COARBHERIARFER) - #HE-T =
FH+-ZA=+—BLEFE HFLREIREHN
KA (BEEEME) REIRE 5 AL
55,200,000/% Jt } 2,200,000/ 7T * &R &
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2 AR AR E T AT FA911,100,000% 7T
RN EEREBREEERMEG2MET

AEBRERENEE  HMKTREBATDRIE
WEZRRARERME ° BREARH S R
HERABEAEN AEETAEEESRHTE
BRR  HERS  BBRRVTEAL NEE
PR N BB o UbSh  AREETEREER
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Liquidity and financial resources/capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group financed
its business operations and investments with internal
resources, cash revenue generated from operating activities,

convertible bonds and margin financing.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy. As at 31
December 2023, bank balances and cash were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi as to approximately
HK$15.1 million and HK$2.3 million (2022: HK$29.8 million
and HK$2.2 million) respectively. The Group intends to
maintain minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks and
those Renminbi is mainly for the PRC's operation need. All the
bank balances and cash were put in saving deposits and

current accounts as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group obtained margin
financing facilities from certain brokerage firms in the amount
of HK$18.5 million (2022: HK$17.0 million) and margin loans
obtained amounted to approximately HK$20.8 million (2022:
HK$18.5 million).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not hold

any banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank balances and
cash, net current assets and total equity (other than clients'
segregated accounts) amounted to approximately HK$17.7
million (31 December 2022: HK$32.3 million), HK$462.1
million (31 December 2022: HK$693.0 million) and
HK$513.3 million (31 December 2022: HK$747.7 million)
respectively, representing decrease of about 45%, 33% and
31% respectively as compared with that of 31 December
2022. Current ratio, expressed as current assets over current
liabilities, was at about 9 times as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: 13 times).
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As at 31 December 2023, the total numbers of issued
ordinary shares of the Company were 2,473,523,040 (31
December 2022: 2,078,601,598).

Charges on group assets

As at 31 December 2023, trading securities with fair value of
approximately HK$95.2 million (31 December 2022: HK$73.0
million) were pledged with certain brokerage firms to obtain

margin financing.

Foreign exchange exposure

It is the Group's policy for all operating entities to use
corresponding local currency as much as possible so as to
minimise exchange related risks. For the year ended 31
December 2023, majority of the Group's principal businesses
were conducted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars with the
digital assets business in the PRC. Impact from foreign
exchange exposure mainly Renminbi was thus immaterial and
no hedging against foreign currency exposure had been
necessary. In view of the operational needs, the Group will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time
to time and take necessary action to minimise the exchange

related risks.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group

did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Save as the legal actions taken by the Group as mentioned in
the section “Brokerage and Financing” above, so far as known
to the Directors, there was no other litigation or claim of
material importance in which the Group is engaged or pending

or which was threatened against the Group.
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's gearing ratio,
expressed as total borrowings (being the margin loans, lease
liabilities and liability portion of convertible bonds) over total

equity, was approximately 6% (31 December 2022: 5%).

Significant investments held, their performance and
future prospects

Financial assets held-for-trading

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2023 was the Group's investment in 56,216,000
shares or approximately 0.74% of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (Stock Code: 1341)
("Hao Tian") with fair value of approximately HK$58.5 million,
which amounts to approximately 10% of the Group's total
assets. Hao Tian and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of securities
brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv)
rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of
repair and maintenance and transportation services; (vi)
property development; and (vii) money lending. The
investment cost was approximately HK$29.1 million. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, its share price has
increased by approximately 2419%. During the year ended 31
March 2023, their group recorded profit attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$108 million, and no
dividend was received from it. Hao Tian is a conglomerate
with businesses diversified into different areas and is an
excellent investment target. The Group was optimistic about
its future prospect and intends to hold the investment with an

aim for long term capital growth.
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Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Save as completion of the acquisition of VCIAM and AIF and
disposal of VC Financial Investment Holdings Limited disclosed
above, the Group’s did not have any material acquisition or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets and their expected sources of funding in the
coming year

As at 31 December 2023 and as at the date hereof, the
Group had no other known plans with regard to material
investments or capital assets and their expected sources of

funding in the coming year.

On 16 March 2023, Astral Wealth Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an exclusivity
agreement with two independent third parties conditionally for
purchase and sell the entire portfolio of issued shares in and
assignment of director's loan of company which is the sole
registered and beneficial owner of a property with cash
consideration of HK$18.0 million. Deposit of HK$16.0 million
was paid during the year ended 31 December 2023. The
completion date of the transaction has been extended to be
on or before 30 April 2024.

Meanwhile, as at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have
any significant commitments contracted but not provided for

in respect of purchase of property and equipment.
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DIRECTORS
FU Yiu Man, Peter
Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Fu, aged 68, joined the Group in July 2016 and has been
appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director in March
2018. Currently, Mr. Fu is the chairman of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Fu was an independent non-executive director
of Beijing North Star Company Limited (Stock Code: 588), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, from May 2015 to May 2021.

Mr. Fu obtained a bachelor's degree from Wharton Business
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the U.S. He has
served in various senior positions in BNP Paribas, Peregrine,
Baring Securities, UBS, Citigroup Inc., CCB International and
CCB International (China), etc. He served as the vice-president
of GCL-Poly Group since November 2013. For the period from
March 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Fu had been re-designated as
the vice-president of GCL Oil and Gas Company. He was
responsible for overseas finance and M&A business for the oil
and gas projects of the company. Mr. Fu has almost 40 years

of experience in financial management, securities business.

WONG Kam Fat, Tony

Vice Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 61, has profound management experience in
working with charities and in the education industry as well as
possessing over 25 years of management experience in the
printing industry. Mr. Wong was a director of China Public
Procurement Limited (Stock code: 1094) from 12 July 2007
to 4 September 2009 and China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (Stock code: 290) from 11 September 2009 to 26
November 2015, both of which are companies listed on the

main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo
Executive Director

Mr. Lin, aged 53, joined the Group in January 2014 and has
been appointed as the Executive Director in April 2015.
Currently, he is a member of the Executive Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin is the
Honorary Secretary of Hong Kong Skating Union Limited (the
associate member of the Sports Federation and Olympic
Committee of Hong Kong) and the Permanent Honorary

President of the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.

Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
and a Master of Science Degree in Marketing. The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management awarded Mr. Lin as Fellow of
Certified Risk Planner in November 2019. He has over 20
years' experience in corporate development and business

strategy.

LI Cindy Chen
Executive Director

Ms. Li, aged 54, has been appointed as the Executive Director
in September 2021. Ms. Li graduated from the Shenzhen
University, majored in Chinese Literature, in 1989 and
obtained International MBA from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics and MBA from Webster University in
1999. Ms. Li had held senior position in a variety of
companies including Shenzhen China Motion Telecom,
Shenzhen Hongbo Communication Co. Ltd.,, Newman &
Associate Consulting Ltd.,, Wuhan Shun Qi Investment Ltd.,
Faye Consulting Ltd. and Shenzhen Han Hua Investment Co.
Ltd. Ms. Li has extensive experience in business operations
and has extensive business connections and industry
resources in communications industry, internet technology,

internet financial technology and new payment industry.
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ZHANG Nu
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang, aged 42, obtained bachelor degree of International
Business and Trade from Si Chuan Normal University majored
in 2004 and master degree in Software Engineering from East
China Normal University in 2016. Mr. Zhang had held senior
position in a variety of companies including but not limited to
sales director of South China of Shenzhen Digital China Co.,
Limited, general manager of Shenzhen Lan Yu Bo Chuang
Technology Co., Limited, vice president of Fujian Jiu Ze Culture
and Broadcasting Co., Limited and vice president of Beijing
E-Sports Culture & Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Zhang has
over 10 years' experience in sales management of the
Mainland and overseas well-known brands’ electronic
consumer products and internet related products, and is
familiar with channel sales and major customers’

development.

WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 52, joined the Group as Independent
Nonexecutive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wong is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He has set up his own practice, Quentin Wong &
Co. Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1 January
2005, and set up Quentin Wong & Co. CPA Limited in 2020.
Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of China
Trends Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8171), a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2016 to August 2021 and Creative Enterprises
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3992), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2018 to October 2021.
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Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors. Meanwhile, he is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Financial Management from University of
Essex and a master degree of Science in Internal Auditing and
Management from The City University, London. He has over
15 years working experience in audit and accounting gained
from a sizeable international firm and has had over 10 years

of practicing experience.

SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, aged 66, joined the Group as Independent
Nonexecutive Director in October 2016. He is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit

Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Siu graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Polytechnic Associateship in Building Technology and
Management and a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(General Practice Stream), Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (General Practice Stream) and Chartered Institute of
Arbitrator. Mr. Siu is an Authorized Person under the Hong
Kong Building Ordinance of the Government of the HKSAR. He
is also a Registered Professional Engineer (Building Stream)
and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice

Stream).
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Currently, Mr. Siu is an independent non-executive director of
HG Semiconductor Limited (Stock Code: 6908), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
He is also a director of DBG Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
300735), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Meanwhile, Mr. Siu is also a director of a consultancy firm and
engineering firm. He was an independent non-executive
director, and later on redesignated as an executive director, of
Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (Stock Code: 351), from
August 2016 to March 2018 and from March 2018 to
November 2018, respectively. Mr. Siu was also an
independent non-executive director of Sheung Yue Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) from October 2016 to
January 2018. Both companies above are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Siu was also an independent
non-executive director of Excalibur Global Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8350), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from January 2018 to
December 2023. He had served in many public listed
companies as senior management and has over 25 years of
managerial experience in general management, commerce,
banking, finance, real estate development and construction

business.

Mr. Siu is actively participating in public affairs and charitable
activities. He is the vice president of the Association of Hong
Kong Professionals and the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation, the honorary president of the Hong Kong Kowloon
City Industry and Commerce Association and the chairman of
the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association. Due to his
dedicated service to local community, he was conferred the
Medal of Honour (M.H.) by The Government of the HKSAR in
20109.
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AU Tin Fung, Edmund
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Au, aged 66, graduated from the Business Management
Department of the Hong Kong Baptist University in 1982. He
obtained the Master of Business Administration Degree from
Upper lowa University in 2006 and the Honorary University
Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2021. Mr. Au
is the founder and a director of Latitude n Longitude

Consultancy Limited.

Mr. Au had worked in senior positions in a variety of
companies licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Insurance Authority. He was an
independent non-executive director of China Fortune Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 290) from December 2005 to
May 2006, an independent non-executive director of China
Public Procurement Limited (stock: 1094) from August 2007
to September 2009; and an independent non-executive
director of CCIAM Future Energy Limited (stock code: 145) in
October 2009 and redesigned to executive director from
October 2009 to September 2011.

Mr. Au is currently a member of Entrepreneur Committee of
Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation. He was also the
Honorary President of Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association Limited in 2017 and the vice president of
Hong Kong Kowloon City Industrial & Commerce Association
Limited from 2010 to 2012.

EBEHE

BYFHTES

BEE 665 R—NAN_FRERFER
EABTHERR -HR_ZETERFRMEX
B EEREXSEIHERBELEMN WX
Z_—HFEFERERBERKERER
T - BREERKBBERAABRIFZAIHA
REZ-

RAEFBREZREIF LB EEBHEREZE
ERRBEEER THREBARLERE -
BR_EERF+RARE_ZETFRHAE
FHREEREREEFRD ﬂ(HXﬁﬁﬁ:
200) B FBITEST  R_TZLFN
ﬂiiggﬂgﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁp’&#\%ﬁ%ﬁ@
NE (RERHR - 1094) 2 B IEHITES
NERZZZNFETAEEERERERA
A (RER : 145) 2BUFAITES - &
BR_ZEZNFTAZ_ZE——FHLAAE
RZANRZHATES -

BELRSBEREGARBESEEREZE S
ZEB-HME \*?*tiﬁ%‘{{%}’ém?ﬁ
BEHEERRARKREIREN_Z—ZF
E:%—:i%&%ﬁéﬂ%‘éﬁlﬁ%%%
RAFRIER

49



50

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA T

Annual Report 2023 F3§

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE N SR EHEEZEBFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LAI Yick Fung

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Mr. Lai, aged 53, joined the Group as chief financial officer in
April 2018. He has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in May 2018. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of
Science Degree in Financial Management in the University of
London and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute. Mr. Lai was an executive director of China Eco-
Farming Limited (Stock Code: 8166), company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from July 2015 to
March 2018. Mr. Lai had worked for an international
accounting firm and a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong and the United States as senior management and has
over 25 years of experience in auditing, accounting, financial

management and company secretarial practice.
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The board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, the maintenance of a high
standard of corporate governance has been and remains a top
priority of the Group (the Company and its subsidiaries). The
Group is committed to promoting and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance, with the objectives of (i)
the maintenance of responsible decision making; (ii) the
improvement in transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders; (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of
shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate interests of
shareholders; and (iv) the improvement in management of

risk and the enhancement of performance by the Group.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE PROVISION OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE STRATEGY, BUSINESS MODEL AND
CULTURE

The Group's corporate strategy is to enlarge the revenue base
through fostering core businesses, meanwhile tapping into
new and potential markets with expanded business initiatives.
Leveraging its deep customer knowledge and comprehensive
portfolio of financial products and services, the Group is
committed to unleashing its strengths as a professional
financial service provider. The Group also manages to address
the challenges ahead and strive for continuous improvements
in its operations, so as to remain flexible and agile to adapt to
the market changes, thus bringing long-term sustainable

returns for its shareholders.
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Adhering to the corporate strategy, the Group endeavours to
create enterprise value as it enhances its business model by
applying prudent commercial principles despite volatility within
the industry, global economy, financial markets and investor
sentiments. The Group is also committed to developing a
positive and progressive corporate culture, and is always
striving for promising business growth and enhancing
shareholders' value. As such, maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance has been and remains a top priority

of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1
of Part 2 of the CG Code:

1) to formulate and review the Group's corporate
governance policies and practices;

2) to review and oversee the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

3) to review and oversee the Group's policies and practices in
compliance with any requirements, guidelines and rules
that may be imposed by the Board or which may be
incorporated into any constitutional documents of the
Group or which may have been provided by the Listing
Rules, applicable laws and other regulatory requirements as
well as by applicable institutional governance standards;

4) to formulate, review and oversee the code of conduct
of the employees and Directors of the Group; and

5) to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code as
adopted by it from time to time and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report as set out in the
annual reports of the Company.

Annual Report 2023 F3§
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the management. The Board provides
leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhance shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management
with proper supervision from the Board. The Board reserves
for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, corporate governance, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters. Each
Director has a duty to act in good faith in the interests of the

Company.

i. Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 8 Directors, with
5 Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony (Vice chairman),
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo, Ms. Li Cindy Chen and Mr.
Zhang Nu; and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin, Mr. Siu Miu Man,

Simon, MH and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, one
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office, thus becoming eligible for re-election at each
annual general meeting of the Company. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. In accordance with this
article, Ms. Li Cindy Chen, Mr. Zhang Nu and Mr. Siu Miu
Man, Simon, MH shall retire at the AGM, and being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Pursuant B.2.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, if an independent non-executive director serves
more than 9 vyears, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin has served
as independent non-executive Director for more than 9
years and shall retire at the AGM, and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the retiring Directors have been set
out in a circular, which will be sent to shareholders
together with this Annual Report, to assist shareholders to

make an informed decision on their re-elections.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors, all of whom
are independent of the management of the Group's
businesses, are highly experienced professionals with
substantial experience in areas such as legal, accounting
and financial management. Their mix of skills and
business experience is a major contribution to the future
development of the Group. They ensure that matters are
fully debated and that no individual or group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision-making
processes. In addition, they facilitate the Board to
maintain a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and

the Company as a whole.
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The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board,
including without limitation by reviewing that the
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
qualifications and expertise from time to time with
sufficient time commitment to the Group, that the
number of independent non-executive Directors comply
with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and that
channels are established (including without limitation by
questionnaires or at Board meetings) to assess and
evaluate the independent non-executive Directors’
contribution and views. The implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms will be reviewed by

the Board on an annual basis.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms but subject to re-election
requirements under the Company's Articles of
Association. Under Article 97 of the Company's Articles of
Association, all Directors, including non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in the Company's annual general meeting and
each Director is effectively appointed under an average

term of 3 years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin has served as independent

non-executive Director for more than 9 years.
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The nomination committee of the Company has assessed
the independence of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
during a meeting held in December 2023, where the

following were discussed:

«  Throughout his directorship with the Company, he
has not been involved in the daily operation of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect each of his independent
judgement and he has been able to provide
independent and professional views to the

Company's affairs.

«  He has participated in Board meetings and Board
committee meetings to offer impartial advice and
exercise independent judgement, and has attended
general meetings of the Company to gain a

balanced understanding of the Shareholders’ views.

«  The continuous appointment of Mr. Wong Chung
Kin, Quentin as an independent non-executive
Director will help to maintain the stability of the
Board as he has, over time, gained valuable insight

into the business strategy and policies of the Group.

«  He has never engaged in any executive management
of the Group. Taking into consideration the
independence nature of each of his roles and duties
in the past years, he is considered to be
independent under the Listing Rules despite his

years of services with the Company.
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In view of the professional qualifications and extensive
experience of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin in the
financial advisory field, the Board believes that he is
capable of providing constructive contributions in relation

to the Company's affairs.

The nomination committee of the Company is satisfied,
and the Board is of the view that Mr. Wong Chung Kin,

Quentin is independent.

The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines in 2023.
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Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities dealings on terms as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules (the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry
of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

Directors as set out in the Model Code in 2023.

The Board has also established a “Code of Securities
Dealings by Relevant Employees” for relevant employees
of the Company to regulate their dealings in the
securities of the Company so as to comply with the
directors’ obligations under code provision C.1.3 of Part 2
of the CG Code.

Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package to
ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company's operation and business as well as his/her
duties and responsibilities of directors under statutory
regulations and the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary
also provides the updates on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and

regulatory requirements to the Board from time to time.

Meanwhile, the Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Group's financial performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the year, each Director had
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/workshops/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and had provided the training records to the

Company.

Name of Directors EEp

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter R A&
Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony mIRE KL
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo ERTIRE
Ms. Li Cindy Chen FRET
Mr. Zhang Nu RESLE
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin EE/NES S
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BY LA
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund BAEXLE

Note:

Topics on training covered (a) Regulatory and corporate

governance updates; and (b) Finance related issues.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance (“D&O Insurance”) coverage on
Directors’ and senior management's liabilities in respect
of legal actions against them arising out of corporate
activities of the Company. The D&O insurance will be

reviewed and renewed annually.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year and additional meetings are held as and when required
to discuss significant events or important issues. At least 14
days notice is given for regular Board meetings to all Directors
enabling them to attend and reasonable notice will be given
in case of special board meetings. Agenda accompanying
board papers are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular board meeting. The Group ensures that
appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group's latest developments thereby assisting them in

discharge of their duties.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company attended the board meetings to advise on statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters of the Group. All
businesses transacted at the meetings were documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In 2023, the Board had held a total of 4 meetings. The details
of the attendance record of each member of the Board are
provided in the section “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS” below.

PROCEDURE TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO SEEK
INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company, the Board has established written procedures to
enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company's expense,
in appropriate circumstances. No request was made by any

Director for such independent professional advice in 2023.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management Functions

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the board committees and the management. Both the
Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The Board
has established in writing which issues require decision
of the full Board and which can be delegated by the

Board to the board committees or management.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and to
facilitate effective management, certain functions of the
Board have been delegated by the Board to various
board committees, namely, executive committee, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The committees review and make

recommendations to the Board on specific areas.

Each committee has its defined scope of duties and
terms of reference and the committee members are
empowered to make decisions on matters within the
terms of reference of each committee. The terms of
reference of the board committees are given at the
Company’s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee is made up of certain Company's

Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman)

and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and the Company's Chief

Financial Officer and Company Secretary (non-voting capacity),

namely, Mr. Lai Yick Fung.
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It oversees the implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives and risk management policies and the business and
operations of all of the business units of the Group.
Meanwhile, it is also responsible to develop, review and
monitor the Group's corporate governance policies and
practices. It holds meetings from time to time to discuss the
Group's financial and operational matters and other new
projects. Other details of the roles and functions of the
Executive Committee are given at the Company's website

under the section “Corporate Governance”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin (Chairman), Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH
and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund. Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management
expertise, as requested by the Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing

Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review
the Group's financial statements and published reports; (b) to
provide advice and comments thereon to the Board; and (c)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
Other details of the roles and functions of the Audit
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.

In 2023 the Audit Committee had held a total of 2 meetings,
among other matters, to review the Group's final results for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2023. The details of the
attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
are provided in the section "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Au Tin Fung,
Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and Mr.

Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on policies and structure for remuneration of directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration, assesses performance of and determines the
remuneration packages for executive directors and senior
management and makes recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive directors. Other details of
the role and function of the Remuneration Committee are
given at the Company's website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee had held 2 meetings,
among other matters, to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
details of the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee are provided in the section
"ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.
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Remuneration Policy

The formulation of the Group's remuneration strategy and
policy is based on the principles of equity and market
competitiveness so as to drive staff to work towards the
mission of the Group and to retain talents. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim of motivating Directors
and employees in the continued pursuit of the
Company's goal and objectives and to recognise their
contributions to the Group, the Company has adopted
the share option scheme under which the Company may
grant share options to the Directors/selected employees/
eligible persons to subscribe for the shares of the

Company.

Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with
regard to the performance of individuals, the Company’s
operating results and market standards. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) considered and reviewed the salary of
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (ii)
considered and reviewed the discretionary bonus
payments entitlement for Directors and senior

management of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Miu
Man, Simon, mH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin
and Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; identifies individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and makes recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

Other details of the role and function of the Nomination
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out
the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship
with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Group's business.
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When making recommendations regarding the appointment of
any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers the following factors in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate(s): (a) reputation for
integrity; (b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in
the industry and other relevant sectors; (c) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company's business; (d) diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural/educational and
professional background, skills, knowledge and experience in
assessing and selecting proposed candidates for directorship;
(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company's success; and (f)
compliance with the criteria of independence for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director as

required under the Listing Rules.

The following nomination procedures shall be followed:

—  The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall obtain
background information about the candidates from Board
members, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee itself may also

nominate candidates for consideration.

— In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual and
make recommendations for the Board's consideration

and approval.
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— In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed

candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

— The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election at a general meeting.

In 2023, the Nomination Committee had held 1 meeting,
among other matters, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board of the Company, independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Board diversity
policy. The details of the attendance record of each member
of the Nomination Committee are provided in the section
"ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.

Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity
policy, the main purpose of which is to achieve diversity on
the Board. Based on the policy, the selection of candidates for
board membership will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited, to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Details of the Board
Diversity Policy are given at the Company’s website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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As at 31 December 2023, the workforce consists of
approximately 55% male and approximately 45% female. The
Human Resources and Administration Department shall review
the workforce in diversity perspective and advise the
Nomination Committee should any gender diversity issues

arise.

The Nomination Committee was of the view that the
Company's Board Diversity Policy was suitable for the size of

the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS
AND GENERAL MEETINGS

= =5
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EXZEER ESTZEEEERR
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Attendance record of Directors in 2023

CECCEEBHRRE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2023 AGM/
Name of Directors Expg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting EGMs
—EC-=F
RRAEF
ENZE® FMZEE REZE® Ag/RKX
Ezgel - =F =f KAAE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter RBX L 4/ N/ATER  NATER NATER 3/3
Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony BERELLE 44 N/ATER  NATEEB  NATER 3/3
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo ERIAE 44 N/ATERE  NATER  NATER 3/3
Ms. Li Cindy Chen FEUL 4/4 N/ATN i F N/ATNE N/ATNiE F 3/3
Mr. Zhang Nu RERE 44 N/ARER  NATER  NATER 3/3

Independent Non-executive Directors BV #5177 %
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin FENRLAE 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 3/3
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BYEE W 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 3/3
Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund BHZEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 3/3
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The Company's
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and applied consistently, and that judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements and the reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor are set out on pages 120 to 124 of this Annual

Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
i. Responsibility
The Group has established Risk Management Policy to:

a. define the roles and responsibilities of the relevant

parties in the risk management process;

b. provide a practical framework to the management

for mitigating various risks; and

c.  promote risk awareness within the Group.
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The Directors and the Board Committees have an
oversight role to determine that appropriate risk
management processes are in place and that these
processes are adequate and effective. The Directors
should determine the level of risk that the Board is willing
to accept in pursuit of its business objectives by
considering whether the risk against reward ratio is
appropriate. Management should be responsible for the
identification, assessment and mitigation of material risks
faced by the business unit(s)/group function(s) which
they are responsible for. The management should also
regularly conduct review and monitoring of the Group's
compliance with the risk management process, system

and internal control.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and
the Group's assets; to maintain proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information; and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It aims to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, fraud or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.
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The Board Committees review the following annually: (a)
the changes, since the last annual review, in the nature
and extent of significant risks (including ESG risks), and
the Company's ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; (b) the scope
and quality of management's ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems
and the work of internal audit; (c) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the
Board (or board committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management; (d) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified during the period.
Also, the extent to which they have resulted in
unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the future have, a material
impact on the company's financial performance or
condition; and (e) the effectiveness of the processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

Process used to identify, assess and management
of significant risks

The Group's risk management process involves the
identification, evaluation, response, monitoring and
reporting of risks. After risks that may potentially affect
the Group's business and operations are identified by the
management of the Company, the Board will perform risk
assessment by prioritising the identified risks to
determine key risks exposed to the Group and discuss
measures to mitigate such key risks. Besides, existing risk
mitigation measures are subject to regular monitoring by
the management of the Company, which will review the
Group's risk management strategies, and report such

results and make appropriate suggestions to the Board.

If material internal control defect was noted, the
Company conducted continuous tracking for the
improvement of internal control defects, and counseled
and supported the persons in charge of internal audit

function to ensure good rectification results.
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Management Supervision

The Board has assigned the Executive Committee to
oversee the implementation of the Group’s internal
control and risk management (including ESG risk) and to

monitor the business and operations continuously.

The Executive Committee and management have defined
the organizational structure of the Group with clear
reporting lines and authorities. Competent personnel are
recruited to facilitate the establishment and maintenance

of the risk management.

System and procedures are in place to identify, control
and report on the major types of risks. The management
endorses policies, procedures, codes and guidelines to
mitigate significant inherent risks embedded in the
operational and financial activities. The “Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” is formulated and communicated to
all staffs with the aim of cultivating high integrity and

ethical values within the Group.
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The Group operates multiple lines of defenses to effect a
robust control framework. At the first level, the operating
business and support units are responsible for the day-
to-day management of risks inherent in the various
business activities. The second line of defense sets the
policy and guidelines for managing specific risk areas,
provides advice and guidance in relation to the risk.
Internal audit function forms the third line of defense
which evaluates significant risk exposure and contributes
to the improvement of the risk management and control

systems.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has in place an internal audit function within
the Group. The annual internal audit plan is reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee. During the year under
review, the Group has engaged an independent
professional adviser (“Internal Control Adviser") to
perform independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain subsidiaries’ risk management
(including ESG risk) and internal control system for the
year. The Internal Control Adviser reports directly to the
Audit Committee. The Internal Control Adviser
independently reviews and assesses the design and the
effectiveness of the major subsidiaries’ system of internal
control by adopting a risk-based audit approach, focusing
on major processes and activities which are quantitatively
or qualitatively significant to the Group. The Internal
Control Adviser reports all significant internal control and

risk management matters to the Audit Committee.
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Audit Committee Supervision

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee has been assigned by the
Board to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Group.
The Board also, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of risk management and internal control
covering all material controls, including financial,

operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee conducts regular meetings with
Senior Management, the Internal Control Adviser and
external auditor to review the financial statements and
auditor’s reports on financial and internal control matters.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
internal control matters, suspected frauds or irregularities,
alleged infringement of laws and regulations, which come

to their attention.

The Audit Committee, through the Internal Control
Adviser, has conducted comprehensive risk assessments
and internal control reviews on the design and the
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control for
the year ended 31 December 2023, which covers the
key controls for mitigating the major risks associated with
the significant processes. During the year under review,
no major issue but areas for improvement have been
identified.

The Audit Committee has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are
appropriately designed, effective and adequate. The Audit
Committee has also assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience, training programmes and
budget of staff of the Group's Finance Department and

considered that it is adequate.
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v. Inside Information
With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the

Group:

a. has developed Inside Information Disclosure Policy
in relation to the disclosure of inside information
about the Group companies, its officers and
substantial shareholders. The disclosure can
communicate such information to investors for

investment decision on equal and informed basis;

b. has established Corporate Communications Policy
for responding to all media related inquiries,
interviews and conference on the corporate issues.
Authorized persons are assigned to act as
spokespersons to speak on behalf of the Group and

to respond to external enquiries; and

c¢.  has included in its Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics a strict prohibition for all employees of the
Group on the unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
POLICIES

The Group has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptances of advantages by employees and a whistle-
blowing policy to provide guidance to employees to external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual

improprieties relating to the Group.
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DIVIDEND POLICY IR 2R

The Board has considered the general principles that it ZEZ@EEZIKRERE (AR EHRE) Fk
currently intends to apply when recommending dividends for ~ EiR{EM P HIRR S0 - B & H B 5k E A
approval by the shareholders or when declaring any interim 2 —fRFRA| - EE SR e X — B ET KR EF
dividends. The actual dividend that the Board may EEZHSETRKRE BEEKRESHEBETT
recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial — WtEZREE &8 ERE 2 (EREEZHR
year will be subject to the factors outlined below as well as  #RBR - B A FEBIR S H MO A IRE -
any other factors deemed relevant by the Board. Dividend

may be distributed either in cash, or in the form of shares.

The dividend policy is as follows: REBEREF|IMT

« In determining the dividend payment ratio in respect of . EETE BT HREEZRELE

any particular financial year, the Board will take into N o EEeisBaEIEERAREA
account a desire to maintain and potentially increase EEAEBEEEAEET  feiEk
dividend levels within the overall objective of maximizing HEEEINEREKE: &

shareholder's value over the longer term, and;

« If an annual dividend in respect of a financial year is to AT E—REERNE2ERE
be paid, the dividend would generally be paid in form of ZEREY — AR SRR B
an interim and a final dividend. 2R o
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In considering the level of dividend payments, if any, upon
recommendation by the Board, various factors will be taken
into account, including:

«  the level of cash and retained earnings;

«  the expected financial performance;

« the projected levels of capital expenditure and other

investment plans;

»  the taxation consideration;

«  the possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

«  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

« any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There is no assurance that the Company will be able to

declare or distribute any dividend in any financial year.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, audit and non-audit

services provided by the external auditors of the Company, are

as below:

ZE RN &
BE-_ZT-_=F+-A=t+—HIEEE &
N RIINEE AZ BRAD T IR M 2 Az I IE | AZ AR 75
R

SHINEWING CCT &
(HK) CPA Partners
Limited CPA Limited Total
ETRRE
=5
EXHH BEHR  LEER
(BB) HEEHE (BKEE REHEM
EREES EBm %) BHFER
FERAR  BRAR LB EELH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TR TR
Audit services BB
Audit of the consolidated financial BEALEHE-_ZT-_=F
statements of the Group forthe +—A=+—HIEFEZ
year ended 31 December 2023 &AM KRR REMN
and the review of the AEFHRE_T_ZF
preliminary announcement of TZA=T-HLEEEZ
the result of the Group for the NEEERH
year ended 31 December 2023 1,550 - - - 1,550
Audit of certain subsidiaries of the ¥ AREEZE THEA A
Group for the year ended 31 ETBE_T_=F
December 2023 TZRA=T-RLEE
LB - 140 2 2 144
1,550 140 2 2 1,694
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matter. The
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2023.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the value of providing current and
quality information to its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional. It also recognises the importance of maintaining
continuous communication with Shareholders and constantly
looks for ways to ensure the Group maintains an open and

ongoing dialogue with the existing and potential Shareholders.

i. Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy to ensure an effective ongoing
dialogue with Shareholders. Such policy shall be reviewed
by the Board on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness, which is confirmed by Shareholders’
participation in the Annual General Meeting. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
reviewed and are satisfied of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy
on the basis that sufficient channels of communication
has been maintained with the shareholders. Details of
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy are given at the
Company's website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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The Company’s Website

The Company's website at www.vcgroup.com.hk provides
comprehensive and most updated information about the
Company, including financial results, announcements,
circulars, composition of the Board/Board committees
and their respective terms of reference, biographical
information of Directors and Senior Management, and
other corporate documents such as Articles of Association

and other policies adopted by the Company.

Annual General Meeting

The Company regards the annual general meeting
("AGM™") an important event as it provides an opportunity
for the Board to communicate with the Shareholders.
Notice of AGM and related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting.
The Company supports the CG Code's principle to
encourage Shareholders’ participation. Questioning by the

Shareholders at the AGM is encouraged and welcomed.

Enquiries

The Company Secretary responds to letters and
telephone enquiries from Shareholders/investors.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to raise
enquiries through the Company’s email contact
info@vcgroup.com.hk or by mail to our Company
Secretary at 6th Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

VYN

AN 2 7] 48 hwww.vcgroup.com.hkig { &
BAARKMEZHEENRENEL  EF
BIEMGEE D BR ERg /S
ExZE8e AR IEEBESE &
EREREEEBZRE  AREMAFA
SN E R AR R R AR A AR AN 2 H At B

s

;ﬁ o

RERBFRE

ARRBEBRRBFEA® ([BRRBFAKX
SDRFFARE HEREFCHRRE
BBZAIRE  BRREFAEBER
HEXHRAEBEMEARI —+—@
TEHAMEZXKRR - ANARXFHEEE
ATAZRA - SZEEREBSERR
BERE  YHEMEERRRBERE
FRELEM -

=H

RANEBEOERE KREEZ
KR BEFEH RERKEENE
B A BHERRDAE B MU
info@vcgroup.com.hksk AEE A R 15 H
BMEATRARR MU AEBEFE
THB181-185 P A X AN E6HE -
BEEADRAWMER -
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

i. Convening of General Meetings

B

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter

622 of Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies

Ordinance”), Shareholders of the Company who

representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all

members having a right to vote at general meetings of

the Company may request the Directors of the Company

to convene general meetings. The requisition must state

the general nature of business to be dealt with at the

meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and

deposited at the registered office of the Company at 6th
Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong. Shareholders may include the text of a

resolution that may properly be moved and is intended

to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must proceed to convene a general

meeting within 21 days from the date of receipt of the

requisition. Such meeting should be held on a date not

more than 28 days after the date on which the notice

convening the meeting is given. If the Directors fail to

convene the general meeting as aforesaid, the

requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than

one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may

themselves convene the meeting. Any meeting so

convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

For more details, Shareholders may refer to the

requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance.

=
[=]
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote, or
at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may (a) put forward proposal at general meeting;
and (b) circulate to other Shareholders written statement
with respect to matter to be dealt with or other business

to be dealt with at general meeting.

The requisition must be sent to the Company in hard
copy or in electronic form and must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given. It must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and be received by the
Company not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request related, or, if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

For more details on the Shareholders’ qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the
above, Shareholders may refer to the Sections 580 and

615 of the Companies Ordinance.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In 2023, in view of the revision of Appendix 3 to the Listing
Rules, the Board resolved to amend the existing Articles of
Association and put forward the proposed amendments for
consideration and approval by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4 April
2023. The amendments to the Articles of Association were
mainly made in order to, among others, (i) bring the Articles
of Association in line with the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules as well as the applicable laws of Hong Kong; (ii)
allow general meetings of the Company to be held in the form
of a hybrid meeting or electronic meeting where Shareholders
may attend by electronic means in addition to a physical
meeting where Shareholders attend in person; (iii) provide
flexibility to the Company in relation to the conduct of general
meetings; and (iv) make other housekeeping and
consequential amendments to the Articles of Association. The
current Articles of Association, which incorporated the
proposed amendments, were approved by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4

April 2023 and took effect on the same date.

The consolidated version of the Company's Articles of
Association is given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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The Board (the “Board") of Directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023, together with the audited comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year including the
description of the Group’s business and its external
environment, business objectives and strategies, business
model and development and principal performance drivers are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 43

respectively of this Annual Report.

Further, the Management Discussion and Analysis also
contains the information about the Group's financial
performance analysis and financial position assessment,
number and remuneration of employees and remuneration
policies, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that had occurred since the year ended 31 December 2023

and the Group's likely future development in business.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group encourages environment protection, complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environment protection to the employees. The careful use of
resources and adoption of the best practices across the
Group's business shows our commitment towards
environmental protection. The Group adheres to the principle
of Recycling and Reducing. Stationeries such as envelopes,
letterheads and business cards, as well as interim reports and
annual reports delivered to the shareholders are printed on
environmentally friendly paper. It also implements green office
practices such as encouraging double-sided printing and
copying. Obsolete computer equipments, after removal of data
storage devices, are either donated to charities or passed to
recyclers together with used computer consumables such as

ink and toner cartridges.

Compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
financial services business

The Group’s financial services business is mainly under the
supervision of Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"),
including securities brokering and dealing, margin financing
services, corporate finance services as well as asset
management, and other authorities for the insurance
brokerage and money lending services. As such, the Group
has to comply with the rules and regulations of SFC and other
related regulators and authorities. In order to comply with all
these rules and regulations, the Group’s Compliance
Department has tailored-made some specific operation
manuals and implemented the internal control procedures to
regulate the Group's daily business activities. Regular testing
are conducted on the Group's operations to minimize the risk
exposures and take appropriate remedial actions, when
necessary. Meanwhile, the Group will engage independent
professional bodies to provide advices and assistance on the

Group's compliance issues, when necessary.
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In addition, the Group has adopted a more targeted approach
to customer due diligence through the use of a sophisticated
software provided by a third party financial service provider.
This simplifies and accelerates the customer due diligence for
the entire customer base of the Group, which includes
screening for money laundering, sanctions and threat finance
and also enables detailed monitoring of politically exposed
person relationships and networks and is also customizable to
identify a variety of specific third party risks, when necessary.
All these measures are important in increasing the efficiency
and effectiveness in dealing with the regulatory and
operational burdens and risks the Group’s regulated

businesses are facing.

Relationships with customers and suppliers and
major customers and suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers. To do so, the
Group delivers its financial services and products in
professional attitude to procure clients' trust, which help to
create new business opportunities to the Group. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between

the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers combined are approximately 11% (2022:
5%) and 29% (2022: 22%) respectively, of the Group’s total
revenue. During the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers. For 2023, all the five largest
customers have an average of 3 years of business relationship
with the Group and none of them are listed companies in
Hong Kong. Besides, the Group had no major supplier due to

the nature of principal activities of the Group.
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Relationships with employees HES ZBR&
(a) Emolument policy and employee benefits (@) FHEEKIESEF

The Group understands that employees are valuable
assets, therefore it provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The
emolument policy of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. The Group's
employees are selected, remunerated and promoted on
the basis of their merit, qualifications, performance and
competence. Regular revision for each employee is
conducted annually. Meanwhile, the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board, having regard to the performance of individuals,
the Group's operating results and comparable market

statistics.

Apart from the basic salaries and participation in
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also
provides medical coverage, sales commission,
discretionary performance-based bonus, discretionary

share options to all employees.

As above-mentioned, the Company has a share option
scheme as an incentive to the eligible persons of the
schemes, whom including the Directors, employees and
others of the Group. Details of the schemes and the
movements of the share options granted to the eligible
persons during the year are set out in the sections of
“DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES” and "SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" in this report.
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(b) Training and development

©

Employees of the Group are encouraged to attend
training and development courses so as to keep abreast
of their skills and knowledge. Our Compliance
Department organizes in-house training courses for all
employees of the Group, specifically for those are
licensed persons registered under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance, and provides ongoing
compliance updates and regulatory requirements to them.
The Group also funds the Directors to attend continuous
professional development training including updates on
regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices. Relevant employees are also funded to attend

external training courses which are relevant to their work.

Health and safety

In order to provide a safe working environment, offices’
workstations are regularly checked and maintained by the
Administration Department of the Group. Besides,
cleaning of carpets and air-conditioning systems are
regularly carried out so as to provide hygienic working

conditions for the employees.

(b) FILKZERE
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Principal risks and uncertainties of the Group

The Group's core businesses are (i) provision of financial
services comprising securities brokering and dealing, financing
services and corporate finance and other advisory services,
asset management and insurance brokerage; (ii) proprietary
trading; and (iii) sales and marketing of digital assets. Due to
the nature of the Group’s business, the Group may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties associated
with its key financial services and products. It mainly divided
into two categories, namely operational risk and financial risks.
To ensure implementation of the appropriate measures in
managing and monitoring these risk exposures on a timely
and effective manner, policies and procedures are established
by the Group. Details of the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group and the ways on how the Group

encounters these are given as follows:

(a) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed operational processes, people and
systems or from external events. In the other words, the
operational risk arises from non-compliance of policies
and procedures and lack of control. The Group has
established some operational policies and guidelines,
delegation of authorities and reporting requirements for
helping each employee of the Group to develop a set of
personal practices in performing their job to the highest
level. The operational policies provide detailed guidelines
for various functions of the Group in executing most of
the business transactions such as accounting and finance,
operations, legal and compliance, human resources,

information technology and administration.
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(b)

Meanwhile, detailed compliance and procedural manuals
and policies are designed for the major subsidiaries of
the Group which carried out the finance services
business. The internal policies and manuals aim to
ensure that the major subsidiaries of the Company
comply with all rules, regulations, codes and legislations
governing every aspect of the Group's regulated activities
at all times. All sales staff and/or investment
representatives are required at all times to fully
understand and follow the regulated requirements, which
will be updated from time to time in response to changes
of rules and regulations. Training programs and active
communications are continuously provided to promote
their awareness. Internal control procedures are applied
to monitor compliance of the Group’s policies and
guidelines. Appropriate disciplinary actions shall be taken
against the responsible staff, who is guilty of serious
misconduct. Further, for the proprietary trading business,
securities investment policy has been established
providing investment guidelines and reporting procedures

for the responsible persons to follow.

The Group’s Compliance Department and Internal Control
Adviser are responsible for identifying and monitoring the
key operational exposures and report regularly the
potential risk issues to the management and the Audit

Committee of the Group respectively.

Financial risks
In the course of business activities, the Group is exposed
to a variety of financial risks, including market, credit and

liquidity risks.

() Market risk
The Group's market risk primarily includes currency
risk (foreign exchange rate risk), interest rate risk

and equity price risk.
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Currency risk — It is the Group's policy for each
group entity to operate in local currencies as far
as possible to minimize currency risks. Most of
the Group's principal businesses are conducted
in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the Company, with a
rising proportion of business in the Mainland
China resulting in certain Renminbi exposure.
Since the impact of foreign exchange exposure
is still minimal, no hedging against foreign
currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. The Finance Department
will manage and monitor the relevant risk from

time to time.

Interest rate risk — The Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
accounts receivable from money lending
business, in which the risk is considered to be
insignificant as the majority of the amount is
carried at amortised cost. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate accounts receivable
from brokerage and financing businesses such
as cash clients and margin clients, which is
mainly relating to the fluctuation of prime rate
or bank’s cost of funding arising from the
Group's interest-bearing financial instruments.
The Finance Department has prepared
sensitivity analysis on the exposure to cash flow
interest rates for the Group's interest-bearing
financial instruments on a semi-annually basis
and note that such exposure to the Group is

not significant.
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Equity price risk — The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from fluctuation in the
price through the Group's investment in listed
equity securities. Management regularly reviews
and monitors the Group's investment portfolio

so as to limit the risk exposure.
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(i) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is the risk of losses from a

(i) 15E /=
AEBZEERRRERARRS
BFREBETEXERAEBEL
MBRRZER - ZEREERE
THAEEESTZXKAD :

borrower or counterparty defaulting on an obligation
which will result in financial loss to the Group. The
risk mainly arises from the following business

activities undertaken by the Group:

Financing from brokerage business — In relation
to the financing from brokerage business, the
credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and
clients' trade settlement. When the market goes
downside, the possibility of doubtful debts will
arise. The clients may be unable or unwilling to
settle the sum owed. As such, credit
assessment and continuous management of
credit exposures are indispensable. The Group
has established the credit policies and
procedures setting out in details the structure
of the credit risk management, the credit
approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for provision for doubtful receivables.
Meanwhile, the management of the Group has
delegated a team forming the credit committee
for setting the direction of the credit risk
management and to oversee the Group's
overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the work
of the credit officer who is responsible for the
daily credit management activities, determine
and review the credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts and receivables from the clients with
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shortfalls. Ad hoc discussions and meetings
may also be held by the credit committee
whenever necessary. Moreover, the Group
closely evaluates the borrower's credit rating,
financial background and repayment abilities.
The assessment is based on a closely
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual account and on management's
judgement from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrowers,
collateral value and the past collection history

of each individual borrower.

Money lending — All individual loans are
currently assessed and approved by the Group's
management. The Group closely evaluates the
borrowers’ credit rating, financial background,
repayment abilities and the value of securities
collateral. The assessment is based on a close
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual borrower and on management's
judgement from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrower,
collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower. The management
of the Group has delegated a team forming the
credit committee for setting the direction of the
credit risk management and to oversee the
Group's overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the status
of individual borrowers and determine if any
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts and receivables from the clients. The
Finance Department is responsible for the daily
monitoring of the borrowers including the
adequacy of the collateral value and any default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments
in accordance with the contractual terms, and
promptly report to the credit committee, when

necessary.
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Furthermore, the Group has monitored its concentration
of credit risk in different aspects. The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has policies in
monitoring both client concentration risk and stock
concentration risk. The Group regularly performs stress
tests on stock concentration to evaluate the Group's
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy in the event of
abnormal and significant changes in market condition. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the accounts receivable as the aggregate
balances with the five largest clients representing
approximately 349 (2022: 59%) of total accounts
receivable. Four of these clients’ balances are within the
credit limits granted by the Group and meet the loan-to-
value ratio. Further, the fair values of the securities
collateral held by the Group for these four largest
customers are in excess of the relevant carrying amounts
or has no overdue amounts as at 31 December 2023.
Regarding the remaining one customer, demand letters
had been issued and other actions shall be followed
when necessary. Accordingly, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is closely monitored. The Group

has no other significant concentration of credit risk.

(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources. The Group's
operations are mainly financed by internal generated
cash flow and margin loans. In managing the
liquidity risk, it is important that the Group maintains
an adequate level of cash and credit facilities to

finance the Group's daily operations.
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Indeed, the Group’s major subsidiaries are regulated
by SFC, which are subject to SFC's liquid capital
requirements. Under the liquid capital requirements,
the regulated subsidiaries must maintain the
minimum liquid capital, which shall in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities,
whichever the higher. The Finance Department
monitors the Group's major funding positions on a
daily basis so as to ensure adequate financial
resources are available to meet the Group's financial
obligations as well as to comply with SFC
requirement. It is believed that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the regulated subsidiaries have no
non-compliance with the liquid capital requirements

during the year.

(c) For more details about the principal risks and
uncertainties in which the Group are facing and also the
relevant risk management objectives and policies, please
refer to section “Financial Review” contained in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and notes 35 and
36 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
274 to 299 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the Group's financial position at that date are set
out in the Group's consolidated financial statements on pages
125 to 128 of this Annual Report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the
year (2022: Nil). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE
AWARDS

Details of the movements in share capital, share options and
share awards of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 32 and 33 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked

agreement during the year ended 31 December 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2023. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company's shares during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2022: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to Nil (2022: HK$3,000).

FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial
years as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements is set out on page 320 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter, Chairman

Mr. WONG Kam Fat, Tony, Vice chairman
Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Ms. LI Cindy Chen

Mr. ZHANG Nu

Independence Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Mr. AU Tin Fung, Edmund
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Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. As at the date of this annual report,

none of the directors fall into this category.

Pursuant B.2.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code, if
an independent non-executive director serves more than 9
years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. In accordance with
this code provision, the continued appointment of Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders, and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Pursuant to article 97 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire
every year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election. In accordance with this article, Ms. Li Cindy
Chen, Mr. Zhang Nu and Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH shall retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Fu Yiu
Man, Peter, Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo, Ms. Li Cindy Chen and
Mr. Zhang Nu are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
during the year and up to the date of this report include Mr.
Leung Chi Ho, David, Ms. Ho Wing Man, Ginny, Ms. Chan Tik
Man, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Ms. Tsui Dick Yee, Daisy, Mr.
Wong Chi Ming, Mr. Ma Chi Keung, Mr. Sam Hon Fai, Mr.
Zhang Peng, Ms. Li Xiaowen and Mr. Yu Wai Hong, Johnson.
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STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE
GROUP

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
senior management of the Group as at the date of this report

are set out on pages 44 to 50 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (to be fullest extent permitted by
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme and the share award
schemes disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Director is interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to complete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's businesses which is required to be disclosed pursuant

to the Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"), were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

of the Company

(a) Ordinary shares of the Company

(@) ALEZEHER

Number of shares

REATDROREBRG 2FR

RO E

Personal Spouse Corporate Approximate%

interest interest interests Total of shareholding

16 RERA

BAEZ REER =B st B

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 20,000,000 = — 20,000,000 0.80%
B e

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 500,000 - - 500,000 0.02%

BRREE

(b) Share options of the Company

(b)) ARA]ZBKE

Number of share options

RREHE
Approximate
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at % of total
at 1 January during during during 31 December issued
Name of Director 2023 the year the year the year 2023 ordinary shares Date of grant Exercisable period  Exercise price
Rogozf
HogozE t28 hERfA
-A-8 =t-8 EERAY
g4t HRGE  RERRE  RERGR  REAXM HRTE  BRASM REAH il ke
HKS
BT
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo 7,700,000 - - (7,700000) - - 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 July 2023 026
BEILE “ECRELACTA “ECREEACTLEE
ZEIZEEACTAA
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 1,228,000 - - (1,228000) - - 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 July 2023 026
EU “ECRELACTLH “RCREEACTLAE
ZEIZEEACTAA
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, M+ 1,228,000 - - (1,228000) - - 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 26 July 2023 026
BYREL “RCRELACTEA “ECREEACTLAE
ZECZELACTAR
Notes: Biat -

1. As at 31 December 2023, the Company's total issued 1.
ordinary shares was 2,473,523,040.

2. During the year, no share options disclosed above were 2.

cancelled.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out under the 3.
section of “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" in this report.

RZZE-_=%F+-_A=+—8 ARXFzZE
BEITE B AR A2,473,523,0400% °

FABE R R -

BRABREE ZFBENARE

PetEst 8] —#5 -

ERIE
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of KB EXFIFEEEIN R_ZT_=F+=A4
the Directors and their respective associates had any interests =+—H BEBERESSEIHEALTRAE
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or 2R REMEH L@ (ZESHRBEKEH S
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation  THEZERER) 2K - R GH K EREE
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been & - BIEEB I AKRRABREFSF KT K
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to  BIE3521&1F & 2 & 5 A 2 0] # & 50K
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the & @ HIBREEESFAIE BITAE AN Q A K
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. ~ R Pr 2 (Al s AR o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE FTERRREADARG 2
SHARES OF THE COMPANY
Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of REQABRRG HERGZEFR
the Company
Approximate
Number of % of total
Number of  underlying  Aggregate issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares held ~ shares held interest  ordinary shares Notes
HERT
gzl LERAY
8 5/ BEME FrERn#E RHG#A BREE BOBEI it
Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric Beneficial owner 363,644,000 - 363,644,000 14.70%
EEREE EREAA
Anli Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 92,421,442 154,035,736 246,457,178 9.96% 2
ZERRBRAA ERBERA
Mr. Wong Wai Hong Beneficial owner 140,000 - 140,000
aRREL ERBEA
Held by controlled corporation 92,421,442 154,035,736 246,457,178
RIBEERA
92,561,442 154035736 246,597,178 9.97% 2
Notes: Bfet -

1. As at 31 December 2023, the Company's total issued ordinary 1. RZEZ=F+-A=+—H KARAFAZE
shares was 2,473,523,040. BITE BB BR2,473,523,0400% -

2. Mr. Wong Wai Hong is beneficially interested in 80.66% of Anli 2. EERELEZHALZEERER L AIZ

Holdings Limited. As such, Mr. Wong Wai Hong is deemed to be 80.66%H m - At @EREERBE/RN
interested in the underlying shares of the Company held by Anli ZEERBER AT FE 2 AR AEBRNG E

Holdings Limited. BRER o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 14 June 2018, by passing an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Summary of the

principal terms of the Share Options Scheme are listed below.

Summary of the Share Option Scheme
(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise
the contribution made by the participants to the Group
and also provide them an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to motivating them
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship with
them whose contributions are beneficial to the long term
growth of the Group.
(b) Farticipants of the Share Option Schemes
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, to make an offer for the grant of share
options to the employees or directors of the Group or
such other persons who are eligible for participation in
the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions

stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.
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(c) Total number of shares available for issue under

(0) RIEAERE &) A] ZF7TZRIABE

the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to

time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme. The Company may seek approval
of the Company's shareholders in a general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme
save that the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon the exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
under the limit as “refreshed” may not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at

the date of approval of the limit.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the shares of the Company issued

and to be issued upon exercise of the share options

(@

REBREGEERE 2 MRITERER
BRTEKA TEITZARARG 2
B BEETEBRBRARRTRE2EEE
T 230% °

RIE R IREG 8 TR 2 2 50 I
RITERA] TRIT AR BRI BE -
EHTBEBMEBRETEERAD
AIEHEBEITRM Z210%  RAR A H
BARARRABRRAEG L EEHEE
MRIEET 8] 2 10%MR %8 « MRS [E 3R
BT REBRESEE TRE 2208
RENITERA TRITZARARG A
- TSRAEZREZEHARAS
EBEBITRN Z10% °

BEREMN2EAERLBERES AL
T_EAARRMZ2EERL RS TR

granted and to be granted to any participant (including ZHERE(BEETE - SEEEEK
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) TEZERE) RITERETFRITZA

in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.

NERD - BRERAZ2EEETZA
NERD AR FBRBRNAREZEE
BATIRD 2 1% » AR IMR LB B Ut
Rz BRE  BDARARBRRKE
EESBUR AL -
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(e

®

@)

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, any share option
may be exercised in accordance with its terms at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each grantee, save that no share option may
be exercised more than 10 years from the date on which
the share option is deemed to have been granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 7 days from the date of grant of

the share option.

Basic of determining the subscription price of share
option

The exercise price per share option under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.
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(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will continue to be in full force
and effect for a period of 10 years commencing on 14
June 2018 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their respective terms of

issue.

On 31 May 2023, by passing an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting, the Company adopted another share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and
terminated the Share Option Scheme. No options were

granted since the adoption of the New Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the New Share Option Scheme

(a) Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to the eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group; and (ii) to enable the Group to attract and
retain high calibre personnel that are valuable to the

Group.

(h) BIREE| 2 FerFH]
BRETESH T /\FRATEA
Bt +FREB TR RER (EXR
REABBEERASBBZ ERRERNL
EXonBERRIEBRER B ZEE) -
RiIER - A SBREBEET L
PR - MERBRERT B IR A R
T EDETRBRARIER - ARER
R EI BRI AE T 2 AR )R] 4
BREBEZBZEITHRRATUAITRE -

RZTEZ=FRA=+—8 KAQAAHEZERN
REBEREG BB ERRBREMEAS
—IEERE S ([FEREE]) LRI
A ERESTE] o B ERAMETIE IR AR ST 21 DA 2K
I A R AR -

HEBRESE HME

(a) FERESEZHAY
MBS 2 B E()EAKEEE S
AEERSEERTERE (FANE
HAKEEL AR ABIHEHR - K (ii)
BASHEEARSI NEEHAEELE
BEZBFEANS -



108

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRERA T

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EXEEiR4&=E

(b) Participants of the New Share Option Schemes

Eligible Participants for the New Share Option Scheme

include:

0]

(i)

(iii)

Employee Participant(s) including the Directors and
employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
(including persons who are granted Options under
the New Share Option Scheme as an inducement to
enter into employment contracts with these

companies);

Service Provider(s) including person(s) who provide
services to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and
usual course of business which are in the interests

of the long-term growth of the Group, namely:

a. supplier of goods or services to any member of

the Group; and/or

b. adviser, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or representative of
any member of the Group but, for the

avoidance of doubt, excluding (i) placing agents

or financial advisers providing advisory services
for fundraising, mergers or acquisitions of the

and (ii)

professional service providers such as the

Company or its Subsidiaries;

Auditor or valuers who provide assurance or are
required to perform their services with

impartiality and objectivity; and

Related Entity Participants including the directors and
employees of the Related Entity, provided that the
Board may have absolute discretion to determine

whether or not one falls within the above categories.
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(0) REFAEIREZ A 7B R

(c) Total number of shares available for subscription

under the New Share Option Scheme

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and all other share option schemes
existing at such time (including the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Relevant Scheme(s)”) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the New
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit").

Within the Scheme Mandate Limit, the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted to the Service Providers under Relevant
Scheme(s) must not in aggregate exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the New Share Option Scheme (the “Service Provider
Sublimit”), which shall not be valid unless: (i) the Service
Provider Sublimit is separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting; and (ii) a circular
regarding the Service Provider Sublimit has been
despatched to the Shareholders in a manner complying
with, and containing the matters specified in, the relevant
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (including,
amongst others, the basis for determining the Service
Provider Sublimit and an explanation as to why the

Service Provider Sublimit is appropriate and reasonable).

The Scheme Mandate Limit and/or the Service Provider
Sublimit may be refreshed by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders in general meeting after three years from
the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the last
refreshment (or the adoption of the New Share Option

Scheme).

B
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(e)

®

The total number of the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted and to be granted to any participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, any share
option may be exercised in accordance with its terms at
any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board to each grantee, save that no share option
may be exercised more than 10 years from the date on
which the share option is deemed to have been granted
and accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 7 days from the date of grant of

the share option.
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(g) Basic of determining the subscription price of share
option
The exercise price per share option under the New Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.

(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will continue to be in full
force and effect for a period of 10 years commencing on
31 May 2023 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the New Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the New Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the New Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their respective terms of

issue.

The number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate as at 31 December 2023 amounted to 247,102,304
(31 December 2022: 170,575,159).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the number of
shares that may be issued in respect of options granted under
all schemes of the Company was nil, representing 0% of the

weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.
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Movement of Share Options
As at 31 December 2023, 169,400,000 share options was
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the

movements of the share options during the year are as

BRESH

NS e R =
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B B T

2| T~ HF169,400,00017 B A HE A R RITIE -
BRERFAZEBHOT

follows:
Number of share options
EhEne
Reclassified Erercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Outstanding at Granted during during during 31 December Share options
Category of participants 1 January 2023 during the year the year the year the year 2023 Date of grant duration®™* ! Exercise price
mt et
iut t2hzt-B
SEEEH -R-RHAGR  MEARE RERENAR  REAGEE  RERRR BATR ReAH BREZAR fikE
HKS
i
Diectos 10,156,000 - - - (10156000) - 27y 2020 WM%WMS 026
£ ZEIRELACTHR “ECELACTERR
“EZEEACTAA
Substantial Shareholder=2 1,228,000 = > = (1,228,000) = 27 July 2020 u\y 2020 - 26 July 2023 026
1ERR ZRIRECACTER CETCRELACTEEE
ZEIZELRITAA
Employees 35760000 = = - (35,760000) = 27 1uly 2020 u\y 2020-26 u\y 023 026
ER TETRELACTLR TERELACHERR
2 o |
- 170100000 - - (700,000) 169,400,000 31 January 2023 31 January 2024 - 30 January 2027 0.145
ZEZE-R=r-R CRTRE-Azt-RE
ZECtE-A=1A
Other eligble person 7700000 = = = (7,700,000) = 27 July 2020 u\y 2020 - 26 uly 2023 026
EbeEfAL ZRIRECACTHA CECEECACTEEE
2 o
Total &1 54844000 170,100,000 = - (55544000) 169,400,000
Notes: Mt -

(1) Commencing from the date of vesting up to the date falling on

3 years from the date of vesting of the share options, all shares

comprised in the share options can be exercised at any time.

(2) Being Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric.

During the year, no share option was cancelled under the

Share Option Scheme.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share option
was granted, exercised, reclassified, lapsed or cancelled under

the New Share Option Scheme.

Details of the grant of share options to the Directors of the
Company are disclosed in the sub-headed “Long Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” under the
section of "DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES" above.

During the year, no share options were cancelled under the

Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are disclosed in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the related party transactions fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected

transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements and results for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and is satisfied that these have
been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and fairly presented the Group's financial positions

and results for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

on pages 62 and 69 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 51 to
84 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited
Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Bl {Z&EMiR &

311 Gloucester Rd,

TO THE MEMBERS OF VALUE CONVERGENCE
HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERZRERAT

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 125 to 319, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

FEXPH(ER) GHMEBHAERAE
HLTE31155
EERREREASKRITE

BVALUE CONVERGENCE
HOLDINGS LIMITED
BERZRERATZZEERR
(REEZFMA L BRAE])

EREBRERAR (ERA) REWNEBA
AATHBEIERE]) WA/

AV BRREBER_ZT_=F+_A
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from

money lending services

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 166 to 173.

The key audit matter
HRESSR

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had accounts
receivable from money lending services with carrying
amount of approximately HK$165,977,000. The
Group has identified loans based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
RZTE_=F+-A=+—H ' EXEEXERE
AR 75 2 e W BR 3 2 BRI {549 /3165,977,000/8 7T
EEEREEVSERREL TR MEREL N
BEBEDRBRMBRER -

The assessment of impairment for accounts
receivable from money lending services involves
significant management judgements and estimates
on the amount of expected credit loss at the
reporting date.

AR B MERRTS 2 RUWBR R 2 RER S R EEE
HRERHEREEBESBEEDLERHE &G
At

FHREXSE (#)
B AR 75 B W AR FURL B 2 18

BRMRAV SRR 2N EI66AEEFE
1738 2 TR o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ETNMEREZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group's
forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL") model used
to estimate the impairment loss.
BANEARFEETER EEEAGKREER
FARELEREEEE ((RBEEBE]) EXAAN
R 3% N 1 o -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management, practices and key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, and
assessed the Group's impairment provisioning policy in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on (i) the use
of reasonable and supportable credit risk information
that is available without undue cost or effort; and
(ii) the staging criteria for determining if a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred.

HMEEGY BEX£EEERRER FHERME
AEZEBRBEREROTE L h S£EERE
ERVBMELERNEORRTE L MERBHRR - BT
HEEBEHOEABAMNE T KBRS /) ENAE
FrEBRRAXENEERREN  R(INETEEMR
e BB BREIE NN D EBIREEL 2 H K -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RREZSE(H)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from Hk 15 B 75 P& W BR OB (B B 4 (48)

money lending services (continued)

The key audit matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPWESNAEEZEE

We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk and
the basis for classification of exposures into the three
stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

BAEAE EEEREECGFEERRETEREZFEZNK
KRR EA=ARRNELEZTTAHE - HAXNAH
BERETEFAHEN UEE SEEEETHER

DFE o

We have evaluated the Group’s estimation methodology
of expected credit losses, and checked the parameters
to external data sources where available, including the
price volatility of selected underlying collateral, valuation
of the collateral and other sources of cash flows, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group's assessment.
BMEFE EEEMNEHEEEBERMG A LKk
EABGHINER B B OR B8R - 5B EHEBER M
ZERES BERARGERRERENEMEIR I
HEaREENEHRR SR LE SREEMTH
fELLER ©

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures
relating to the Group's exposure to credit risk.
BZMTERHERE ESEEYEERRMOMERE
WEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 160 to 164.

The key audit matter
HRETBE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, comprising unlisted equity investments, of
approximately HK$16,439,000.
R-B_=%+_A=+—8"
FEINGEREEMZEBRAREECHMBEERTE
I EM AR K 4916,439,000/8 7T ©

We have identified the valuation of the investment
in unlisted equity securities included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as a key audit matter since significant
judgements and estimates, including use of
significant unobservable inputs, have been used in
the fair value estimations by the management at the
end of the reporting period.

BT AR R FET R REEAM 2 ERAREZE
CHMBEERNZIELTRAZEFRE 2 HEBIA
BREFEE ARAEREEMRARBEHRZA
FERRKAERAEG G  BEERTAIHER
ABIE o

BREEZEE (&)
RAVEIRREHEHMEZEARKAREE
ZHBEEZMEE
FLHEEMBERRMAIRFIC0OEESE
1648 2 G5TINE o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
reasonable of judgements and estimates, including
selection of valuation technique and use of significant
unobservable inputs adopted in the fair value estimation
by the management.

BB FE EHHE RE 2SRRI E R
BREREBEMTATFEZBIETIMEZ HERMN K
FIsRA 2 ERTAI B R AR ©

We have also reviewed the methodology and the input
data used with reference to the latest market data.
BPMEZ2REHTSEE WS ABZ A ERE
ANEUE o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and our agreed
terms of engagements, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the

Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5589

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z48EEEREMB2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1t—BILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aF FERT FHET

Revenue g 5 76,138 73,281
Other income H U A 5 2,446 3,168
Other gains or losses, net Hith Uy 25 sk 548 % 58 7 (129,018) (162,306)
Impairment losses on accounts FEWBR R 2 B &8

receivable, net HER 25 (137,586) (10,212)
Impairment losses on goodwill Bz REERE 16 (694) -
Reversal of impairment losses on H h lE W AR R 2 R B

other receivables, net ES1E R O] )55 26 - 5123
Staff costs B I A 8 (57,417) (43,062)
Commission expenses MemMx (7,766) (3,019)
Depreciation of property and equipment #%¥ MREIFE 19 (906) (1,018)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 21 (7,150) (7,055)
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fth # i & 2= # 17 (215) -
Finance costs BE B 11 (3,766) (3,236)
Other operating expenses H a2 (27,724) (29,926)
Share of profit of an associate DiE—EBERF 2

it A 61 96

Loss before tax bR i A ES 18 (293,597) (178,166)
Income tax credit FrisfiE e 12 5,399 74
Loss for the year FEEE 13 (288,198) (178,092)
Other comprehensive expenses FREAMPEMAX

for the year
ltems that will not be classified HietarBzBak

subsequently to profit or loss: ZMEH
Fair value change of financial assets RAFEIIEREHAM

at fair value through other FHEHBAREE I

comprehensive income BEEZAFEE 23 (6,153) (581)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HEBINERE ZE X

foreign operations =% (90) (571)
Total comprehensive expenses FE2EMAX

for the year B (294,441) (179,244)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z48EEEREB2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-_—Ff1+-_A=1+—BLHFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 FERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to: INTATEIEFEESRE :
Owners of the Company KRR A (287,754) (178,091)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 2 (444) M
(288,198) (178,092)
Total comprehensive expenses for the ~ AT AT EEEE
year attributable to: P> 4878 -
Owners of the Company RATEER A (293,994) (179,262)
Non-controlling interests FEIER M AR (447) 18
(294,441) (179,244)
Loss per share (HK cents) SR E B OBL) 15

Basic and diluted BEARREE (12.05) (8.57)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&MEHRAR

As at 31 December 2023
RZBZ=F+=A=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- %
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FHET FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Goodwill kS 16 7,630 2,016
Trading rights R oK 18 - -
Other intangible assets Hith | & B 17 4,287 1,246
Interest in an associate R—HEBEAF 2z
Eam 22 838 777
Property and equipment LEYNET 19 1,487 2,275
Statutory deposits EEERE 20 1,518 1,518
Rental and utility deposits HekEZE 523 1,608
Right-of-use assets EREEE 21 7,170 8,775
Financial assets at fair value through RATEINRRER
profit or loss HREECHEEE 24 12,700 18,100
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEINERER
other comprehensive income ftb 2 E A K R B
ZUBEE 23 16,439 22,592
Deferred tax assets EIEFIE & E 29 143 -
52,735 58,907
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 1,339 713
Accounts receivable JE Uk BR 3k 25 312,861 394,081
Prepayments, deposits and other FRRIE - Re REA
receivables JiE UK BR 5k 26 29,363 22,296
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEHNERERIER
profit or loss HERECUBEE 24 155,133 300,595
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 27 17,721 32,309
516,417 749,994
Current liabilities pIR=Ri
Accounts payable B BR 3R 28 3,429 5,235
Accrued liabilities and EEtaBEREM
other payables FEASTBR 3K 28 23,204 18,162
Margin loan payables ERIREBLE X 28 20,838 18,470
Convertible bonds AIMRES 30 = 5912
Lease liabilities HERE 21 6,967 5,308
Tax payable e TR = 3,952
54,438 57,039
Net current assets REBEEFRE 461,979 692,955
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 514,714 751,862
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&8MBEHRAR

As at 31 December 2023
RZBEZ=F+=A=+—H

2023 2022
—g== —EF-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
lliFza FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBABE 29 537 97
Lease liabilities i = 21 895 4,115
1,432 4,212
Net assets EEFE 513,282 747,650
Capital and reserves BEXARRFEE
Share capital AR 32 1,810,848 1,760,344
Reserves {1 (1,297,131) (1,012,706)
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AQATEE A
Company BibEs 513,717 747,638
Non-controlling interests FIEBRES (435) 12
Total equity ERARE 513,282 747,650
The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 319  S125BZ FI19HBEAH 2R E M B MK L

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter

BRI %%
Director

EF

EEgRN_ZE_ME=A=-+ N\ B ERE

TiT YA TIEERREE:

Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
EEILAE
Director

EF
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Attrbutable to owners of the company

129

FAAREARE
Convertible Investments Share Non-
Share Capitel bonds  Exchange revluation option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital resere Tesere Tesere Tesere Tesere Tesere losses Totl  interests Total
T8k R&
B&  BARE  @RBE  EEBE  EfEE BRERE  EpREE  RHER Bt FERREE it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Th Th T T T T Thrn Thr Th Th Th
(note o) (note b)
At 1 lanay 2003 R-%-25-F-8 176034 123758 1,565 (590) (185042 4604 (T67)  (95623)  TAT638 T
Loss forthe year FREE - - - - - - - (287754)  (287,754) (444)  (288,198)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year EREBZARR
Fair value oss on finenci assets RATEARRALN
atflr velue through ofher SHUARRE L HBEEL
comprehensive income (nofe 23) AEERME2) - - - - (6153) - - - (6153) - (6153)
Exchange diferences on tianslaon of BEEIEHL
foreign operations Eizg - - - 87) - - - - (87) ) (90)
Totd comprefensive expense ERRERRAE
forthe year = = = @) 615) = - (81T (29399) (aa7)  (294441)
Recognition of equity-setfed
share option expense (note 33) - - - - - 11,134 - - 11,134 - 11,134
Issue of share upon conversion of
convertble bonds (note 30) 644 - (144) - - - - - 500 - 500
Issue of consideration shares 13,863 - - - - - - - 13,863 - 13,863
Issue of shares by placement 36,000 - - - - - - - 36,000 - 36,000
Release upon cancellation of convertible bonds 2 - - (1421) - - - - - (1421) - (1421)
Release upon disposal of & subsicary DAmER - - - - - - 305 (305) - - -
Transacton costs ttbutable o iste RREMEARG
ofshares by plecement LRAHA ) - - - - - - - ) - )
Reversal of share option resenve upon RERERY/ *HTAR
foreiture/lapse of share options BREERE - - - - - (4,650) - 4650 - - -
331 Decerbe 2003 ABTZEETRIT-E 18088 123758 S @) 9L%) T () (139683)  SIINT O (@35) 513282
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Attributable to owners of the company
ARAREARG
Convertible Investments Share Non-
Share Capital bonds  Exchange  revaluation option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital fesere Tesere Tesere Tesere Tesere Tesere [osses Totl  interests Total
T8k R&

Bx  ERBE  BERE  ENBE  EMBE  BREEE  HfEE  RHFR B FEREE it

HKS 000 HK 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000

Th T Tin T T Thrn Thr Th Th Th T

(note 0) (note b)

At T January 2022 RZBZZE-f-H 1760344 123,758 1565 - (1844e1) 4739 (167)  (778278) 926,900 (6) 926,894
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - - (178091)  (178,091) 0 (17809)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FREMRARR
Fair value oss on finencil assets at BRATEISRELY
farvelue through other comprehensive income~~ 2ERAKRE 21
(note 23) AHRER( - - - - (581) - - - (581) - (581)
Exchange differences on translefon of forelgn ~—~~ REBIEHLELZE
operations - - - (590) - - - - (590) 19 (571)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRRERELE

= = = (0 () = - (709 (119260) 18 (17924)
Transer of share option eserve upon REREXUMERERERE
[epse of share options - - - - - (135) - 135 - - -
At31 December 2022 R-2--81-Azt-R 176034 123758 1,565 (59) (185042 4604 (167)  (956234) 747638 T80
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Notes:
(a) Capital reserve

(b)

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reorganisation, which became
effective on 28 May 2003, the High Court of Hong Kong had
approved the reduction of the capital of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and the cancellation of the
Company's share premium account. The credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital account and cancellation of the
share premium account, after eliminated against the
accumulated losses, in the aggregate amount of
HK$123,758,200 was transferred to a capital reserve account of
the Company. Such capital reserve account will not be treated as
realised profits, and shall be treated as an undistributable
reserve of the Company until and unless the creditors of the
Company as at the date of the sanction are fully settled. In view
of the fact that the Company had already fully settled the
relevant debts due to the creditors, the Company is of the view

that the reserve is distributable to the Company's shareholders.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the differences between the purchase
considerations and the amounts acquired from non-controlling
interests arising from acquisitions of the remaining equity
interests of 9.90% and 8.84% in VC Capital Limited and VC

Asset Management Limited respectively completed in year 2012.

During the year, VC Asset Management had been disposed and
the related amount of other reserve approximately HK$305,000

had been eliminated.

(b)

BER-_ZTZT=FRAA -+ N\BERZEAR
BAFE - BARFERIERRERER
BRAR([AQE]) BRARFHEARAZK
17355 (B AR o HIRL AR 7N BR I o 88 AR 19 Vi (B BR P
EECERBRITEBRYHEECIHAER
123,758,200 7T - EBA KRR A 2 BEARRH

MFRBARE 2 TR DIRFE - BEE KR
EARFNZECEAZRNRERHEN
Rl - ERARBEBBENEREEAZ
BREYR SARTARE  LREHECADIK
FARRAMPER -

H AR

HibhEEREAFEEREZ Y BB ERRE
BRARDKNEREETEARAGRSAK T
29.90% [ 8.84%% A #E %5 2 g B (B B A
WEREzENE=E FHRKEBER =S
—ZFTEK

FH-EREEETECTHLE  MEMES
Z S #A305,000/8 L T # K -
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES REREY
Loss before tax Fr A0 A B4R
Adjustments for: FEIER
Interest income from authorised RERAIHE 2
institutions FE WA
Other interest income H b F) 2 WA

Interest expense on the convertible bonds  &] # i% & 3% F 2 5 52
Interest expense on margin loan payables  JE{H{R B4 B A 25

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAGEMNERX
Interest expense on bank overdraft RITEX 2 FEFX
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMTE QR W
Share of profit of an associate DAL R E) 2% A
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥ % & R EIFTE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENE
Amortisation of other intangible assets H o & B 8

Fair value change on contingent ENHAREZ R FEE

consideration payables
Unrealised loss on financial assets held- BIEEBEVWBEEZRAER

for-trading &8

Fair value change on financial assets BRAFEYRRERSRE
at fair value through profit or loss B2 MBEEZ N EER

Gain on acquisition of financial assets WHEIR A FEIIR M ERR
at fair value through profit or loss BRERIE 2 IS & BE 2 W s

Impairment loss on accounts JE W BR Sk 2 R (B S 18 F FE
receivable, net

Impairment loss on goodwill HEZREEE

Reversal of impairment loss on Hh i W BR R 2 BE B A
other receivables, net i Ri= P

Equity-settled share option expense VA B AR 32 A5F 2 i A 4 7 =2

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET

(293,597)

(877)
(1,099)
588
2,655
489
34
(2,437)
(61)
906
7,150
215

(335)

126,663

5,400

137,586
694

11,134

2022
S

—=

HK$'000
TAET

(178,166)

(120)
(829)
634
1,974
628

(96)
1,018
7,055

157,480

(500)

(9,040)

10,212

(5,123)
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2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Operating cash flows before movements in & B & & & F AT 2 K LR

working capital ERE (4,892) (14,873)
Increase in inventories FEEM (827) (713)
Increase in accounts receivable JE U5 BR R 2 3 N (51,058) (10,610)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets BRATENREREE=ERERE

at fair value through profit or loss B EE RS (G 18,799 (61,607)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - e R E M EIER

other receivables HZmD 12,066 24,561
Decrease in rental and utility deposits e kkBEER® 2D 1,085 508
Decrease in accounts payable JE& 1~ BR R 2 R (1,799) (15,942)
(Decrease) increase in margin loan ERREERZ OkL)Em

payables (206) 1,175
(Decrease) increase in accrued EEtBEREMEMNERRZ

liabilities and other payables OB ) 18 (1,342) 12,822
Cash used in operations REMARE (28,174) (64,679)
Bank interest received ERERITHE 877 120
Income tax paid ERAEH 71) (3,304)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES A EEB AR & 38 (27,368) (67,863)
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2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a WEMB AR RS
subsidiary A H R 316 -
Deposits for acquisition of a subsidiary HUWEHRBRRMMN RS (16,000) =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEYRR
through profit or loss EE=RREBECMBEE - (10,000)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at  H &% A F(E 51| 8E & £
fair value through profit or loss BaREEZHMBE
E Z P15 3IA - 37,441
Purchase of property and equipment BEMENERE (118) (327)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries  HEWB AR 2HEE
MmN F 180 5,000
Payment of statutory deposits SEERE AR - (241)
Refund of statutory deposits EERE RN = 1,786
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING RETEH (A MBES
ACTIVITIES FH (15,622) 33,659
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Proceeds from issue of shares by placement R & i 217D 2
1S 5R0R 36,000 -
Payments for transaction costs attributable 2 B Bt & i 2 17 A& 15
to issue of shares by placement FMTEAX ZR SRR (3) =
Repayment of lease liabilities HEHEAE (7,595) (7,611)
Interest paid EENRAEES (34) =
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING RMETBRES(FIR)RE
ACTIVITIES R 28,368 (7,611)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEERB L
EQUIVALENTS WA (14,622) (41,815)
Effect of exchange rate changes EXxEH & 34 (412)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FzREeERBEE£EE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HE 32,309 74,536
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZETRBASEE
AT END OF THE YEAR HH 17,721 32,309
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_T-_=F+-A=1t—HLEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency

of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") which are effective for the Group's financial
year beginning 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
October 2020 and February
2022 amendments to

HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model
Rules

—REHR
ARAR—FZREBEAMKILZARE
RAF ERONEEB AR SAAR
DA (TBERAT]) B o AR A EM S
BREELEME Z AR FRAR A
BR -8R RE -

AARZEBEBBRETER - £ B
NAIZ EBEBEHNHI 41 ©

REMBHRERAEBTTIR - BITITRAAR
REZWEEEE -

RRAFMEGREEITERME
BEEA(EBMBHREER ]

RAEE  AEBECARKAUANTHE
BEMMAE ((HEEGEHAE]) R
HIERAEE_T_=F—F—BHH%
Z I FRE LR R MEERT BB
MRS EN(TFEMBRELER])

EEUMERSENEIR  RBAY
(BE-Z-ZE+AR=
T-_F-RrEEUE
REEBFE17H 2 EE)

BRI EANZIRRER SHEEIRE
HBHREENER LS
EYLiva H

BRI ENESR B i TR

BRE RS 2R 2B RE-RFHELCE
ERAERE
ZBERE

EReHEE R B BARHENE
-¥H=
R A
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2);

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material effect on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

Impact on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give to equal
taxable and deductible temporary difference, such as
leases and decommissioning liabilities. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax assets (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary difference arising from these
transactions. The amendments shall be applied to
transactions related leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at that date. For all other transactions, the
amendments are applied to those transactions that occur

after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the financial performance and positions of the
Group, but has affected the disclosures of accounting

policies as set out in note 3.

2. RANEGREBITEBME

BEEA(HEMBREED])
(&)

B TN OCRTAE SN - AN E R AR Fh B A
REERI BBV B REENHAFE R
BEFEAKE 2 MBRE RS BRI
R/SGEMBRRABZREFEAL
BEATE-

EREBETERE 2R 2B
A-THRE-RFEEZEERE
BERZEERE | ITR2EE
BB ENF 2R IS HELER
HEEREEHIBEEE 2 VX HERABE
ZEEWE  FENHERREY LR
RFEERE 2 ERTEA IR ERRZE
WP PINMBEEREEREE B
I BREMZERIEEZGBRER
BRELEMIBEE (BIRREBRHIE
MBEN) RIELEHIBEE - 285§
ERARES R 2 2 B HA Rt e
HMERERBEFEEBA XS  MEFMEA
R ETRNZBERAEBYIRE AT
HHoHAE -BABEHEMRSIME @ %
BIEARNZEERT 27 HEMBE
BEIZS -

RER RIS @ AR E 2 BRI R
RRELEARE BTSN
GHBEZHE -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?®
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'

Amendments to HKAS 7  Supplier Finance

and HKFRS 7 Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Group.

2. RAFEGREBTEBUE

BEZQ((HBHBREERD
(7&)
CHEMEMRERZEETERY
T 8 2 Al

75 4 (B30 4% 4R AT SR A A T E M6 18 1 K
R H R RS RT B R R
8l :

BEMBHREELED KEFHRABE QA
FIOREKBEBET HAELEBZA
R E28R 28] ELEIFAE®

EEMBREEN ErERNRSHH
F165 2 1587] Ea8E

BA G ER BEaBEIERTEN
F1H2IEFT EREIAR

BEREESH
(ZEZEF)

ZHEREE] - B
WK 25— R
AHRIBERERE
BIFERZ
EHERET
AR
SRRl P R A Rt 2 FBR
F1RZBR] HAFE
ERGHEAETR HEABRERE
REEMBRSE
RERFETHR ZEFT
ER G ER
F21HR 2 EFT

Rz A S

ORI ECMOF-RB-BRUERFEBZ
FEHBEAER

2 RIZE_RF-A-BIENUERAKZ
FEARER

3 RESTEHMSAREGRZFEHRH
E

ARRAREREY - A L8 R
BRI ERAMBHREENEAKREZER
MBRRL BERTE -
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BE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
("Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of
fair value measurement are explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

3. EXEHBEES

RAMBRRIIIREET LG AEMR
BBV BBREERNRE < LI 48
B BRI AC(ES EHARRD
(TEMRAD R(EE QAR RE
ZERBEER -

I T HNEET BRI - 57 A MK
TEELRAEERE  EETERE
BIEERERRZ A FEFE -

FELRA—RERERRBIRE @ MR
BN zREZRFE-

RTFERNFERSMMS2EENTE
(XEBEHN) THLEZEFRXHPRER
THAHEEERNMMKBRRBEAX
MzE®RBIERLE) M AwmXER
ERAE KBRS E R E A ERM G
it AFEFEZHBRIXAEZE
AR -

BEREFTHEHINMT -
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company

«  has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

+  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

3.

EXERERER (&)

REEE

RAEPMBRREEARR RARBMIE
H 2 ERARENEB QR ZHMBEREK -
WMARBFFE A TER - B REIS
1

- HEREFAEAEDN:
- BE2EWREFEBmMEAENS

WZH&&%ET“@%Z%W;
P54

- AHERESEREOUZERD
3 o

HWEEEMBERAB R LA =HIZHEE
EEBARINLEREE AEESSE

A E R B HRIRE T A EHIHE
BRI ZHEAARRARBENGAE M

i8R E R H R ﬂ%ﬁgl
REFBAWMB AR ZERHIRER & LE -
%ﬁ%'iﬁ%%%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬂz
WARFAXTIBASERGZEEZB
HEGFAGEBREMEMEERARK
BEEASEIBEHARMBLARZA
BB -

Hi2EmBAZZEAKD IHEB
B ARFEERER -WEAR
al Ziﬁuﬁz)\,ﬁ@ﬁﬁ BERARRESE A
RIEE R - Bt B SRR
REREEBEALAER -
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BE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisition

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further

assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does

not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

3.

EXERERER (&)

REE%E (&)
BUER  SHNBRRAMBHRREL
HE AEREZETBRRENKEEZ
SRR B

ARBNARNMZAEEERAR
WA BN RABAEERE RS
RBUREHE  —HREA AREE
B -

EBESOHNEEWE
AEEARBERXZETEZEASS
BAR - RHRERAATHFEBEHENG
FriE s — AR EERBYIF—A
X% REMRBCEEEZRAID
NFESPR—HA BB EEN— A
UzrABRIEE BIFAETEANAZ
R -BKHEZHREETEBRRERA
TFEEEREE BEERBEEEAREEL
MBRBZFETHELEZEE - W
EEFEARACER  AZAERHNE
EXIF—IBEY  BHABENE -

BEWE
AREBREBE - ETEBREBcEER
BER HELGRZFEERARGS
BZRAFESBEEIREMBEER
MBaE BRRZRFEERBERE
ERHRBEZHEYAFE HBEER
BORZHMABINEERAE  Hit
a8k 1) 6 7 53 P K 2 108 Bl T 38k Bl B EE K
FrEfEZz ERIR FAIRE - WEX ST
CELREAREBRE RS -
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs incurred
to effect a business combination are recognised in profit

or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
business combination are recognised and measured

in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

« assets or liabilities related to the acquiree's
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits;
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

BE

Business combinations or asset acquisition

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of the acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held-for-sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard; and

lease liabilities are measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments as if the acquired
lease was a new lease at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are measured at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared

with market terms.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combination (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value
except for non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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BE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at

cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") (or groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU (or groups of CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or groups of CGU) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the CGU (or groups of CGU). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an associate
that included in the carrying amount of the investment is

set out in “investment in an associate” below.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method, except for the investments classified as held for
sale in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost.
The Group's share of the profit or loss and changes in the
other comprehensive income of the associate is
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If the
Group's share of loss of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, which determined using the
equity method together with any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a
liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.
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BE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s accounting policies conform to those of the
Group when the associate’s financial statements are used

by the Group in applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate is recognised as goodwill and is

included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
issued by the HKICPA are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate is recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The Group's share in
the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these

transactions is eliminated.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued
by the HKICPA, including the impairment requirements,
to long-term interests in an associate to which the equity
method is not applied and which form part of the net
investment in the investee. In applying HKFRS 9 to long-
term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures issued
by the HKICPA (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount
of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses
of the investee or assessment of impairment in
accordance with HKAS 28).
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

« Step 1: lIdentify the contract(s) with a customer

« Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

« Step 3: Determine the transaction price

« Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

« Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series

of distinct goods or services that are substantially same.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

« The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's

performance as the Group performs;

«  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is

created or enhanced; or

«  The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales

related taxes.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer. A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,

a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities

of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal Versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group

is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a

customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue
in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the

specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

«  Brokerage commission and other related fee from

dealing in securities

«  Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and sub-

placing commission

«  Arrangement, advisory, referral fee and other fee

income

« Insurance brokerage service

. Interest income

. Dividend income from financial assets held-for-

trading

«  Sales and marketing of digital assets

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities. Commission income is recognised at a point in
time on the execution date of the trades at a certain
percentage of the transaction value of the trades
executed. The Group provides custodian and handling
services for securities customer accounts. Fee income is
recognised when the transaction is executed and service
is completed (i.e. at a point in time), except for custodian

service fee which is recognised over time.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Corporate finance and other advisory services

The Group provides underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing services to customers for their
fund raising activities in equity and debt capital markets.
Revenue is recognised when the relevant underwriting
and placing are completed. Accordingly, the revenue is

recognised at a point in time.

The Group also provides corporate advisory services to
corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular
contract of being a corporate advisor are interdependent
and interrelated and should be therefore accounted for
as a single performance obligation. As there is
enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on
the contracts with customers regarding corporate advisory
services, the revenue is recognised over time based on
the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date. The Group provides
corporate secretary services to customers. Revenue is
recognised over time or at a point in time with reference
to the detailed terms of transactions as stipulated in the
contracts entered into with its customers and

counterparties.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Asset management

The Group provides asset management services to
customers. The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Asset management fee income is
charged at a fixed percentage per month of the net asset
value of the managed accounts under management of

the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when
there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period and it is recognised at the end of the
relevant performance period, when it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.

Insurance brokerage

The Group owns insurance broker company licence and
is entitled to conduct long term insurance business.
Insurance commission income is recognised at a point in
time of completion of dealing insurance brokerage

service.

Dividend income from financial assets held-for-trading
The Group invests mainly through purchases in the
secondary market. The management follows strictly the
internal securities investment policy and seeks the
approval from the Board, when necessary. Dividend
income from financial assets held-for-trading is
recognised when the investee company declares dividend

distribution.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Sales and marketing of digital assets

Revenue from sales and marketing of digital assets is
recognised at a point in time when control of digital
assets is transferred to customers. The Group facilitates
upstream digital assets suppliers to sell digital assets to
downstream users. The Group does not control specific
digital assets prior to the purchase by the downstream
users. Thus, the Group is acting as an agent and

recognised the revenue on a net basis.

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
a right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at
inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise:

« fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

«  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

«  the amount expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

«  the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee

is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

«  the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using revised discount rate.

« the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a

revised discount rate is used).

«+ a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date and any initial
direct costs, less lease incentives received. Whenever the
Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and
remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
“Provision, Contingent Liabilities and a Contingent Assets".
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
They are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the

lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any

identified impairment loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in business combination with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers issued by the HKICPA.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and
FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for

managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

«  the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

«  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are

subject to impairment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt

instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowance.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so

that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the “Other income” line item (note 5).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held-for-trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred

to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Revenue” line

item in profit or loss.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically:

«  Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held-for-trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business

combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

«  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any
debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 37.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

< on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on accounts receivable, and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of

the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable from dealing in securities transactions,
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services
and contract assets. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money

where appropriate.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’'s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

« existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability

to meet its debt obligations;

3.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

+ an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

+  significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

+ an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
(except for term loans where a longer period of “past
due” has been applied by the directors of the Company
in view of the nature of the operation of the business
and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default,
(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and
(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when the asset
has external credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if
an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is

no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable:

«  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

debtor; or

« information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due, (except for term loans where a
longer period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors of the Company in view of the nature of the
operation of the business and practice in managing the
credit risk) unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

+  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

. the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

+ it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the

reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXERBEEN (H)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) TREE (&)
Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) B EREE)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for financial assets that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial

asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

AAEREREBEEER (&)
AEERBRFEERMESREBRE
Wk Eig  YABRERRYKREE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
b2 EBARRIEZ BB EERI -
%E&ﬁBMEMEEWA%uiﬁﬁ
AREBEEGRE MATENEEMB
RRFZINRI BB E 2 BREE °

BUHERM B A E
AEBEEERKBMBEEREREZ
BHRENER  NEBUBEETER
RAMBOBEEHAERRKRE®RT S —
AR FERERRMBEE - WAKE
MEERTERBBALBSEEERR
REHRIWEEEHEEREE  BIAE
EHERENEECREER R E A8
BAXfz e BRAMEAR - WAKE
% BEREERABOBEAERAR K
HAAEEEERAMBEELRR
EW%%ﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁFﬁo



174

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2023 &%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %8 BT8R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_T-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

BE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In
addition, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but

is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity

instruments.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out

below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised

costs

Financial liabilities that are not (1) contingent
consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
(2) held-for-trading, or (3) designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is

included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised. Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year which the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a

deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. ERSHBERER (E)
(continued)

Foreign currencies Hh s

In preparing the financial statements of each individual NGRS EAREEETE Y M BRERE -
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the PASZ B BE T L 1S KK DL AN B R (P ER)
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are BT R SRSy ERERR
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the EABBIL S (TR KA T
currency of the primary economic environment in which FELEM G ) AR o R IRE
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing K LAVNEFE 2 E¥IERYIRZA
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the EEERSFHRE - A FESE R I
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign INEFEZIEERIERARATESST
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that Az EREREHINE - RN BE
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are A EEEBIBEEHASTHHE o

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of REEEBIEE R ENKEEKIEE R
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary EAEZERESEHARNES ZBERNIESR
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in BEFRFER o

which they arise.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and other
eligible persons. Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at

the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). The Group measures the
recharge based on the fair value of the equity
instruments of the Company at the grant date and
allocates that recharge to each subsidiary based on the
proportion of services received. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting condition.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss. When the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Shares awarded to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of shares awarded at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (awarded

shares compensation reserve).

When The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust (“Trust”)
purchases the Company's shares from the open market,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for share
purchase scheme and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of the
Company's own shares. When the Trust transfers the
Company's shares to grantees upon vesting, the related
costs of the granted shares vested are reversed from
shares held for share purchase scheme. Accordingly, the
related expense of the granted shares vested is reversed
from awarded shares compensation reserve. The
difference arising from such transfer is debited/credited

to accumulated losses.

When the share awards are forfeited before the vesting
date, the amount previously recognised in awarded
shares compensation reserve will be reversed

immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of
property and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on

the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly

observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective

fair value measurement.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the

grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF") are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities" carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or

permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment, right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than impairment of goodwill set out in
accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and
demand deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
are short-term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather for investment or other

purposes.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial

statements.

4.

B8 S o 4 BT % fh 5t A E M

ZEBRIR

IR R RE3 ATl A S B 2 IR
RRARERAR KA H M ARE SR
BrAERABREAEELHE - A5
BB - st RAABER T AR S5
RERABEHZEMRRALE - &
BRERA BB AR UL S -

At RAAABRREFERT o WEEH
FHERTEZ EZ A BIRETeke
At HIEER - WRETRBEES
HI N R - BZER] @ RSEEET
HAME e R 2R HR R R ©

nlll

FE A st BUR B R 2 B 8 ¥ i

TXHIARRESRNERAASES
BRZBEFMEL  AHEAMBR
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group is considered as an agent for its contract with
customers relating to the sales and marketing of digital
assets as the Group did not obtain the control over digital
assets before passing on to customers taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is not
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise and not
exposed to inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises a
commission revenue in the amount it expects to be
entitled. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recognised commission revenue relating to sales
and marketing of digital assets amounted to
HK$2,823,000 (2022: HK$2,062,000).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

4.

REe AR AT ARES
ZEBRR (&)

FEAHERBAZEZERE

HARARBRER R F A &G B80S
BEZEHE AEEREETFEH
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts receivable are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, bases on the
number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Group's historical experience
and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2023, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable from securities transactions, provision of
corporate finance and other advisory services, money
lending services, asset management service, insurance
brokerage service and sales and marketing of digital
assets approximately HK$139,889,000, HK$539,000,
HK$165,977,000, HK$5,917,000, HK$225,000 and
HK$314,000 (2022: HK$167,218,000, HK$3,770,000,
HK$223,019,000, nil, nil and HK$74,000) respectively,
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$51,372,000, HK$3,646,000, HK$171,748,000, nil,
nil and nil (2022: HK$7,873,000, HK$2,945,000
HK$78,362,000, nil, nil and nil) respectively.

4.

REetAE R AT ARES
ZEERR (&)

& 5 FE WBR ROR B
EWEFRERE I LAEEBREERE
BZRBREREE AEEREEZER
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139,889,000 Jt * 539,000/ T
165,977,0007% 7T ~ 5,917,000/% 7T
225,000 7T &314,0008 L (ZE ==
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JT 223,019,000 T - &  |ER
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of certain tax losses of approximately
HK$938,637,000 (2022: HK$665,734,000) and
deductible temporary difference of approximately
HK$6,720,000 (2022: HK$6,302,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisable of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, or changes
in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxation profits estimation, a material recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a recognition

takes place.

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI

As described in note 36, the directors of the Company
use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. For convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI, assumptions
are made based on inputs not quoted in an active market
adjusted for specific features of the instrument. If the
inputs and estimates applied in the model are different,

the fair value of these financial instruments may change.

4.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI
(continued)

The carrying amounts of the convertible bonds
investment and financial assets at FVTOCI and as at 31
December 2023 were approximately HK$12,700,000
(2022: HK$18,100,000), and HK$16,439,000 (2022:
HK$22,592,000). The directors of the Company believe
that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions
are appropriate in determining the fair value of these

financial instruments.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue principally arises from the (i) financial services
which consists of the provision of securities brokering and
dealing, provision of margin financing and money lending
services, provision of placing and underwriting services,
mergers and acquisitions services, and corporate finance
and other related advisory services, (ii) proprietary
trading, (iii) asset management, (iv) insurance brokerage

service, and (v) sales and marketing of digital assets.

4.
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5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

5. WaEmkEMmUA ()

195

2023 2022
—ZE-= —E- %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER T T
Revenue from contracts with customers & 7 B 7% 3R & 2 8
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BISHEERNEEFITLEN
2
Disaggregated by major services lines BREZREE D
— Brokerage commission and other related —BE&E#HAFMELELEERE
fees from dealing in securities A8 & A 4,414 6,792
— Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing — 8 7 8#  BEEKk
and sub-placing commission SEERE 1,459 4,256
— Asset management —BEER 2,165 -
— Arrangement, referral, advisory and —ZH - #N - ER R
other fee income HhERKA 4,813 7,001
— Insurance commission income —REBEE KA 6,663 —
— Sales and marketing of digital assets —BISEEHEREE 2,823 2,062
22,337 20,111
Revenue from other sources REHAMKIEZ W=
— Interest income from clients - RERFPZFBEIA 53,801 52,920
— Dividend income from listed equity —RESEREAFEIERER
securities classified as financial assets TERRERREECMBEEZ
at FVTPL F AT 2 BRBHA - 250
53,801 53,170
76,138 73,281
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5

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of recognition

5. W@mRkEMUEA ()

BEEFITLEHNFERE ZHR

i 8 & 2

2023 2022
—Eg-= —_E_—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Timing of revenue recognition s 2 T 2R B
At a point in time B — 1] B P 26 15,685 13,488
Over time 7 — B By Al A 6,652 6,623
22,337 20,111

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) is
approximately HK$2,110,000 (2022: HK$1,825,000).
The amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from corporate finance advisory
service. The Group will recognise this revenue as the
service is provided, which is expected to occur over the
next 12 months (2022: 12 months). The above amounts
do not include variable consideration which is

constrained.

BXEEIRERGZ2BNERE

RZTEZ=F+ZA=+—H0 HkEZE
KRBT (XBORBIT) 2BANERZ
RPHERTEHA2,110,0008 T (=T
Z =% : 1,825,000 70) ° KB AETE
HAR R SR T aR 2 (b S Bl & I H fth /B8 e AR
B2 e o NEE AR MRS R R
s - B A RRI2EAREE
(Z2EZZ=F :128R) - L &BTE
BEXHO 2T #RE -



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2023 &£}

197

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & It F8RFRMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=Ft+t_A=1—HUIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

5.

5. WaEmkEMmUA ()

Other income Hi g A

2023 2022
—_E-= —EF-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest income from authorised institutions 7 B 32 8] ## 2 | 2 Uk A 877 120
Other interest income EH R B A 1,099 829
Total interest income B A 4B 58 1,976 949
Government grants (note) BT % Bh (A7 57) 430 2,192
Sundry income FEIEW A 40 27
2,446 3,168
Note: During the year 31 December 2023, the Group Flit - BE2—_ZT-_=%F+-_A=+—H1

recognised government grants of nil (2022:
HK$1,480,000) related to Employment support Scheme
in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies and
HK$430,000 (2022: HK$552,000) related to Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resource Management Job Creation
Scheme provided by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic
Fund. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those

subsidies.

FE 0 ANE B BCOVID-194H BF # B
RIS RIRREIFTE BT
AT (ZZE =% :1,480,000/7T)
ESREBEINTRERFZHZ
NEES T ZEBANERERS
CTREBUGFECHRBTHD A
430,000 7T (=ZZ = =4 : 552,000
BIT) MR EEEBIME  WEXRE
B2 MBS AR R LA B SR 2R 1A o
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are organised and
managed separately, according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of the other operating segments.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by different business lines.

Information reported to the Group’s Executive Committee,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment is prepared on this basis. The Group has
identified the following six reportable segments under

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments as follows:

(i) the brokerage and financing segment engages in
securities brokering and dealing, provision of margin
financing and money lending, and placing and

underwriting services;

(i) the corporate finance and other advisory services
segment engages in provision of corporate financial

advisory services and company secretarial services;

(i) the asset management segment engages in provision

of asset management services;

2 EWER
AEEESEEEBTIRIRMERRR
B EHEBRERE S A —
ERBEEBEN  HRBZEMRRY
FTE S 2 AR EHRI 2 B®  BRIRE
fib 48 & 53 & o

R

AEBURBOMEER
RIXMARDHE -

X AR

MASRERITEZEES (BIEBEERR
E(XEZEBREED)ERZERTY
ARBERD R RRFTE - Wik Ll E
RS c NEBECREBEBE BV HRELE
AIEssR eI T T EET
WEDHHOT -

() BEEBEXHDMUEFTESFELRL
REE RERESBRERNE -
AR ERBHERE ;
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RERHEXREBMRY QA
WE RS
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. THEFR (&)
(iv) the insurance brokerage segment engages in (iv) IREREAC TG 2 2B SRR AL
provision of insurance brokerage services; WLARTS
(v) the proprietary trading segment engages in trading (v) BLEBXEBOIBREREIZS -
of equity securities, debt securities and other EREFNEMEHEREE &

financial products; and

(vi) the sales and marketing of digital assets segment (Vi) BISEEHEREEEES RS
engages in earning commissions from facilitating the BRARHEETFECHISEEER
sales of trading of digital assets in electronic mEE A -

platform.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER (&)
The following tables presented revenue and results of TR EZ2_E_=FR T -
these reportable and operating segments for the years +ZA=+—RAEFEZFAETHRERE
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. BRSNS S ER o
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-E-=F+-A=+—HLEE
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary Digital  Segment
financing services management  brokerage trading assets total  Eliminations Total
tERE
B8R REMER BE Re HE  HBEE
HEXE  REER  EERE  ELRR  HERE 3 H &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAR THR ThAR ThR ThR ThR ThR ThAR ThR
Segment revenue A8l 50674 4813 2165 6663 - 2823 76,138 - 76138
Intre-segment sales AHEHER 720 922 - - - - 1,642 (1,642) -
60,394 5,735 2,165 6,663 - 2,823 71,780 (1,642) 76,138
Segment loss HHEE (110,531)  (5,788) (630) (274) (132370)  (2,815) (252,408) - (252,408)
Unallocated administrative
coss ARAEKA (38,287)
Fairvalue changeon -~ RATFEFIHR
financial assets at FVTPL A BEEBER
LIHEEL
ATEEY (5,400)
Gainon disposal of ~ HEHBAA
subsidiaries paici 2,437
Share of profitofan  AHEBELE
associate LT 61
Loss before tax R AR (293,597)




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2023 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & It F8RFRMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_T-_=F+-A=1t—HLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

6.

Other segment information H it 2 5 & B
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary Digital  Segment
financing services management  brokerage trading assets total -~ Adjustments Total
i
Bk REMER BE RE HE  HBEE
REXE  RERR  EERE  GEX¥  BERH iK% oREd LS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TER TR THER TR THER ThEn
(note)
(Hit)
Amounts incuded inthe 5t S P BAE
measure of segment  FTAZEE:
profit or loss:
Net realised and REBERKE
unrealised loss on EZEERR
financial assets AERERT
held-for-trading 8 = = = = 126,663 = 126,663 - 126,663
Interest income from ~~ RERT#iE2
authorised institutions ~ FIEHA (720) (116) 31 - - - (867) (10) (877)
Interest income from AR EH 27
convertible bonds ERA - - - - - - - (200) (200)
Staff costs BIRA 11,771 4,795 1,006 536 - 2,673 20,781 36,636 57,417
Commission expenses B H X 1,227 - - 6,330 33 - 7,590 176 7,766
Depreciation of property  #1% Rk BT E
and equipment 55 324 - 1 - 60 440 466 906
Impaimentlosson ~ EYREEFNZ
accounts receivable,  HEBEFE
net 136,076 1,510 - - - - 137,586 - 137,586
Finance costs HERA 30,198 - - - 6,791 - 36989 (33712 3217
Amounts regularly EARRTAEE
provided to the Group's  Hi{TZE & (B3t
Erecutive Commitee ~ EAHERET
but notincluded inthe ~ zfAZ £%:
measure of segment
profit or loss:
Additions to non-current - ¥ FEBEETE
assets 5615 21 - 10 - 17 5,663 - 5,663
Depreciation of FREEENE
right-of-use assets 2,026 - - - - - 2,026 5,124 7,150
Interest expenses on~~ HEBHEZ
lease liabilites HERX 196 - - - - - 196 293 489
Income tax expenses  FIEHE T
(credit) (£%) (3,952) - - - - 71 (3881)  (1,518)  (5399)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER ()

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z_—_+-_A=+—RALEE
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary Digial ~ Segment
financing ~ senices management  brokerage trading assets total  Eliminations Total
BER  REMER £E R AE  HBLE
HEXE  BEEH ERER GEER BERK 2% HEd Hi# @3t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR iR TR i TR i TR
Segment revenue AEliE 63,968 7,001 - - 250 2,062 73,281 - 73281
Itrasegment sales ~ ABHHEER - 782 - - - - 782 (782) -
63,968 1783 = = 250 2,062 14,063 (782) 73,281
Segmentproft (loss) ~ AEEH (BR) 2948 (3175 (1710) (502) (173725 (8198) (164362) - (164360)
Unallocated FARTBRE
administrative costs (23,440)
Fair value change of ~ RATEFIER
financial assets at EERkRE
ATPL LHHEEL
ATEED 500
Gain on acquisition of W& A TE3|
financial assets at BRERRR
FVTPL REZHEE
B2 W& 9,040
Share of profitofan ~ HEBHEREZ
associate it 96
Loss before tax hHHEE (178,166)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

BE—
6.

6. THEFR (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (continued) BE_Z-_F+_A=1+—HILFE (&)
Other segment information Hith 5 HE R
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary Digtal  Segment
financing ~ semices management  brokerage frading assets total  Adjustments Total
i3 $40
ek REGER BE R ag  HBEE
BEXE  RBER  EEER  BEXK  BEER % o9EH LS @it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR Titn Thn Titn T Tk T
(note)
(Hit)
Amounts incuded in the 58 AP ERE
measure of segment  HfAZEE:
profit or loss:
Net realised and REBERBE
unrealised loss on EZBERR
financial assets RERRE
held-for-trading 8 = = = = 171,711 = 171,711 = 171,711
Interest income from ~ RERAEEL
authorised institutions ~~ F|8MA (84) 2) 3 - - - (109) ) (120)
Interest income from AR ESZ
convertible bonds HEWA = = = = = - - (197) (197)
Staff costs BIAA 10,439 4991 1,504 509 - 104 0667 2395 4308
Commission expenses &R X 3,003 - - - 15 - 3018 1 3019
Depreciation of property 915 kit /&
and equipment e 58 330 - - - 61 449 569 1018
Impaiment losson~ EREEFZ
accounts receivable, net  FEBEFE 9,641 1,295 - = = = 10936 (724) 10212
Finance costs HENA 33,188 - - - 4485 - 37673 (35,065) 2,608
Amounts regularly EARRTAR
provided to the Group's  E#77ZE &
Bxecutive Commitee  BEEHE
butnot included in the XKL
measure of segment  KifAZ
profit or loss: 28
Additions to non-current JEEBEERE
assets 88 115 = = = = 203 124 327
Reversal of impaiment ~ EtEREH 2
loss on other RERE
recevables Bm = = = = = - - (5123) (5,123)
Depreciation of fERERENE
fight-of-use assets - = = = = - - 7055 7055
Interest expenseson -~ HEBEZ
lease liabilies ELR - = = = = - - 628 628
Income tax expenses  FIETHER
(credit) (£%) 3 - - - = = 31 (105) (74)
Note: Adjustments include the unallocated administrative costs Mt REREYTEEESEZRE(Z
that are not directly allocated to the six (2022: six) T F RNE)REDE 2R

operating segments and also represent the intra-group
sales, finance costs and management fee which are
eliminated at consolidation.

BATBARAE - BINTFR B AR S A

REHHZEE

MERARERE -

NARIEHERE
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by/loss from each segment, before the deduction
of unallocated administrative costs, fair value change of
financial assets at FVTPL, loss on disposal of subsidiaries
and share of profit of an associate. This is the measure
reported to the Group's Executive Committee for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as they
are not regularly provided to the Group's Executive

Committee.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong
(country of domicile) and the People's Republic of China
(the "PRC"). Almost all of its non-current assets and other
than financial instruments are attributed to the operations

in Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the

operations.

&
¥

& (&)
52 & FTBUR B 3T 2
BE—H - DEERESD
BRI 2R EEZER WA
DEATHKAR « A TFEIERERE
FRECHBEEL A TEE
MBARZEBRIEHENFZ
wA o b RAKBAITEE G HE N
HAMERRTERRZEE -

:
IS

]
B Y

E'It

okt

$ MR
%Em

EE i
DFFFF E)I

ﬂ

HRAOHEERABLETEMERTA
SERTERES  HUEZINEMER -

ith & & B
AEBEBURES (FEH) RP#E
ARLME ([HE]) - EBAEH Ik
RBEE (BEREBINHEEBE
BHE -

BRAKEXEIIBELZKEZZER
BREBHEHRZT -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IHEHR (&)
Geographical information (continued) & &R (&)
2023
—E-=F§
Revenue
from
contracts From
with other
customers sources Total
EEEW
Wz HaRR Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TAET

Hong Kong B 19,514 53,801 73,315
The PRC A [ 2,823 - 2,823
Total it 22,337 53,801 76,138
2022
—_E_-—
Revenue
from
contracts From
with other
customers sources Total
BEPEK
e HAw 2R @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET

Hong Kong BB 18,049 53,170 71,219
The PRC A Y 2,062 - 2,062

Total RET 20,111 53,170 73,281
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group

are as follows:

Customer A’ (note)

6. TEEH (&)
FREIEREFZEN

BEPA (B6t)

2023

—E-=

HK$'000
TERT

8,458

REEFETMASERKEEBI0%
ZEPWEIT

2022
— — —

—_—

HK$'000

TET

Nil £

! Revenue from the segment of brokerage and financing 1

Note: There was no customer over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET

P &L -

#10%

7. HitliHmRNEEFE

KB &L RBERE D

HE-_T-_—_F+=—A=+—H1
FEVTERFABAE@BUER

2023 2022

—EC-=F T 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FHET

Net exchange loss EREEFRE Q) (135)
Gain on acquisition of financial assets Wi A TFEIR R ERRE

at FVTPL B 2 M EE 2 Wk - 9,040
Fair value change of financial assets BRAFEINRRERRKREIE

at FVTPL LB EE L AT EEE (5,400) 500

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HE&EWEB AR 2w (K:£38) 2,437 =
Net realised and unrealised loss on RIEBEBVKEECE#RK

financial assets held-for-trading REREERFE (126,663) 71,711)

Others EHAh 609 -

(129,018)  (162,306)
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8. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8. EIRA(BIEEEMS)
EMOLUMENTS)
2023 2022
—EZ=F —EFT-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Staff commission S8If& 2,235 2,216
Salaries and wages HekIE 40,002 36,787
Staff welfare BT®EA 2,674 2,604
Recruitment costs REE K A 21 43
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K48 | 5t 2 4 7% 846 833
Discretionary and performance related HIsRB\EEES R
incentive payments and provision of 205 B 2 B A
gratuity 369 514
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 7R 3 A5 2 B R e Bl <2 11,134 -
Other staff benefits H 8 TR 136 65
57,417 43,062

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in

December 2001. The assets of which are held in

separate trustee-administered funds.

Both the Group and the employees contribute a fixed
percentage of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.
The contribution by the Group is capped at HK$1,500

per employee per month and is expensed as incurred.

A TR & 5 RS

REEERDIER -

AEEHTR_ZFT—F+ - ARE(R
I 832 58 il 1 2
a8 ([REes8]) - BREE
ZEEHGERERESIRESR -

AEBREEVREBGF S ZETE D
b e st Elt R - REB 2 HE
RASZEES A1,5008 T HED
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2022: ENRENAQRS (ZTEZZ2F:9
9) directors of the Company were as follows: f)EEZMEMT :

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-E-_=5+-A=+-HLEE

Retirement
Salaries and benefits
other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contribution emoluments
ek RKEF
e HittEgFl T B “e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THER THER THR
Executive Directors HTES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter X - 2,009 18 2,027
Wong Kam Fat, Tony (note 1) B\ M) 1,182 - - 1,182
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo T - 945 18 963
Li Cindy Chen R 1,182 - - 1,182
Zhang Nu wE 1,063 - - 1,063
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Wong Chung Kin, Quentin ER/NS 216 - - 216
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH B wH 216 = = 216
Au Tin Fung, Edmund (note 3) RAE(H73) 216 - - 216

4,075 2,954 36 7,065
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EEM<E (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-_F+-A=+—HILFE

Retirement

Salaries benefits
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contribution  emoluments

ek R
ik Hip g # AT Be
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET

Executive Directors HiTEZ
Fu Yiu Man, Peter 1 183 - 2,040 18 2,058
Wong Kam Fat, Tony (note 1) 'R (M) 840 - - 840
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo BT - 960 18 978
Li Cindy Chen == 1,200 = = 1,200
Zhang Nu RE 1,080 - - 1,080
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTEE

Wong Chung Kin, Quentin EHINE 216 - - 216
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH (note 2) B85 v (22 62 - - 62
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BP0 MH 216 - - 216
Au Tin Fung, Edmund (note 3) BHE(fE3) 110 - - 110
3,724 3,000 36 6,760

Notes: W1aE -

1. Mr. Wong Kam Fat, Tony was appointed as Vice Chairman 1. EZfBRAEN T - —Fm@PA+hH
and Executive Director of the Company with effect from 19 HEEETARNARSETEERTES -
April 2022.

2. Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH was resigned as 2. EEBAEA wR T A+
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with BB ERATE T IERITES -
effect from 14 April 2022.

3. Mr. Au Tin Fung, Edmund was appointed as Independent 3. ERZELE4FNR-_ZF-_—F<A=1+N
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from BEREARATIBIIENITES -

28 June 2022.
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

9. EEME (R)

Aggregate emoluments paid

Aggregate emoluments paid to
or receivable by directors
in respect of their services as
directors, whether of the Company

to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in
connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or

or its subsidiaries undertaking its subsidiaries undertaking Total
ESHARUELANRER
EERRUCESRY EERBCHMERE (TRES
(THREREZARAFENMELE) BX EARGEMEDR)
DEY LA k4L EXNSER2HEBE et
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=F —E-= —E-=E —EF-= —EC-=H —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT THET THT THET TET THET
4,075 3,724 2,990 3,036 7,065 6,760

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
ordinary shares were awarded to the directors of the
Company under share incentive award schemes in
respect of their services provided to the Group. Further

details of which are set out in note 33.

BHE_Z_=FR_Z__F+_H
=+—RIEFEAR  SERERG ZE
HEBRARNFEEFAAEERM R
M EREEBER GHE—PFEH
FHEEE33 o
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2022: one) was the director of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 9. The emoluments of the remaining

four (2022: four) individuals were as follows:

10. AU GBS HFEERSREEE
[k

AEBRUZSFMALH  —R (=
F__F:—R)R/ARAEFT - HM
SERERMFI -HTHE(ZT -

FmBR)ALTZHMEFIWT

2023 2022

—g-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAET
Salaries and other benefits e LEMER 6,533 6,492
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR K48 K &t & 7% 72 72
6,605 6,564

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in note

9, the emoluments of the highest paid employee fell

within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

BHEMMBEBEES I MEIN o H

BEZMENF TNIHE :

Number of individuals

AB

2023 2022

—g-=f -—T--

e p—

1,500,001/ 7 £2,000,0007% 7T 4
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The senior management represents key management
personnel of the Group, other than directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in note 9. The
emoluments of the key management personnel are

included in note 39.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as inducements to join or upon

joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

10. AN GBS HFEERSREEE

B (&)

SREEENAEE TEEEAE (D
BREARBIESE  REZHMEENME
OFEE) - FTEEBEABZHMEHER
BtEE39 o

BHE_ZT_="R-_T__F+_H
=S+—HBLEFEA  ARBALEAARD
REEFALSERANRSHFALTIMNH
FERHERB® - 1ERMNBARSEE SN
By BENSEABERAE -

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B E A
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Interests on: LARIEE Z2HE :
Bank overdrafts RITHEL 34 =
Convertible bonds issued (note 30) BEITARRES (#:730) 588 634
Lease liabilities (note 21) wWEaEMZ21) 489 628
Margin loan payables R RESER 2,655 1,974

3,766 3,236
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT

12. TEHER

2023 2022
—E-= —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current tax BVEATR I8 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REBEMEDR 71 =
(Over) under provision in prior year BEFE (GBERE) BEBETR
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH (3,952) 31
(3,881) 31
Deferred tax (note 29) RIEBIIE (B 5529) (1,518) (105)
(5,399) (74)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. Hong Kong Profits
tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and
National Tax Bureau on 17 January 2019 and 2 August
2023 respectively, the small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise with an annual taxable income below
RMB1,000,000 (RMB1,000,000 included) is entitled to a
preferential tax treatment of 75% exemption of taxable
income and application of income tax rate as 20% from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2022 and further
extended from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2027,
respectively. Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were
qualified during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

BESBHNERZIMAREHE 28
1% % B B2,000,0008 Tim Fl 2 R E A
8.25% - 232,000,000/ 7T i | 2
KE165%  AEBETEERER
B AN G RSB MR E G E
o AREBEMTHEAFEHMBRTE
FIEER 2B BEERAEERE /X
16.5%R %t °

BEBEFEAREMB 2 CEMEHRE
([EEFRERE]) REEMGEEE N
&0 FRAMBARIZHEB ZZTZN
F—H—H#A25% -

BEVERIRBEREFER_ZE—NLF
—At+tt+tBER=—E-_=E /N \A-BEMH
M O FERATRABEERNRARE
1,000,0007T (& A R #1,000,0007T) &
N A ERER TS —NEF—A—
BE-_Z_—_F#+_-_A=+—H (A%
HE—SBEEHR-_T_=ZF—HF—HB=
—EEFF AT —R)EFRE
To%EMTFTISBE 2 MEERKER
20%Z FTSREFL R « AEBEHE T B
BRANBE-_TS_=ZFR-_T -

T AT —BULEFERFEBBIEGY -
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the year ended 31 December 2022 as the PRC

subsidiaries have no assessable profits.
Pursuant to the rules and regulation of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in this jurisdiction.

The tax credit can be reconciled to loss before tax per the

FrieBiiE s (&)
BRAPBIME AR EERDTERN - &
RBE_T__F+-_HA=+—HILF
B ERPBEREMSHA R -

REXRBRZES ((RBRXEES])
BRI RRG - NE BB AN ZLRERE
B2 EMAFH -

MERR ] EESBEREMEEBEA

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ECRBAEBYEMNT :
comprehensive income as follows:
2023 2022
—_E-= —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Loss before tax bR TR BT 1B (293,597) (178,166)
Calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 2 &EF BRI E16.5%
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (ZE=——% :165%)iH (48,444) (29,397)
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate 5 5B & X B % 2
M (10) (16)
Tax effect of different tax rates of R E Aty RE R R & & 2 M &8
subsidiaries operating in GIECARNGE Ay 32
other jurisdictions 24 -
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax MBIEM 5 BRI A
purpose LB (1,740) (1,995)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HREEM S AAUORAS
for tax purpose 2T 8 3,625 1,364
(Over)under provision in respect of prior B FfE (BB EE)
year BETR (3,952) 31
Tax effect of deductible temporary REERZ AT B e iy = 58
difference not recognised ZHBEE 69 21
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax By A LATE R WER 2 FIEE 1B
losses (637) (776)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERHBBEZRIETE 45,666 30,694
Tax credit for the year FEBIEKL (5,399) (74)
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13.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

13. FEEE
FREBRENER T EEETIE

2023 2022
—EBE=-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Included in other operating expenses: BEREMSERX
Auditor's remuneration Z AN & 1,694 1,707
Depreciation of property and equipment 1% MR EITE 906 1,018
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,150 7,055
Entertainment and travel expenses JE B 2= Tk ) 2
(mainly incurred for business (FEMER
development) BRMmES) 6,652 7,902
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended TERNEZ2-_E-_=F+-A=+—H
31 December 2023, nor has any dividend been TEEYNSHEZIMKE  TEAR
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2022: EHRERZEARS (ZE_ZF -
nil). ") -
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RATIHEANELRERERNRESEIE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on TR BIATEIETE -
the following data:
2023 2022
—E-= ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loss Eig
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted Bt EESREARKEE
loss per share R EE (287,754) (178,091)
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15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

15. SR EE (&)

2023 2022
—EC-=F S
'000 ‘000
TR F &
Number of shares gy 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary A EERERER
shares for the purpose of basic loss per PR 2 & AR hn g
share F 158 2,388,954 2,078,602
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EE#E TR 2 FE
— Share options — BB - =
Weighted average number of ordinary A ETREEEE
shares for the purpose of diluted loss Pt 2 & 3R AR 4
per share T8 2,388,954 2,078,602
The computation of diluted loss per share does not TEERESEEER I EEREARD AR
assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding EERFMEREFD R - AITEEBEE

convertible bonds since their exercise would result in a

MegeEyEE S - =FK T - =

decrease in loss per share for the year ended 31 FT+_A=+T—BILFEZEREER
December 2023 and 2022. The computation of diluted Lo HEBREEEBRRTERR
loss per share does not assume the conversion of the ﬂzﬁﬁﬂxﬁéaﬁﬁ : Ifﬂ?ﬁﬁ?@ﬁéﬂ&
Company's share options since their exercise would result BREHE— =FRZFE_C

in a decrease in loss per share for the year ended 31 ‘l':)EJ :+—E!JJ:¢J§ZHXJ§5TE7JEY9 z

December 2023 and 2022.
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16. GOODWILL 16. B&
2023 2022
=== —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Cost PR
As 1 January n—HA—H 2,016 2,016
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary HEH B AR MES 6,308 -
At 31 December R+=—AR=+—8H 8,324 2,016
Accumulated impairment loss 2R EEE
At 1 January m—HA—H - -
Impairment loss VERIELSEE! 694 -
At 31 December R+Z—HA=+—8~ 694 -
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 7,630 2,016

Impairment testing on goodwill and other

intangible assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
other intangible assets including SFC licence and
customer relationship set out in note 17 have been
allocated to two individual cash-generating units,
comprising one subsidiary in the insurance brokerage
business and one subsidiary in the asset management
business. The carrying amounts of goodwill and other
intangible assets (net of accumulated impairment losses)
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 allocated to these

units are as follows:

BAERAMEFLEE2RERNR

HBEARANS  AEREMELEE
(BEMTI7TAHEIBEGRBREF
BE)EDEZEMEMRNCRESELS
i HA— M ERBELERZHE
RAk—RREEEEREBIHBER
Ale pEEZEBEN  HEREMER
BE(MRARGFREER R_T_=
FEN_E-—FE+-A=+—HZEM®@
BT :
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BE (&)

BAERAMELEE 2RERNR

Impairment testing on goodwill and other

intangible assets (continued) (&)
2023 2022
—E=-= —F=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Insurance brokerage business R QL ER
Experts Management Limited (Unit A) Experts Management Limited
(EBfIA)
— Goodwill -Ag 2,016 2,016
Asset management business EEESEEY
VC International Asset Management Limited [EREIREEERFR A A
("VCIAM"; formerly name as “Anli Asset (ERHEEEEERE]:
Management Limited”) (Unit B) A BEEETE
BRAA]) (BEB)
— Goodwill - B8 5,614 -
— Other Intangible assets - HEEEE 3,041 -
8,655 =

For the purpose of impairment assessment, other SEHENRmES  EAEEE—RES
RenscHtWEREENTMNAMREZ

WEEESEM -

intangible assets that generate cash flows together with
the related goodwill are also included in the respective

cash-generating unit.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs LR eEEBEAN Yy A KESREEER
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised EXBHEBRIBANT

below:

Unit A B {IA

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based

ReELBEM 2z RESBIIRERE
EBEEEEE ETPHRERERRRK &

on value-in-use calculation which requires the use of

assumptions. The calculation used in cash flow projection
was based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period.

EhFEAZReRERAINERER &
L HEHMBEE RER -
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets (continued)

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate stated below. This growth
rate is consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports specific to the industry in which the CGU

operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
CGU:

— Budgeted gross margin
— Terminal growth rate
— Pre-tax discount rate

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development. Terminal growth rate
is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the budget period. The rate is
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks

related to the relevant unit.

~ BEERE
— XAMEE
~ BRI

16. & (&)

HERHGERLEE ZBENR
(&)
TFHPNERZBSRETIEA N ZE
FHERERER - ZERTEFGHREE
EEMNRERMETEMRRIITERS
RZIER -2

TREJINBECELBEUMAZEER

n .
X -

2023
—EBCD=F

%

5.0
2.0
13.0

AREEREENRDEEMAZEE
REXBEFEN —FMERZTFHE
ME - BREBAMENEZ RERTS
ERMIB M - KABRE S —IANEF
HREER AREABRESNAR RS
MEB - ZMEEBITERED 2R —
HoPMTAZMRESHAMRE IR
BRAE R B 2 R B LR
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
management of the Company determines that there is no

impairment on goodwill of Unit A.
Unit B

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation which requires the use of
assumptions. The calculation used in cash flow projection
was based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate stated below. This growth
rate is consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports specific to the industry in which the CGU

operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the

16. B& (&)
HERHMELEEZRENR
(%)
HE-_ZT-_=-FR-_FT-__F+=A8
=T—HLEFE ARARBEEEETE
(AN & 7 B R E o

BB

ReELBEUZAROSBEIRERE
BEEXEE EPFEEARK 5
BEREAZEERERAANEEEIE
ZHhEHPHERERER -

BEMAEZRSREDRA TR M
SRR RERERHURLE
B T R TR 2 TR
2 R —H -

TREJINREELEMUAAZEIER

CGU: -
2023

—BC-=fF

%

— Budgeted gross margin — BEENX 46.7
— Terminal growth rate — KARKRR 3.0

— Pre-tax discount rate

— TiATALIR X 14.0
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets (continued)

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development. Terminal growth rate
is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the budget period. The rate is
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks

related to the relevant unit.

At 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of the

CGU was as follows:

Recoverable amount Al Uy B & &8

16. & (&)

HERHGERLEE ZBENR
(&)
AREBETEEEMNERDEREMAIESE
REZBEFEN —FMERZTFHE
ME - BREBMERNERARTS
BRMIBM - KARRE S —IANEF
HEEX  BRENRERUARZES
MEB - ZMEXEBTRREP 2B —
BoPTAZHRESHAMRE IR
R EL A R

R-ZE_=Ft+-_A=+—HB -HLE

EEBEMZAKESEAT
2023
_;é;m
TERT
8,655

During the year ended 31 December 2023, due to the
unforeseen business environment for the asset
management business and short-fall of recoverable
amount, impairment loss of approximately HK$694,000

on goodwill of Unit B was recognised.

HE-_T-_=F+-_A=+—8B1tHF
B EREETERG CEMBHELR
TR BRAZEHERATKESETE 5
BB EEHER T RERKEX694,000
BT e
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Hh|MEEE
Customer Club
SFC licence  relationship membership Total
Bl EFBHE efes @i

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThET TAT TAT

Cost KA
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 W-Z--fF—-f—H-
and 1 January 2023 ZEZZF+ZA=1—H
“E-=%-f—H = = 1,538 1,538
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary ey NGy -3¢
(note 37) (h#37) 1,536 1,720 - 3,256
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=f+t-A=t-AH 1,536 1,720 1,538 4,794

Accumulated amortisation and impairment  E &t 5 KA E
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 W-Z--F—-f—H-

and 1 January 2023 ZEZZF+ZA=1+—H

k=Z-=%—-H—H = = 292 292
Charge for the year FRFY - 215 - 215
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=f+-A=t+-H - 215 292 507
Carrying value RHE
At 31 December 2023 R-2Z=%+-A=1-H 1,536 1,505 1,246 4,287
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—%#+-A=+—H - - 1,246 1,246
The above intangible asset other than SFC licence, club PG BFESRR  @fefE RERE
membership and debenture has finite useful lives. Such B EEAREAEAFH  ZF
intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis over BREER T HARNEAREEH

the following periods:

Customer relationship 6 years BEPBE 65
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Other intangible assets include club memberships with
indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts based on fair value less costs to
sell. The fair value is determined using an observable
market price or recent market transaction price and no
indication of impairment was noted during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The additions arise from the acquisition of a subsidiary
with SFC license and customer relationships aligned with
the asset management service of approximately
HK$1,536,000 and HK$1,720,000 respectively at the
date of acquisition. Particulars regarding impairment
testing on SFC license and customer relationships have

been disclosed in note 16.

17. R B EE (&)

H & B B 4R B R E Al A BR
ZEMEE WARTFERBEERNA
EEZFFHREKEEREAKE S
CLAEITRUE BRI o AT EERA AR
@2 BITHAMERHEREE - B
ﬁé:g:_iﬁ_g::¢+:ﬂ
S+T—HEFERTEHBEREDRR

DYr}

AREDNELBREMB LR MIGHES
EEERBLRE s EESHBREFH
B HRKUBBEHZEES O R
1,536,000 7T &% 1,720,000/ 7T - & 8
FEERBREFPHERZBABENAFE
PH 1635 -
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18. TRADING RIGHTS 18. X5 &
HK$'000
FET
Cost B 7R
At 1 January 2022 R-—ZT-—_—F—HA—H 5,066
Write-off i 8 (868)
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023, and R—E-_—_&F+=-_A=+—8"
31 December 2023 —E=F—H—-Bk
—E-_=H#+-_A=+—H 4,198
Amortisation B 58
At 1 January 2022 W-_ZT-_—F—HA—H 5,066
Write-off i (868)
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023, and RZB-_—_F+-_A=+—H -
31 December 2023 —E=F—H—-Bk
—E-=F+-A=+—H 4,198
Carrying values FRmEE
At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 RZE-_—_F+=_A=+—HK
—E-=f+-A=+—H =
Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from 6 March TR EEEE= A58 (BB
2000, the effective date of the merger of the Stock BT EEHXHEEERREEBRERD
Exchange, HKFE and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Bl ([& %,ﬁi” )VEHERER) B T
Company Limited (“HKSCC"). FHH o
VC Futures Limited, a subsidiary of the Company has ARG ZHBAGERIBHEER A
revoked its license for dealing future contract under REE-_ZTZ-_—_F+—-H *‘T‘—Elﬂ:flz
section 195(1)(d) of the Securities and Future Ordinance EREZESKBEKRAEI19501)(D)IK
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the REFEERESHR AR - MiEH

related trading rights was written off accordingly.

ZR BT FEM S o
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19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 19. MERZE
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold  fixtures and ~ equipment Motor
improvements  equipment and software vehicles Total
BR-RER EBERBR
HENEEE R BH AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT TET THT FHT
Cost &K
At 1 January 2022 R-_FE-—%F—H—H 5,883 3,418 5711 3,300 8,312
Additions WE - 93 234 - 327
Write-off s - ©) - - ®)
Realignment EHRIE - (4) (14) - (18)
At 31 December 2022 WM-ZT-—4F
+ZA=+—H 5,883 3,502 5,931 3,300 18,616
Additions wE = - 118 - 118
Write-off HsA - ) (37) (22) (68)
Realignment SHRIE - M M - @)
At 31 December 2023 WZZTZ=F
+-HA=1—H 5,883 3,492 6,011 3,278 18,664
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2022 R-_E-—_F—HF—H 5737 2,834 5451 1,309 15,331
Charge for the year FARX 110 260 158 490 1,018
Write-off A - ©) - - ®)
Realignment BHRIE - M ) - 3
At 31 December 2022 WM-ZT-—4
TZA=+-H 5,847 3,088 5,607 1,799 16,341
Charge for the year FARX 36 249 157 464 906
Write-off 38 - ©) (37) (22) (68)
Realignment EHRIE - M M - @
At 31 December 2023 W=-ZT-Z=F
+-A=+—H 5,883 3,327 5726 2,241 17,177
Carrying values FEE
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+ZA=+—H = 165 285 1,037 1,487
At 31 December 2022 RZTEZ=F
+ZRA=+—H 36 414 324 1,501 2,275
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19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 19.

The above items of property and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term not
exceeding three years
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Computer equipment and ~ 33%

software
Motor vehicles 20%
20. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 20.
The Stock Exchange Bt 22 B
— Compensation fund deposit —-RHEESES
— Fidelity fund deposit —-HERERES
HKSCC TFEER
— Guarantee fund deposit -REESES®
— Admission fee deposit —2HERS
— Stamp duty deposit —ENEH R E

China Securities Depository and Clearing ~ FEZE AR ERLEE
Corporation Limited BREERT

ENE S AE D
AR R EEE T AEREEAT
FEHHIHE

HEMERE THREB=F2
7H 28
B KERRE 20%

THRERRE  33%

TE 20%
EERE
2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
200 200
200 200
200 200
200 200
30 30
688 688

1,518 1,518
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21. LEASES 21. €&
(i) Right-of-use assets () EREEE
2023 2022
—E-= —ZF-Z
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Leased properties HEMHE 7,170 8,775
The Group has lease arrangements for its office AEECHBFENE BIBES
premises, staff quarters and car parking spaces. The FopEfET L ME R - M8 — &
lease terms are generally ranged from one to two BR—EMF -
years.
Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ERMRZHEG BE-FT ==
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to FH+_A=+t—HILFEZERE
approximately HK$5,545,000 (2022: nil), due to BENE /55450008 T (= F
new leases of properties. ZZF ) e
(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEE®E
2023 2022
—ECZ=F £
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Non-current ERE 895 4,115
Current e 6,967 5,308
7,862 9,423
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21. LEASES (continued)
(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

21. BE (&)

(i) HE&E (&)

2023 2022
—E=-= —_E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —F R 6,967 5,308
After one year but within two years —FREMEA 895 4,115
7,862 9,423
Less: Amount due for settlement within 35 : 1218 A R4S
12 months (shown under current 2 B3E (B
liabilities) REBAET) (6,967) (5,308)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A2 B &8 2 38
12 months 895 4,115

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one

new lease agreements had entered by the Group

(2022: none) in respect of renting properties and

recognised lease liability of approximately

HK$5,545,000.

BHE-ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLt
FE AFERDEMET LB
HHERRE (S ——F &) I
R E A E45,545,0008 7T °
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21. LEASES (continued)

(iif) Amounts due recognised in profit or loss

21. FHE (&)

(iii) RIEHRERD 2 BAIRE

2023 2022
—E-= —E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Depreciation expense on right-of-use A EE ~
assets TEMX
— Office premises -MAEYE 4,283 4,283
— Staff quarters -BIws 2,867 2,772
Expense relating to short-term leases HRAHEEESH 2 A 809 933
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGBZHNEMX
(note 11) (Htati1) 489 628
Others Hit

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total

cash outflow for leases amount to approximately

HK$8,404,000 (2022: HK$8,544,000).

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in an associate
Share of post-acquisition profit and other
comprehensive income

8,404,000 L (=& =
EIL) °
22. REtE N Rl 2 &
2023
—E-=
HK$'000
FHExT
N RN Do = § N 360
AR Y 18 R A R
H A 2E KA 478

BE - T -_=F+-_A=+—HIt#F
B HEMELAZRARESRENAE
£F : 8,544,000

2022
= —

Y p—

HK$'000
THEIT

360

417

838

777
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 22. REfENT 2% (1)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the details of the RZDB-_=ZFK B -_—_F+=_8
Group's associate are as follows: =+t—H G KEEZHBMEARFEEEHT
mr
Country of ~ Principal place  Class of Proportion of ownership Proportion of
Name of entity ~ Form of entity incorporation  of operation  shares held interests held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
E: ke AEEf%
ERZH 10 ARRIER EX4E £5l BRERELH FEREELH IEXB
2023 2022 2023 2022
e e I8z CE3CCE
Speedy Billion Incorporated HongKong ~ HongKong  Ordinary 20% 20% 20% 20%  Operation of catering
Holdings Limited business
RESEERAA HRRT B &k LAk BERHER

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23. BATFEIRREREMEEE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARBECUBEE
2023 2022
—=F== —E - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Unlisted equity securities designated as at  $87& &A1& A FETIFE &
FVTOC! (notes a) FHEMEEBAREEZ
FEETRARES (A ita) 16,439 22,592
Analysed for reporting purpose as BmEENDITIE

non-current assets EREBEE 16,439 22,592
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(a) According to the valuation as at 31 December 2023
performed by an independent professional valuer, the fair
value of these securities acquired was approximately
HK$16,439,000 (2022: HK$22,592,000), a fair value loss
of approximately HK$6,153,000 (2022: HK$581,000) was

recognised in other comprehensive income.

(b) The investment in equity instrument is not held for trading.
Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic
purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity
instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in
profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group's
strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the

long run.

23. BAFEIREERHMEZEK

ARBEBEZHMBEE (F&)
Bt -
() REBYUIEXEHEMR_ZT_=4F

(b)

T A=+ —BETZHE TR
FBHZNFEL6,439,0008 T (= F
Z =% :22,592,00087T) c REM R
BRAZFTHERAFEEIED
6,153,000 7T (ZF = =4 : 581,000
EIT) e

REARBZRELIFFEEE M
SERERAKBAERIFTE - Bt - K
RAEFDEEBBRERRAREZ
REBERBAFEIRIERME
HRARRE  REREERA  NE
BEBRALZEREZEHRATERSY
BEREERMBEZETRERER
REREBZRERBRENNOERBERA o
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, MAFEIRREERKRER
PROFIT OR LOSS ZHBEE

Details of financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows: BAFEINEREEERREBECVKE

EZFEEHINET

2023 2022
—E-= —_E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Financial assets mandatorily measured at & #l3Z A FEF IR K&
FVTPL ERHRERE
B EE
Convertible bonds AR A& 25 12,700 18,100
Listed equity securities listed in Hong Kong R &EB L2 EMRA
&5 155,133 300,595
167,833 318,695
Analysed for reporting purpose: MEmE BB
— Non-current assets —JERBEE 12,700 18,100
— Current assets —mEEE 155,133 300,595

167,833 318,695
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On 6 January 2022, the Company had acquired a 3-year
2%, unsecured non-redeemable convertible bonds by
Virtual Mind Holding Company Limited (“VM", Stock
Code: 1520) issued on 6 January 2022 for a principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000 (“VYM Convertible Bond") through a
placement. The initial conversion price of the convertible
bonds is HK$0.1496 per share. The transaction was
completed on 6 January 2022.

The fair value of the VM Convertible Bond was
approximately HK$12,700,000, HK$18,100,000 and
HK$17,600,000 as at 31 December 2023, 31 December
2022 and 6 January 2022 respectively. The fair values
were calculated using Binomial Model by an independent
professional valuer in which the parameters were
summarised as follows:

+=

BITAZIRE
Effective interest rate of the issuer BITAZERFIR
Risk free rate = b ) X
BITAZTBHKE

Share price of the issuer

Expected volatility of the issuer

2, AT EIEREERRERE
ZHBEE (&)
R-ZZE-_—F— A8 A2FEBE
EEGRMIERAERAG (RH#] - &
ERHE 15200 RZE-_—F— AXH
BT ZFH200E B E N ] B [
AR ES (K€% A10,000,000%
Jt) R {8 A10,000,0007 7T ([ K4 7]
BMBRES]) - AIRRES VTS BRRE
BER0.1496ETT - BEARHER_F
ZZF—ANAZEMK -

AT MBRESFR_ZTE_=F+=A
=+—H -ZEZZf+=ZA=+—H
- —F—ARNBZAFES L
12,700,000/ 7T * 18,100,000 7T &
17,600,000/ 7T - 2 AV EHBIHEE
HEMEAZEXNEXFTE  EFHMA
SEPMNT

31 December 31 December 6 January
2023 2022 2022
—E-=H% —E-= —E-=
A=+—-B +ZA=+—8H —ARA
HK$0.157% 7% HK$0.23947TC  HK$0.244/8 7T
14.20% 14.00% 14.00%
4.07% 4.14% 0.99%
70.09% 85.00% 112.36%
0% 0% 0%

Dividend yield of the issuer BIOTAZKRER

The effective interest rate of the issuer was determined
with reference to the average of the bond yields of the
comparable companies with similar businesses and credit
rating of the issuer. Risk free rate was determined with
reference to yield of Hong Kong government bonds over
the exercise period near the valuation dates of 31
December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 6 January
2022, respectively. Expected volatility of the issuer was
determined using the historical volatility of the issuer's
share price over the exercise period as at the valuation
dates of 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 6
January 2022 respectively.

BOIAZEBRMNEN2ZRETAED
REEFREE2AELBRARZFES
BEFEEREET - BARBRMNETIZER
BRNEFNEEBR T _=F+=
B=+—8 -—=-—®+=-fA=+—
ARk —F—HAXBAERITEH
NZEHREEE - BITAZTBEBKIET
EARMEBR_ZT_=F+=A
=+—H -ZT__F+-H=+—H
RZTZZF—-ABRITERRZE
TARBELRIBETE -
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %8 BT8R RMisE

25. FEWBR X

2023 2022
—E-= —F_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Accounts receivable arising from the EHBEBARPRERETAT
ordinary course of business of dealing in: X ZMES: 7 EURIEN :
Securities transactions (note a): BAERG (Kita) -
Clearing house EEPT 1 1
Rolling balance cash clients REEERReRP 48,994 5,932
Less: Impairment loss OB E 1R (5,021) -
43,974 5,933
Accounts receivable arising from the EREXRKA/ESR
ordinary course of business of provision REHELERENREM
of corporate finance and other advisory BERRBmESZ
services (note b) FE U BR SR (Bt 7ED) 4,185 6,715
Less: Impairment loss B R EEE (3,646) (2,945)
539 3,770
Accounts receivable arising from the EREERGAREREETT
ordinary course of business of money MERBEEMELE 2
lending services (note c) FEWBR 3R (B 7tc) 337,725 301,381
Less: Impairment loss W R EEE (171,748) (78,362)
165,977 223,019
Accounts receivable arising from the EREERBAREREET
ordinary course of business of VAR 22 5 T B A 2 e R
dealing in: B
Securities transactions (note d): BHRRS (Mitd)
Margin clients REEEFP 142,266 169,158
Less: Impairment loss B R EEE (46,351) (7,873)
95,915 161,285
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary £ B & ¥ B2 R AT EE
course of asset management (note e) EIREBMES 2 BIKERR
(Htite) 5917 -
Accounts receivable arising from the EREXRGBREREETRR
ordinary course of insurance brokerage K A0 T E A 2 FEUBR X
(note f) (K1 5f) 225 -
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinaryf£ H & %275 B2 EHE &
business of sales and marketing of digital ~— # EEE & EmE £ 2 B
assets (note g) R (A itg) 314 74
312,861 394,081
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the gross amount of accounts
receivable arising from contracts with customers
amounted to approximately HK$59,636,000 (2022:
HK$12,722,000).

The Group measures the loss allowance for accounts
receivable other than accounts receivable from rolling
balance cash clients, margin clients and money lending
clients, at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on
these accounts receivable are estimated using a provision
matrix by reference to past default experience of the
debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial
position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions

at the reporting date.

Notes:

(a) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities
transactions are two trading days after the trade date.
Accounts receivable from clearing house and majority of
accounts receivable from cash clients represent trades
pending settlement arising from the business of dealing in

securities transactions.

25. B AR (&)

NR-BE-=F+-_A=+—H HEPF
AIVAHMEEZRINERBRBO A
59,936,000/ 7T (— & = =4 : 12,722,000

AT

AEBRBERBRETERAREES
Bz oRAERWERR (B REFHER
Re®P KRESEPABEREFPZE
RN 2 BB ERE - R FRWEKZ
BHESEBEBEN2EEBABEZEY
R LHEBARKBHBRRZ D -
REBRE G LREFABEZ
FEAER - EHAMKETEZERER
BAR S LA R 70 ¥R 5 B R IR 17 S FRORI R
BRI M EFELHAE -

Bt -

() EREEBERTPEALTEEESR
FMEEZREER 2 EEHRER
FHEMERS B - BUREERERRX
RREBHEKRESE P RRIEEET
BEEERRGEBMELZGHERS -
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)

In respect of the accounts receivable arising from dealing

in securities, except for those amounts due from margin

25. B AR (&)
it ()

@ (&)

REERZMEL 2 BUKHRR (BUKR
BEEPERRBIN) 2RED T (RE

clients, the aging analysis based on the trade date is as SHEHE)NT
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —ZE-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Within 30 days 30HIA 7,665 1,403
31 — 90 days 31&290H 11,524 3,028
Over 90 days H3E90H 24,785 1,502
43,974 5,933

During the year, the cash clients had all turn into rolling

balance cash clients, of approximately HK$48,994,000
(2022: HK$5,932,000) were secured by the clients’

pledged listed securities which carried a fair value of

approximately HK$137,470,000 (2022: nil).

Accounts receivable for rolling balance cash clients of
approximately HK$5,306,000 (2022: nil), which are not

fully secured by the respective clients’ listed securities, are

considered impaired. Total impairment of approximately
HK$3,392,000 (2022: nil) was made by the management

after taking into account subsequent additional cash and

securities collateral. Such accounts receivable due from

rolling balance cash clients were assessed to be credit

impaired and classified as stage 3 during the year as it

became default to repay the outstanding balance for a

period of time.

FA ReBPR2EURRTFHEBRE
©EF - BEX48,994,0008 T (=&
— =4 5,932,000/ 70) AAFELY
137,470,000 T (ZTZZF : &) 2
EFEER EMEHEER -

BE#)5,306,0008 T (ZE=ZF : &)
B EFERB TS 2 BRERT
EUBBARS 2 EMBEHEREUER
WEREHBEERME - EEE L
REBWE 2 EINRE REFEAD
B FE Uk BR 3R 1 S 493,392,000 7T (=
E__FE)ZRERAE RSEK
BEHEBBESEPZERERBER
EBELHEHBR —BER - HE T
TAEBREERBEYERFTFNSEAR
FEIMER -
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts
receivable from rolling balance cash clients as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 by the Group's internal

credit rating and year end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

25. B AR (&)

Wiz - (&)

@ (&)

BEAEEANBEEIRARFADEY
RZEZ=FR=_ZT=-=F+=A
=t HERRGESBREEPZE

WERZFREAEEDITNAT

BE-_Z-_=-F+-A=+-HLEE

Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating AR5 EFTR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

2fFE

I EGERE AEZ

TR ZEEFESH BEEFED

BEHEE BHEE BHEE

3] g B8
(1R (520 8R) (F3RR) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTER FTER FERT
Performing R1f 11,920 - - 11,920
Doubtful 5t - 31,768 - 31,768
Default E 4 - - 5,306 5,306
11,920 31,768 5,306 48,994
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. EUWER =X (&)
Notes: (continued) st - (&)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_E-——#+-A=+—B8 I =
=
Lifetime Lifetime
12-months ECL not ECL credit-
ECL credit-impaired impaired
Internal credit rating W= B R TR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

TEEERE BEEREZ
tTEA ZEEFEH BREFES
BHEEER BHEEFR BHAEEERAR

(B (F2M58) (F3ME) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Performing R 5,932 - - 5,932
5,932 = = 5,932
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on W EFERESTE Y EINES Y
accounts receivable from rolling balance cash clients are as ESEREEENT
follows:
Lifetime Lifetime
12-months ECL not ECL
ECL credit-impaired  credit-impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEEERE BEEREZ
+ZEA ZEEFEH BREFED
EHEEEE EHEEEFE EREEEBR
(F1REER) (F2/REEK) (E3M0EER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
ECL allowances as at R-ZF-_Z_F—-H—-BK
1 January 2022 and —E-—%+=A
31 December 2022 S+-HZEHEES
B = - - _
Impairment loss recognised for  F RN#ER 2 MEEE
the year = 1,629 3,392 5,021

31 December 2023 R-ZB-=%5+=A
=+—H = 1,629 3,392 5,021
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services
are normally due immediately from date of billing but the
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to

its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on

the invoice date is as follows:

25.

FE W R K (4R
Hit - ()

b) RRHECEBMBEREMGERRSEMmE
EZREERFRcEER - REEER
HENES EAKEEATRATER
F¥H30R ZEEH - % F R KR
ZHREO (RBERAHAE) AT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within 30 days 30HA 131 203
31 - 90 days 31Z90H 159 486
Over 90 days #3B90H 249 3,081
539 3,770

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

accounts receivable from the provision of corporate finance

FRRRELCERE K HE iR RS
EBMEL 2 BRERFRZREEHERE

and other advisory services are as follows: BEEHMT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
As at 1 January n—A—H 2,945 1,650
Impairment losses reversed on trade BEREUBR BB B 2R (B S 18
receivables (2,068) -
Impairment losses recognised on trade W W R R IER 2 REE B
receivables 2,769 1,295
As at 31 December R+-—A=+—8 3,646 2,945
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B

T SR ey R

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2023, accounts receivable arising from

money lending services bear fixed-rate interest of 0.667%
to 1.5% per month or 8% to 18% per annum (2022:
0.667% to 1.5% per month or 8% to 18% per annum).
The accounts receivable had remaining contractual maturity
date falling within one year as at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2023, accounts receivable with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$119 million
(2022: HK$178 million) were secured by the client's listed

securities and client's properties.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts
receivable from money lending as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 by the Group's internal credit rating and year

end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

25. B AR (&)
it ()

©

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H BAKX
E AR TS M E 4+ 2 IR IZ 8§ F0.667
EZEISEXTFIEEISE(ZT ==
F:8Z A06TERISERTFIESE
18F) ZEEMEFHE - NEMEH
R ZERBKERZHNAEGHNERR

PR—FE - R-_B-_=F+=-A=+—
B - BREFE 119,000,000 7T (=
T — — £ : 178,000,000 7T) 2 & UK

RINREP LHRBFREFPMERER

BAEEANREEFRRFRIEY

EHEEHHEL? ERERR T
T EENRN-_E-_—_&®#+-_A=+—H
ZIREBESTHT :

BE-Z-_=F+-A=t+-HLEE

Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating ARG (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

2FE8

I EEERE HEZ

T=EBR ZEBEFEH BREFES

BHEE BHEE BHEE

B EH BE
(1R (5205 8]) (SE3MR) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TER TER FTERT
Performing RIF 11,297 - - 11,297
Doubtful B& - 247,958 - 247,958
Default 21 - - 78,470 78,470
11,297 247,958 78,470 337,725
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

25. B AR (&)

Notes: (continued) BisE o (&)
(c) (continued) © (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—E-—#+-_A=+—HItEE
Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating AEBEETR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

BEE

T EEERE REZ

TZEA ZEBEFEHS BEFED

HHEE HHEE HHEE

BB EE B1R
(B1FEER) (B2M ) (F3ME) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET
Performing R1f 109,869 - - 109,869
Doubtful 5t - 135,369 - 135,369
Default BY - - 56,143 56,143
109,869 135,369 56,143 301,381
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) (continued)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

accounts receivable from money lending business are as

follows:

25. FEW AR (&)
Mz (4)

(o (&)

FRAEARBEBMELEZBKRERZ

REREEBEESHNOT

Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
258
¥ EEERE HEZ
+t-@R ZEEREH BEEFHRD
BEHEE BHEE HHEE
B8 BB B#E
(F1BE) (20 &) (B3RE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FER THERT FTHERT
At 31 December 2022 and i
1 January 2023 =t+-BR=F==F
—H—H 504 21,715 56,143 78,362
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BATEEERE 2 EE
credit — impaired FEBEHEEER (504) 504 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BACEEREZEE
credit — impaired GEHEREEESE - (4,347) 4,347 =
Impairment loss reversed FREBZHERSE
during the year - (145) - (145)
Impairment loss recognised FRABRZHERE
during the year 106 75,445 17,980 93,531
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=%
+=ZA=+-—H 106 93,172 78,470 171,748
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. EWBR X (&)
Notes: (continued) BisE o (&)
(c) (continued) © (&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on ERNARBESTMELE  EWEZ >
accounts receivable from money lending business are as MESEREEESNT
follows:
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
BEEE
TEEERE WEZ
TZEAR ZEEFEH {875 48
HHEE HHEE HHEE
B EB BB
(F1FEER) (F2MBER) (F3MER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET FET
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%F
+-A=+—H 153 43,172 27,220 70,545
Transfer to 12-months ECL 21218 A B
EEEE 7,253 (7,253) = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL BABEEREZEE
credit — impaired GEBEREEESSE = (4,429) 4,429 =
Impairment loss reversed FREEZHERSE
during the year (7,146) (15,113) - (22,259)
Impairment loss recognised FARRBZHERE
during the year 244 5,338 24,494 30,076
At 31 December 2022 i ——
—A=t—H 504 21,715 56,143 78,362
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) The accounts receivable from margin clients of

approximately HK$142,266,000 (2022: HK$169,158,000)
were secured by the clients’ pledged listed securities which
carried a fair value of approximately HK$190,095,000
(2022: HK$343,919,000).

Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating margin values. Additional funds or collateral are
required if the amount of accounts receivable from margin
clients outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value of the
securities deposited. The collateral held can be re-pledged
up to 140% of the accounts receivable from margin clients
amounts and the corresponding collateral held can be sold
at the Group's discretion to settle any outstanding amounts
owed by the margin clients. Accounts receivable from
margin clients are repayable on demand and bear interest

at commercial rates.

Accounts receivable for margin clients of approximately
HK$62,374,000 (2022: HK$31,912,000), which are not
fully secured by the respective clients’ listed securities, are
considered impaired. Total impairment of approximately
HK$46,151,000 (2022: HK$7,274,000) was made by the
management after taking into account subsequent
additional cash and securities collateral. Such accounts
receivable due from margin clients were assessed to be
credit impaired and classified as stage 3 during the year as
it became default to repay the outstanding balance for a

period of time.

25. B AR (&)

Bt

(d)

(&)

BEH142,266,0008 T (=T ==
169,158,000/ 7t) EWREFLBEF 2
JE W BR 3R T LA A {8 #9190,095,000#
JL(ZZEZ =4 343,919,000/ 7T) &
BRI LA R o

BFEUREBERED X UGFER
EFeEBEE-MEKRBSEPZRE
ERFCBBEBFTFESFZAER
RELBEE NEARHBEINIE D RIE
o A ERRIBER o8
BERERKRRBSEF 2 EIERRN
140% - ﬁﬁFﬁ%—rﬁZ*EﬁﬁﬁﬁcﬁﬂTﬂﬁﬂ
REBRBAEHENEERIZESSR
}Eiiﬂz&ﬁﬁi%{%?klﬁ0}47%“\14511%53
CEPZEWERANRERKEEY
REEMETS -

D

U

Aﬂ

—

BB 462,374,000 L (ZE =4 :
31,912,000 T) EWIRBELE P 2 1
WAR R I ABRA R P 2 E & 5 1E
2EER VERELREERE B
BEGHREZKI 28I RE RF
FEM T - BEUAR AL £946,151,000
BIL(ZE == :7,274,0008 L) 2
2HERE ZESERRBCEFPZE
WEFREAEAREEEKRDER —RR
M HERHTEALREERETE
RERNDEABIEE -
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(d) (continued)

No aging analysis is disclosed in the opinion of directors of
the Company as aging analysis is not meaningful in view of
the revolving nature of the business of margin loan

financing.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts
receivable from margin clients as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 by the Group's internal credit rating and year

end classification:

25. B AR (&)

Wiz - (&)

(d)

(%)

BAEBABEETAERFERDBY
RZEZ=FR=_FT=-_=-_F+=A
T+ HREUKRBEEFZEBKER
ZEEmBESWTWT

245



246 VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED SERZRERQF
Annual Report 2023 &%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %8 BT8R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_T-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. EUWER =X (&)
Notes: (continued) st - (&)
(d)  (continued) d (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-E-—=f+-—H=+—-HLEE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating R EB1E EFTR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

WEEERE BREERE
ZEEFEYS ZEBEEFED
t=@EA RHRE RHRE

AHEEER BB BB
(F1BEE) (F2KR) (B3R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TERT TERT FTERT
Performing RYF 30,643 - - 30,643
Doubtful 53+ - 49,249 - 49,249
Default BY - - 62,374 62,374
30,643 49,249 62,374 142,266
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—E-—&E+-A=+-—-BIEE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating M (5 E AR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEEERE EEERE
CEEFES BAFES
+=@A EHEE EHEE
EHEEEE BB B8
(F1RER) (F2BE&) Ex1-129) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET
Performing RYF 108,882 - - 108,882
Doubtful ekt - 28,364 - 28,364
Default EN = ~ 31,912 31,912

108,882 28,364 31,912 169,158
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

25. W AR (&)
Hiat - (&)
(d) (continued) @ &)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

247

BRERES TP ZBYKRF ZRE R

accounts receivable from margin clients are as follows: BERESSHMT
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEEERE CBREEREZ
T=ER ZEBEFED BEFHED
BEHEE BHEE HHEE
B8 i B#E
(F1BE) (2/E) (B3RR) Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FTET
ECL allowances as at RZE -
1 January 2022 —RA—RZHEH
EEERER - 9 6,764 6,773
Impairment loss recognised FRHERZAERR
for the year - 599 6,539 7,138
Impairment loss reversed FRREZRERR
for the year - 9) (6,029) (6,038)
31 December 2022 RZFT_Z
+-A=+—H - 599 7274 7,873
Transfer to 12-months ECL BA1REAREH
EEEE 17 - (17) =
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAERERECEM
credit-impaired FRABRSERER - (599) 599 -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BALREERMEZ
credit-impaired BEFREEN
EEEE - 3,475 (3,475) =
Impairment loss recognised FRHERZAEER
for the year - - 41,823 41,823
Impairment loss reversed FRRRZRERR
for the year (15) (3,277) (53) (3,345)
31 December 2023 RZT-=F
t-A=1+—H 2 198 46,151 46,351
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. EUWER =X (&)

Notes: (continued) Hiit - (&)

(e) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from (e) ERREBBARPRETEEETRE
the ordinary course of business of asset management are BMEEZRWERZEHEH—RE
normally due immediately from date of billing but the HENHENRIE BEXAEEA 4
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to FTHEFPFHI0RAZERB -ZERE
its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on WERRZEREDT GREREHHE
the invoice date is as follows: U

2023 2022

—=E=-= —ZEF_=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Within 30 days 30 A 22 -
31 - 90 days 3152900 33 =
Over 90 days B3890 H 5,862 -
5,917 =

(f) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from H HTEBEFEBBEFRERETRRERLLE
the ordinary course of business of insurance brokerage are BMEEZEWRERZEER —KB
normally due immediately from date of billing but the HE QHEEEE  BEANEFBALS
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to TEXPFPTEHI0BZ2ERE - 25k
its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on WERR 2R D R EHBE
the invoice date is as follows: mE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

Within 30 days 30BN 225 -




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA 249
Annual Report 2023 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & It F8RFRMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_T-_=F+-A=1t—HLEFE

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. EUWBR =X (&)

Notes: (continued) BisE o (&)

(g) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from (@ CEHRXBBAEPRETHIEAENH
the ordinary course of business of sales and marketing of EREREBMEE BWRR 24
digital assets are normally due immediately from date of EHR-—MEEEBHARANKIE -
billing but the Group may grant a credit period of 30 days BAEEMGTHEPFHI0821E
on average to its clients. The aging analysis of these A - ZERKIRRZ Rk 97 (7%
receivables based on the invoice date is as follows: EREFHE)DNT

2023 2022
—EBZ=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Within 30 days 30 A 314 74
26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. AARIE - RERAEMEBERERER
RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deposit on acquisition of a subsidiary HRUBEMB RN 2 RS
(note 34(c)) (note) (B1a234(c)) (F1it) 16,000 —
Consideration receivables from disposal of &K BRRIFELZ
subsidiaries (note 38) JEW R AB (H17738) 2,198 -

Others Hith 4,766 4,450

Other receivables E h FE U BR K 22,964 4,450

Prepayments and other deposits BRFREBEREEMMERS 6,399 17,846

29,363 22,296

Note:The deposit on acquisition of a subsidiary is refundable, s RN E ATt 2R B RS

and therefore the deposit balance is classified as current ®e At REGEBRHPEATHE

assets. E e
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BE-_T-_=-—F1+-A=1+—HILFE

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a) For other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12 — month ECL. The
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit

risk has increase significantly since initial recognition.

The Group measures the loss allowance for other

receivables under general approach in HKFRS 9.
Analysis of the gross carrying amount on other
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 by the

Group's internal credit rating and year end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

12-months
ECL
Internal credit rating ~ AZEEFTR (Stage 1)

26. ANRIE - REREMWERER

(%)
it

(@ HEMEUERMNE AEEFER
ERNt_EARBEERRZBRE
B-AKBEERBRENNFEHEEE
2 E B S HERIEBEL N

AEEREFBYHHREEAFEIR 2
BROEREMBUARKGT BB -

BASEABEEFRRFRDBER

TR =FRZFE_F+ZA=4—
Bz HMERERZREAEIITNT

BE-_S-_=Ff+-A=+—HILEE

Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
credit-  ECL credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

TEEERE CREERE
REBEEEEN cE2EFEAES

+=@A HHEE HAHMEE

BHEERE &8 B8
(B1RERR) (SE2F% B]) (3R ER) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THERT FTHERT
Performing R 22,307 - - 22,307
Doubtful 33 - - - -
Default B - - 657 657
22,307 - 657 22,964
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(&)

26. ARIE - REREMWERERR

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating NEEEFT & (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
THREERE CEEREBE
ZEEGFED cBEAFES
+=1@AH BHEE BHEE
EHEEEE E1a &8
(FE1BEER) (28 ER) (E3REER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET AT FAET FET
Performing Rf 3,640 = = 3,640
Doubtful 3] = = = =
Default R - - 810 810
3,640 = 810 4,450
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on other

receivables are as follows:

12-months
ECL
(Stage 1)

T=f&A
RUREER
(F1ER)
HK$'000
TET

ECL allowances as at RZEZZf-f—-HZ
1 January 2022 RHEEERER =

Impairment loss reversed FRBEZRE
for the year E#E -

BANRE - R REAMERERR
(%)
4 O fth B MR BR R 2 (BB 1R R 2 B
T

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

not credit- credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

YEEEHE CREEREZ
ZBEERS 2EEEAN
RHEE RMREE

[ BB
(B0 8) (B3R E) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL FTHEL FTHEL
5,123 - 5,123
(5,123) - (5,123)

At 31 December 2022 and W ZZEZ—F+=A

1 January 2023 and =+—-8k
31 December 2023 —EZ=5—-H—H
—E-=F+_A
=+—H =

As the value of the pledged asset was much higher than
the gross receivable amount at stage 3, no impairment

was recognised as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

MREEAAEZ BEESREIRE
2 EREREE  REMR-B=F
R-E- -+ A=+ —ARRAE -
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash and short—
term bank deposits held by the Group at market interest
rates ranging from 0.001% to 4.270% (2022: 0.001%
to 19%) per annum with an original maturity of one

month.

In the course of the conduct of the regulated activities of
its ordinary business, VC Brokerage act as trustees that
result in the holding of clients’ monies on behalf of
clients and other institutions. These assets are not assets
of the Group and, therefore, are not included in its
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31
December 2023, the Group maintained segregated
accounts at other authorised institutions of approximately
HK$84,256,000 (2022: HK$93,836,000) in conjunction
with its securities, as a result of the normal business
transactions, which are not otherwise dealt with in these

consolidated financial statements.

27. RITHEBR KRR S

RITEBEBeBEAEEMBERE R
RIEBMAR—MEA  ZHHFENENT
001EZE4.270B (=T == : 0.001
BEE1BE)GFEZEBRRITER -

EREEREBARPREZREEHE -
EREFAEXFEA KEFPKHAMB
BREXPHIE ZSEAEVIEAEE
ZEE WA ARKEMBMRR K
NeWRZEBEZ=F+ZA=+—H K
EEREETFEBR S M E MR 7] #
BMREVEBSHSEZBIYRR, 28
84,256,000 7t (=T = = % :
93,836,000/ 7T) - BHMERP T 4R
B BHRERPEE -
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28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES

28. BNMRM - BetREREMEN
AR XA B Y IR R & B K

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —Z=-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accounts payable arising from dealing in RETEFEEMES
securities (note a): Z R BRFR (KT ita) -
Clearing house EET 493 2,780
Cash clients REEP 587 238
Margin clients RESEP 33 785
1,113 3,803
Accounts payable arising from insurance RETREBELEBMEE L
brokerage (note b) FETBRZX (H7Eb) 1,022 =
Accounts payable arising from sales and RETHREEHE KR
marketing of digital assets (note c) i 2 4 2 AT BR 3k (M 72 c) 1,294 1,432
3,429 5,235
Margin loan payables FETREE & B & 20,838 18,470
Accrued liabilities and other payables: et BERE RN :
Accrued expenses JEstA X 6,440 3,653
Receipt in advance T8 U FR I8 3,023 10,322
Bond redemption payable JE & 75 & Bl ;RIE 6,000 -
Other payables H fth & A BR K 7,741 4,187
23,204 18,162
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28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

(2)

(b)

Accounts payable to clearing house represent trades
pending settlement arising from dealing in securities
which are usually due within two trading days after
the trade date.

The accounts payable to cash clients and margin
clients are repayable on demand except where
certain balances represent trade pending settlement
which are usually due within two trading days after
the trade date or deposits received from clients for
their securities dealing activities. Only the excessive
amounts over the required deposits stipulated are

repayable on demand.

No aging analysis on accounts payable arising from
dealing in securities is disclosed in the opinion of
the directors of the Company as the aging analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature

of this business.

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising
from the ordinary course of business of insurance
brokerage are normally due immediately upon
presentation of statements. The aging analysis of
this payable based on the statement dates is as

follows:

Within 30 Days 30

28. BNMRM - Bt REREMEN
BRFUAKREMNREERER ()

(a)

(b)

R EHERIREEBSELY
FREXS —MNEEAMEY
R 2 5 BRI -

m 0

AR RREEEP ZEREAR
BRREE HETHFEERSE
HRBRREBERHRRZMERS
AR AR EFESEELRD
MEWIZ LSRN - EBEZ NI
EREZEHER/ARELKEE -

ERWEBZEE  ARRESER
REETESEEMEL 2 BN
R Z BR ik 0 AT I AT (T RRSMEE -
BARBRBERE DT -

EAEEBKBRERRETRBELD
EHmEEZENERZEEHR
—BR2REREREIREE - ZE
fTER R Z BR B 5 AT (IR Bk B8 B #A&T
H)WT

2023 2022
—E=-= g2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
1,022 -
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HE-T_=F+_A=+—HLLFE

28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

(c) The settlement terms of accounts payable arising
from the ordinary course of business of sales and
marketing of digital assets are normally due
immediately from date of transferring the title of the
digital assets. The aging analysis of this payable
based on the entitlement of custody of the digital

products is as follows:

Within 30 Days 308

28. BNMRM - BetREREMEN
BRFUAKREMNRESER (R

(0 EHRXBARTERETHBEE
HERBERERMES 2 BNRR &
EHR-REEBHEBEEMAE
Z BB B - 5% BR AR 2 R
RO (RESBBERZIRERE

ESEN

2023
—E-=

HK$'000
TERT

1,294

2022
—

—_—

HK$'000
TET

1,432

29. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets
(liabilities), after set off certain deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for

financial reporting purposes:

2. EEB B (EE)EE

REHER-—ERHER S TRELEHRA
BERREHRARGER MHHREM
BEXBEERBE(EE) BEINAOT :

2023 2022

—E—-= —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 143 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERTE A (S (537) (97)
(394) 97)
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29. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued) 29 . EEEBIIE (EE) & E (F)

The following is the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities EMRAZEITEETEHRE(BE) BEN
recognised and movements thereon during the current MERRFERBEFEZEHNT -

and prior years.

Unrealised
gain on
financial
assets Other
Tax held for lease  Right-of-use  Convertible intangible
losses trading liabilities assets bonds assets Total
KRR
HHEEL
REEE ARRKE HERE GRREE TEREF HuEyEE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEL TiEL TiEn FiEn TEn TEn

At 1 January 2022 RZF-Zz&-A-H (17,581) 17,581 = = 202 = 202

Effect of application of EREREHEN
amendments to HKAS 12 1282652 52 = - (2612) 2612 - - -

At 1 January 2022 (restated) H=F--F—-F-R

(EE3) (17,581) 17,581 (2612) 2612 202 - 202
Charge (credit) to profit or loss BB (H9) 17,581 (17,581) 1,164 (1,164) (105) = (105)

At31 December 2022and  RZE=Z

1 January 2023 T-A=+-Bk
“E-ZE-f-A = = (1,448) 1,448 97 = 97
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ KENBAF (143) - - - - 537 394
Charge to convertble bond R BREHEENR
reverse = = = = 1421 = 1421
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REZEHR (H8) (4864) 4,864 265 (265) (1518) - (1518)

At 31 December 2023 R-E-=%&
+-Az1-A (5,007) 4,864 (1,183) 1,183 - 537 394
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29. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued) 29 MEEBIIE (L E) &= (F)

At 31 December 2023, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$968,982,000 (2022:
HK$665,734,000) available for offset against future
profits. As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax asset and
liability have been recognised in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$30,345,000 (2022: nil) and taxable
temporary difference of approximately HK$29,479,000
(2022: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of approximately HK$938,637,000 (2022:
HK$665,734,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The estimated unused tax losses have no
expiry date but are subject to further approval of the

Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.

At 31 December 2023, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$6,720,000 (2022:
HK$6,302,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H x5&H
B hEH AR E) AT 18 E515 49968,982,0007%
TL(ZTZZF : 665,734,000/ 7T) A it
EERREFN R_T_=F+=HA
Et+-—B AEERBEEELD
30,345,000 T (ZE =4 : TH )
Ko JE SR T B BRE 22 B8 4929,479,00078 7T (=
T F TBL)ERELEHEEE
REBE-

BE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—RHILFE -
I % 3t 64 T A5 18 &5 15 49938,637,0007%8 7T
(ZZ = =% : 665,734,000/ T ) ERIE
JEFRIE A B - & BRI R M ORI T8
B ZERFARDABREBETRER
H BEAKEEHRBRRITHE  FA
A -

RZEZ=F+-A=+—H &5&H
B Al B ER B = 886,720,000 7T (=&
Z % :6,302,000%7T) o WERZE
MBS EZERAREREEE &
B K 0] e & 8% 15 I AR TR M AT BB
SH AT 0T BRI 2 HE o
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 6 November 2020, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“CB1") with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$52,000,000 to six independent third parties.
The convertible bond will mature on the third anniversary
of the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are converted into 260,000,000
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bond and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s initial conversion price of HK$0.2 per

conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CB1 with
principal amounts of HK$45,500,000 were converted into
227,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$10,959,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

30. TR E %

RZZTZZTF+—AXAH  AAFAAN
FRLE =T 1T # 552,000,000
BTZEREMEXRATBRRKRES ([FTHREK
BEH1]) - E%W@H&%’:#ﬂ%ﬁé%ﬁﬂ@
BREHBHEZ=AFINE - ZIRRKR
BEHF AR EITAIMRES B BEE 35
HIEEAERZRESFHEAZTZHRR
BEERAEBRKRHO2EBETH B A
260,000,0000% ¥ B A& 17 °

HE_Z-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE -
& B45 5oo,ooo;%rczmﬁﬁxfé%1
RERBEBEBRHO2EBETLH B A
227,500,00008 AN A R E@A% o Hignl ik
BRESZ ABRREFFEHERRKRD
10,959,000 7T 2 #88 (MR B E) -
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, CB1 with
principal amounts of HK$500,000 were converted into
2,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$144,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the
conversion of convertible bonds. The remaining CB1 were

matured during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The CB1 comprise a liability component and equity
conversion component. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity component, is
included in the convertible bonds reserve under equity

attributable to the owners of the Company.

The movement of liability component of the convertible

bonds is as follows:

30. TR E S (])

HE_T-_=F+-_A=1+—HILFE
7N ¥8500,0008 7T 2 AR EH 118 T
% #2 A% % 190.278 7T K, #2 %2,500,000/%
AARERR - RRATBRESRE 7
B & 5 3 15 BR R 40144,00008 7T 2 K
BRNBEE) R T Z2ARKRES

1IBEREBE_T_=F+-_A=+—H
IEFERIER -

ABRBER HBER D SRR
AR - RE (AR EY 2 EE) A
RRREE ARERED N2 A BRES
fré 175

AmRESBEF O ZEBNT

Issued by the Company
CB1 issued on
6 November 2021

B R RET
W_E-_—F+—HXKH
BT Z A RRES
HK$'000
FHT
Liability component at 1 January 2022 RZZEZZF—H—HZ
B &S 5278
Effective interest expenses (note 11) ERMERZ (Mat11) 634
Liability component at 31 December 2022 and R=ZZ=-—_F+-HA=+—H
1 January 2023 N_ZE_=%F—-—H—B2
BER 5,912
Effective interest expenses (note 11) ERREF B FElﬁ (Btati1) 588
Conversion into new ordinary shares (note 32) i A% & @K (471:£32) (500)
Transfer to other payables O\ E A FE AR 3K (6,000)
Liability component at 31 December 2023 JrAp—— :Ei—?—:ﬂ =+—H

Z BE
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 30. TR E S ()
The convertible bonds issued at their issue dates RIEREE 1T H IR 1T 2 A IR E A5 4R
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial AP EMRRARERDOT ¢

position are as follows:

Issued by the Company
CB1 issued on

6 November 2021
ERAVNGIELE6)
R-ZE_—F+—HAXH
BT 2 A BRRES

Maturity date E|HA A 6 November 2023
—E-=F1t—AKH
Remaining principal not yet converted as at R-B-_=F+-_A=+—H

31 December 2023 MARRBRZ BT AE =
Remaining principal not yet converted as at KRB —_F+-_HA=+—H HK$6,500,000
31 December 2022 HARLBRZBTARE 6,500,000/ 7T
Conversion price R E HK$0.2 per share
FRRO2E T

Analysis as: DT
2023 2022

—E-= T

HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Current liabilities mEEE = 5912
Non-current liabilities EmBEE = -

- 5912
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31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 31

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated

CBMERBELEZCABYHER

TR AKERERDELECAEE
BHFF ERRSLIRSES -BE
ABELCREREBEZREREN
AXRBRERENAKEGARERER
ROBEARMERDELAZREREZA

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing £
activities.
Interest
payables on
Convertible convertible Lease
bonds bonds liabilities
TRBRESRZ
ARRES A F B HEESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT THET
At 31 December 2021 N—_E-—F+=-A1
=+—H 5,278 - 16,406
Financing cash outflows AER SR = - (7.611)
Non-cash changes FEH & B
Interest expenses accrued FEE R ERX 634 - 628
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZ=ZF+=A
=+—H 5912 - 9,423
At 31 December 2022 R-ZTBE-=—F+=8
=+—H 5912 - 9,423
Financing cash outflows MERS ML - (34) (7,595)
Non-cash change FEH & B
New lease arrangement FHERY - - 5,545
Interest expenses accrued s F B R X 588 34 489
Conversion to share capital L= N (500) - -
Transfer to other payables B O\ H b FE T BR 3K (6,000) — —
At 31 December 2023 R-TE-_=%F+—-A
=+—H - - 7,862
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. BRA&

Number of
ordinary shares

263

Share capital

ERREE [N
‘000 HK$'000
T FHET
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 R-Z-_—F—H—H =%

and 1 January 2023 ——#+-A=+—-AK=%

—=%—-A—H 2,078,602 1,760,344
Issue of shares upon placing A B & B 9 1 B TR

of shares (note a) (Ktita) 300,000 36,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of I & M 24T 2

shares by placement (note a) R (Hfita) = (3)
Issue of shares upon conversion of 83 AR AR (5 1T

convertible bonds (note ¢) Wt (Mfatc) 2,500 644
Issue of shares upon of acquisition WEERBEREEER

of VC International Asset Management &R &l & 170 (H742b)

Limited (note b) (note 37) (K15£37) 92,421 13,863
At 31 December 2023 R-B_=f+-A=+—H 2,473,523 1,810,848
Notes: HiE -

(a) With reference to the placing agreement (the “Placing (@) WBEAQFRBAMR-F_=F_A

Agreement”) disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 February 2023, all the conditions precedent set
out in the Placing Agreement have been satisfied or
fulfilled and the completion took place on 14 March 2023.
A total of 300,000,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed to not less than six places at the
placing price of HK$0.12 per placing share. The gross
proceeds from the placing is HK$36.0 million. The

transaction cost amounted to approximately HK$3,000.

3,000/ 7T ©

ZH—BZAMARE B E B ([h
EHED REHBIRZTE LR
B ER MEEEEER-ZZ
Z=Ff=ZAt+tHmMARXK- & H
300,000,0000% At & A% 7 B Th 12 BL & (B
BRESBRMI2ETREE F IR
NEERRAN-ESFBEZBREL
% £36,000,000/ 70 ° X B KA K A
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) With reference to the sale and purchase agreement (the

©

“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 25 November 2022, the
Company allotted and issued 92,421,442 consideration
shares to the vendor for the settlement of the
consideration in the amount of HK$15 million at the issue
price of HK$0.1623 per consideration share. The fair value
of the consideration shares was approximately HK$13.9

million.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain
portions of CB1 were converted into 2,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.2
per ordinary shares. As a result of the conversion, share
capital has been increased by approximately HK$644,000
and convertible bonds reserve has been decreased by
approximately HK$144,000. The new shares rank pari

passu with the existing shares in all respects.

33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

Share option scheme

The Company offered the share option scheme under

which share options are granted to the directors,

employees and other eligible persons of the Group to

subscribe for shares of the Company in recognising their

contributions and in retaining employees who will

continue to make valuable contribution to the Group.
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Pursuant to an extraordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2018, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”).

On 27 July 2020, directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible persons were granted share options to
subscribe for 89,472,000 underlying shares under the
2018 Share Option Scheme. These share options were
immediately vested on the grant date and have duration
of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from 27 July 2020
to 27 July 2023. Any share options granted shall
normally lapse upon the expiration of 3 months after the
relevant grantee ceases to be an employee of the Group.
The Board has the discretion to amend the terms of the
2018 Share Option Scheme.

On 31 January 2023, directors and employees of the
Group and other eligible persons were granted share
options to subscribe for 170,100,000 underlying shares
under the 2018 Share Option Scheme. These share
options were immediately vested on the grant date and
have duration of 4 years from the date of grant i.e. from

31 January 2023 to 31 January 2027.

As at 31 December 2023, the number of shares in
respect of which share options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 169,400,000 (2022: 54,844,000),
representing approximately 6.85% (2022: 2.649%) of the
shares of the Company in issue. 55,544,000 (2022:
1,528,000) share options lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2023 due to the staff resignation.
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

IERERKRGOER (E)

(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

The estimated fair values of the options granted under
the 2018 Share Option Scheme on 27 July 2020 is
approximately HK$7,517,000 recognised in the share
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed

below.

The estimated fair values of the options granted under
the 2018 Share Option Scheme on 31 January 2023 is
approximately HK$11,134,000 recognised in the share
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed

below.

Share price at the date of grant
Exercise price 1B

Risk-free rate E g T e
Expected volatility 8 HA R 18
Exercise multiples — directors
— employees/other
eligible persons

REH Az R (E

TEEH-—EF
—{EE Hft

BRAES 8 ()

BE_ZT - \FEREFEN_Z=F
FLtAZ+tEtAREZEREZHFTD
FE# /7,517,000 70 (R BB FFH
BR) - HDERBZBEAEXGE Hh
ZEXZEEHABBR TREE -

BE_ZT—- \FEREFENR_ZT=_=
F-A=Z+t—HEREZEREZHFTD
FAEHH11,134,000 70 (KA B8 AR 1
BHER)  DEBAZEAENGE  H
HZEAZETZHAHRBR TREE -

31 January 27 July
2023 2020
—T-=F —B-%HF

—A=+—8 +AZ=-++H

HK$0.145 HK$0.26

0.145% 7T 0.26/8 7T

HK$0.145 HK$0.26

0.145% 7T 0.26/8 7T

3.2550% 0.069%

63% 66%

N/AAE 2.47

HERAT 2.2 1.60
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 3. BRERROGRERE (&)
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued) BT & (&)
Movements in the number of share options granted to REARBE_-_T— \FHERETERT
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group ARARESE FAEEEBRAMEER
and other eligible persons outstanding under the 2018 AT ZHRRITEBRESBEZSHOT

Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-F-_=f+-A=1t—-HLHEE
Number of share options
BREHE

Balance

Balance Granted Exercised Lapsed as at

Exercise  asat 1 January during during during 31 December

Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 2023 the year the year the year 2023

RZBZzZE R-BzzE

-A-A tZA=t-H

ERARN L SRR 58 RERRH RERTE RERKH 55

Directors of the Company 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 10,156,000 - - (10,156,000) -
YN+ TECRELACTLR 02657

Substantial sharefolder 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 1,228,000 - - (1,228,000) -
TERE CECRELACTLR 02657

Employees 27 luly 2020 HK$0.26 35,760,000 - - (35,760,000) -
2 “RCRFLACTER 02687

31 January 2023 HK$0.145 - 170,100,000 = (700,000) 169,400,000

“ECZF-fZ1-A 0.145% T

Other elighle person 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 7,700,000 - - (7,700,000) -
EpERAL ZRIEELAITHR 026% T

Total 54,844,000 170,100,000 - (55,544,000) 169,400,000
it

Exercisable as at 31 December 2023 -
RZEZ=ETZA=1-H
ERiGL

Weighted average exercise price HK$0.26 HK$0.145 - HK$0.259 HK80.145
MERHTIEE 02687 01457 0259%7 014587
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

Year ended 31 December 2022
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IERERKRGOER (E)

BRES S ()
B2+ _-_A=+—HLtHFE

Number of share options
BRiEH
Balance
Balance as at Granted Exercised Lapsed st
Evercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 202 the year the year the year 202
S RZEZ
-A-8 =
HRAER = ERITEE ik RERR REME RERKH ba:i
Directors of the Company 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 11,384,000 - - (1,228,000) 10,156,000
ALRES CECRELACTLE 02637
Substantial shareholder 27 luly 2020 HK$0.26 1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000
TERR TECREYACTER 02657
Employees 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 36,060,000 = = (300,000) 35,760,000
2 CECRELACTLE 0267
Other eligible persons 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 7,700,000 - = = 7,700,000
AfpRBBAL ZECRELACTLE 0267
Totd 56,372,000 = = (1,528,000) 54,844,000
feit
Eercisable as at 31 December 2022 54,844,000
R-E-ZF-A=1-H
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.26 - - - HK$0.26
MERHIEE 0267 026%7
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Awarded share schemes

On 31 March 2008, the Board approved the
establishment of two share incentive award schemes,
namely the VC Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share
Subscription Scheme”) and the VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) (the Share
Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription Scheme
collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes"). The Share Subscription Scheme will subscribe
for new shares whereas the Share Purchase Scheme
utilises shares purchased in the market. The directors of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme

but not the Share Subscription Scheme.

The purpose of each of the Share Subscription Scheme
and the Share Purchase Scheme is to encourage and
facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares in the
Company, by and for the benefit of employees of the
Company and any subsidiaries of the Company
(excluding directors of the Company and any subsidiaries
and other connected persons of the Company in respect
of the Share Subscription Scheme). The Board may
determine from time to time to award shares in order to
recognise the contribution of certain employees, to seek
to retain them for the continued operation and
development of the Group, and to attract suitable

personnel for the further development of the Group.

IERERKRGOER (&)
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 3. ERRGOER (F)

(continued)

Awarded share schemes (continued)

Share Subscription Scheme

The Share Subscription Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share Award
Scheme Trust. The directors of the Company and any
subsidiaries and other connected persons of the
Company will not be entitled to participate in the Share
Subscription Scheme. The number of shares to be issued
under the Share Subscription Scheme is limited to one
per cent of the ordinary issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (excluding shares which

have already been transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
a subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has the
discretion to stipulate such other conditions in respect of
a particular employee which will apply to the vesting of
the shares. No share was granted through the Share

Subscription Scheme since its establishment.
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33. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)

Awarded share schemes (continued)

Share Purchase Scheme

The Share Purchase Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share
Purchase Scheme Trust. The directors and employees of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme.
The number of shares to be issued under the Share
Purchase Scheme is limited to two per cent of the
ordinary issued share capital of the Company from time
to time (excluding shares which have already been

transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as the Director or an employee of
the Company or a subsidiary until the vesting date. The
Board also has the discretion to stipulate such other
conditions in respect of a particular Director or an

employee which will apply to the vesting of the shares.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there was no movement or outstanding awarded shares

under the Share Purchase Scheme.

The Share Subscription Scheme and the Share Purchase
Scheme were terminated by the Board on 7 September
2023.
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect

of capital contribution are as follows:

(a) In July 2016, VC Brokerage entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement")
with three independent third parties to establish a
joint venture, in which the principal activity is
securities broking in Guangxi, the PRC (the “JV
Company”). Pursuant to the Joint Venture
Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445
million (equivalent to approximately HK$488 million
(2022: equivalent to approximately HK$445
million), representing 44.5% equity interest of the
JV Company. Meanwhile, the Company entered into
a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with
a placing agent to procure on a best effort basis, to
not less than six independent parties, to subscribe
for the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$850 million during the placing
period, to finance the investment of the JV

Company.

The Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing
Agreement will become effective upon (i) the
Company having obtained the approval and
authorisation from its shareholders and the relevant
regulatory authorities about the Joint Venture
Agreement and the Placing Agreement; and (ii) VC
Brokerage having obtained the approval and
authorisation from the relevant regulatory authorities
for establishment of the JV Company. On 26
October 2016, the approval and authorisation from
the shareholders of the Company in relation to the
Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement

had been obtained.
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

(2)

(b)

©

(continued)

In October 2023, VC Brokerage through another JV
Company partner to make an application to the
CSRC to retrieve the application for establishment of
the JV Company (the “Retrieval Application”). With
the name of the JV Company having disappeared
from the relevant public domain of the PRC since
December 2023, the Retrieval Application is
considered to have been approved. VC Brokerage
does not have to pay any money for, and does not
have to bear any liability with respect to, the
Retrieval Application. The Consideration shall be
HK$15,000,000, and the Consideration shall be
settled by the Purchaser's procuring the Company to
allot and issue the Consideration Shares at the issue
price of HK$0.1623 per Share to the Vendor at the
Completion.

On 25 November 2022, VC Financial Group Limited
("VC Financial”), a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Anli Holdings Limited (“Anli
Holdings"”) entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, to acquire VCIAM (formerly name as “Anli
Asset Management Limited”), a subsidiary of Anli
Holdings at a consideration of HK$15,000,000 by
issuing consideration shares amounting to 92,421,442
new shares at issue price of HK$0.1623 per
consideration share by the Company to Anli Holdings.
This transaction was approved in the extraordinary
general meeting on 2 March 2023 and was completed
on 3 April 2023 as disclosed in note 37.

On 16 March 2023, Astral Wealth Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an exclusive agreement with two
independent third parties to acquire a property
located in Hong Kong, through acquisition of a Hong
Kong private company that is holding the said
property, at a consideration of HK$18,000,000 of
which HK$16,000,000 was paid as deposit during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The completion
date of the transaction has been extended to be on
or before 30 April 2024.
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure each group
entity will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising

issued share capital and reserves).

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
manages its overall capital structure through payment of

dividends and issuance of new shares.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with the SFC for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R,
the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their liquid
capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined by
the SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with the SFC on a monthly basis. The
Regulated Subsidiaries have no non-compliance with the
liquid capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
during the year.
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

One of the subsidiaries, being a member of Insurance
Authority during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, is required to maintain a minimum net asset value
and share capital of HK$500,000 during the year ended
31 December 2023 and HK$300,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2022. There is no non-compliance
of the capital requirements imposed by the Insurance
Authority the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised costs
Financial asset at FVTOCI

Financial asset at FVTPL

MBEE

BEMHERANI R 2B EE

35.

36.

EXERERE (F)
REBEE_T-_=FR_ZT-__F+2H
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B2 EARHTE °

TREE
EMEEER
2023 2022
—E-=F —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
354,069 432,448

BAFENEREEME2E
Hﬁz/\i’%ﬁiﬁzﬁﬁ%é? 16,439 22,592
BAFEINERERZ

BRIBCBIISEE
— Held for trading —’HEEE 155,133 300,595
— Designated at FVTPL —BERKRATEIIR
MRS RERIE 12,700 18,100
Financial liabilities BkaE
Amortised cost B # 85 A AR 32,893 35,548
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. R E (F)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental
and utility deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at FVTOCI, accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities and other payables, margin loan
payables and convertible bonds. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in their respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

It is the Group's policy for each group entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Almost all of the Group's principal businesses are
conducted in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the respective entities of the
Group, with small amounts of bank deposits
denominated in foreign currency. Since the impact of
foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging against
foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis on

currency risk was presented.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to convertible bonds included in financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 24), fixed-rate accounts receivable
from money lending business (see note 25). The
management considered that the risk associated within

these balances are insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business such as cash clients
and margin clients (see note 25). Bank balances are
excluded from the interest rate sensitivity analysis as they

are not sensitive to the change in market interest rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. It is the Group's policy to keep accounts
receivable from brokerage and financing business and
short-term bank borrowing at floating rate as to minimise

the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
variable-rate accounts receivable from brokerage and

financing business and variable-rate bank borrowings.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. R E (F)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding were outstanding for
the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2022: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax loss would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$146,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$163,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business and variable-rate bank

borrowings.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through the
Group's investment in listed equity securities and
convertible bonds which are classified as financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 24) as at 31 December 2023. If the
market price of the listed equity securities is 10% higher/
lower as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 10% higher/
lower), the Group's post-tax loss would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$15,513,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$30,060,000) as a
result of the change in fair value of the listed equity

securities.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent our Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts and receivables from
margin clients with shortfalls in relation to the business of
VC Brokerage, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit

risk is significantly reduced.

For money lending business of VC Finance Limited (“VC
Finance”) and corporate finance business of VC Capital
Limited (“VC Capital”), both are the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, the Group closely
evaluates the borrowers’ credit rating, financial
background and repayment abilities so as to minimise
the Group's exposure to credit risk. The assessment is
based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on the
management's judgement, including the current
creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral value and the
past collection history of each individual borrower within
the Group. The Group will take necessary action to follow
up the overdue loans and ensure that adequate loss
allowances are made for individual loans. As at 31
December 2023, the Group recognised a loss allowance
of approximately HK$171,748,000 (2022:
HK$78,362,000) for the loans with ECL.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 for accounts receivable other than money lending and
margin clients to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL for accounts receivable. The Group determines the
ECL on an individual basis for customer with significant
balances and collectively by using a provision matrix with
reference to past default experience of the accounts
receivable, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
accounts receivable, latest collateral valuation general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The accounts receivable from margin clients and money
lending services are pledged by listed securities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting period,
without taking into account the collateral is disclosed in
note 25. The management considers that the credit risk
arising from the accounts receivable is significantly
mitigated by the listed equity securities held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the listed equity

securities at 31 December 2023.

Management considered deposits and other receivables
to be low credit risk and thus the impairment provision
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL,
expect for deposits and other receivables are considered
that the credit risk is significantly increased or defaulted

will be measure at lifetime ECL.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. R E (F)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

«  internal credit rating

«  external credit rating

« actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower's ability to meet its obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the

operating results of the borrower

+ significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-

party guarantees or credit enhancements
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TERE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and MBERRERE RS RBUR (#)

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EEE R (&)

significant increase in credit risk on other financial - BRAHMERERZEERRE
instruments of the borrower FERE

significant changes in the expected performance and c EBRAZEHRRITRELEXR
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the & 2 BEEEANBRAZNKIE
payment status of borrowers in the Group and B RERAREREZ R

changes in the operating results of the borrower

The Group's exposure to credit risk rEEEHZEERR

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its RESRECERAR XEEEZE )fE,\
credit committee to develop and maintain the Group's EEZEgY J&i’ﬁ—rﬁﬁl =&
credit risk grading to categorise exposures according to %ﬁ CURBEORREE R AR D
their degree of risk of default. The credit rating cEETREK BB LT REERM
information is supplied by independent rating agencies (ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ) BRAMEEEPIEREM AR
where available and, if not available, the credit ASHBENMAEREBER HRtkE
department uses other publicly available financial HIZXPRHEMEBATR KEE
information and the Group’s own trading records to rate REERARRIRERGHF ZEET
its major customers and other debtors. The Group's B WHEFTER 2 X5 BEERLIZER
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are SEFRE#ES -

continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework

comprises the following categories:

Category
5l

Performing

R4

Doubtful

i

Default

(ol
ey

Write-off

3

17

Description
B

For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired

(refer to as Stage 1)
BORREXENTHANREER R W EBEZIEN - BE
EEREZVBEE (RFEIRKR)

For financial assets where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are

not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)
B FHERARGEE R REZEINEN BEERE
ZHBEE(RB2ER)

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred

(refer to as Stage 3)
E-HAZEUVBEERTARARBEeREETNEEZSE
LR ZEENWHAERAEERE (REIBER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic

prospect of recovery
BEBBETREBABAREN BN E - H i< & B4 m KIE

ZREWE

36. TR RE (&B)
MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

EEEE (&)

AEBRITEERARFEERBIEAT

Basis for recognising ECL

BARMFEBRZKE

12-month ECL

T EAEHEERE

Lifetime ECL — not credit

impaired

EEFEREREERHE -
I EEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit

impaired

EEFENAREEBE -

EERE

Amount is written off

IR T M
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MBERRERE RS RBUR (#)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEE R (&)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TERBEEERRE TR AERE
financial assets as well as the Group's maximum BEZEEERERAKEMEH&ZALZ
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. EERR -
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
“$=Et2AZT-R a2 g o i
Exemal credit  Intemal credit 12-month or Q1SS CAMying Loss  Net camying  Gross carrying Loss  Net camying
rating rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount amount allowance amount
t=fifg
BREEH

MICEHE ABERRR RECHER BEAE  EREE  REFE  FESE  BRER BEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$1000

TEn T TEn ThR Thn Thn

Rental and utlity deposits N/A Performing 12-month ECL 523 - 523 1,608 - 1,608
BeRAERS NER R TZRARH
FEER
Accounts receivable (other than N/A N/A Lifetime ECL 59,636 (8,667) 50,969 12722 (2945) 9,777
money lending and MNif MR (Simplified
margin clients) approach)
ERER (MER BERE0ES
RESEPRA) FEER
(ltn %)
Accounts receivable from money  N/A Performing ~ 12-month ECL 41,940 (108) 41832 218751 (504) 218247
lending and margn clents 7@ R RiF T_HAEE
EUHERFESEFZ FERE
EWE
Accounts receivable from money — N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL - not 297,207 (93,370) 203,837 163,733 (22314) 141419
lending and margin clients NaR B8 credit impaired
EUHERFREEEPZ LfirESRE
B FEER
-igEE
W
Accounts receivable from money N/ Default Lifetime 140,844 (124,621) 16,223 88,055 (63417) 24638
lending and margin clients NER B4 ECL - credit
EUHERREEEP L impaired
EUER EEFELES
FERR

-EEHE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

31 December 2023

36. TR R (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

EEEE (&)

31 December 2022

ZECZETIAZT-H i Sk g o
Exemal credit Internal credit 12-monthor 0SS CaTying Loss  Net camrying ~ Cross carying Loss  Net camying
rating rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount amont  allowance amount
+2fiRg
4Gl b
HNIEERE MBRERR REEEER BEsE ERER FARE BHLE FEkR FHRH
HK$'000
Thn
Deposits and other receivables N/A Performing 12-month ECL ‘ 22,307
BEREHELER TR RiF RERESEE
Bk
Deposits and other receivables N/A Default Lifetime 657
BEREMERER TER &h ECL - cedit
impaired
EEGEDHRD
FERR
-fREHfE

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets at
FVTPL as disclosed in note 24 represents their respective
maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group holds no
collateral over any of these balances.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2023 and 2022. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
has concentration of credit risk on the accounts
receivable as the aggregate balances with the five largest
clients represent approximately 45% (2022: 34%) of
total accounts receivable. However, the fair values of the
securities collateral held by the Group for these balances
are either in excess to the relevant carrying amounts or
have no overdue amounts as at the end of each
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is closely
monitored. The Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk.

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TR TAT TAT TAR

22,307 3,640 = 3,640

ff FE24FT R B AR B3R A FEI R K&
EREREEZMBEEZREERK
HREESA RS 2 &REERR - &
& B\ % F A RIS A (R

[}
og °

B mE R E =R T —4F
TZA=+—R AEBZEERBREE
EPREB -N-B-_=F+-"A=+—
H A&EBERKERCEPEER
B HERAREP 2 RESREEKER
WEEHAS0 (Z B Z ZF 1 340%) o K
- ANEBERZEERBFTECEAES
ZATFERREEEEEIRN SRS H
B M AR SRIE - Ei - AR ARIEER
AAREEZEERBREOBIEYER -
rEBUTEEMSEEREERR -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. EMEE (F)
BEEABERsRE RBE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows is the source of fund to
finance the operations of the Group. The Group's liquidity
risk management includes diversifying the funding

sources. The Group regularly reviews the major funding

B E AR

AEELEMAEEREARBEEZR
ERE - AKRBZRDERRERERES
DEESRIR - AEBTEHRASE
BEERMN - UBRZHMEERRIAMD

ﬂ

GRS ik

positions to ensure adequate financial resources are

available to meet their respective financial obligations.

MEE TR
TRERAKETEMBABEZHE
ERHFHINZERENTBREOHR
TRAERAEEREATHEEZRFH
HeHMBREZAURASRERR -
TEREBRAZEMNERERE - EFE
BEBFENBERT  RBERESHIIH
WEHIRA RAARDTAE

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities with the earliest date on
which the Group are required to settle. The tables include
both principal and interest cash flows. To the extent that
the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of

the reporting period.

On demand Total Total
or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted carrying
1 month months to 1year  cash flows amount
RERE
BE RERRE

—fANR -E=fBR =BAE-f REAE REAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TER

At 31 December 2023 R-E

—E-=E
tZAZ+-E

Non-derivative financial liabilities  JEfTE MK A&

Accounts payable JE {85 3% 3,429 = = 3,429 3,429
Margin loan payables ERNRELER 20,838 - - 20,838 20,838
Other payables Bt JE TR 6,863 1,690 73 8,626 8,626

31,130 1,690 73 32,893 32,893
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TR RE (&B)
Financial risk management objectives and MEERERE2RE RBE (#)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBEZEE (E)
Liquidity table (continued) nEBEeR (&)
In addition, the Group’s maturity profile of its lease pSh - AEERER B AWERMAT -

liabilities is as follow:

Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
interest rate ~ or less than 3 months to undiscounted carying
(pa) 1 month  1-3 months Tyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
&Y e RERRE

Edg  -EAMm -E=@A Z@EAE-f -FERF  REAE  RE4E
%  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TEL TR TER TR TR

Lease liabilies HEak 5.63 - 2,002 5,166 901 8,069 7,862
On demand Total Total
or ess than 3months  undiscounted carying

1Tmonth 13 months tolyear  cash flows amount
REXE
EES RERRE

-BAMA -EZ@A Z@AE-F  REEE  REGE
HK000  HKFOOD  HKFOOO  HKS0OO  HKS000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

At 31 December 2022 WZFIZE

+ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilies FiEhKak
Accounts payable EREZ 5235 - - 5235 5235
Margin loan payables ERfFESER 18,470 - - 18,470 18470
Other payables Hft R B 5931 - - 5931 5,931
Convertible bonds issued (note 31) BRAMERES W) - - 6,500 6,500 5912

29,636

6,500 36,136 35,548




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Annual Report 2023 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & It F8RFRMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

In addition, the Group’s maturity profile of its lease

liabilities is as follow:

Lease liabilities

Weighted
average
interest rate

(pa)
nEFY
%

%

fEak 525

On demand
or less than
1 month
—BANR
HK$'000
Tir

36. TERE (&)

MBEERERZREREEK (&)

RBEZ AR (E)
mBEER(E)

go - AEEHEREZBHBERMT

3 months
1-3 months fo T year 15 years

-E-fR -ERE-§ -FREf
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TAR TAR T

2,008 3,604 4192

Total
undiscounted
cash flows

AERRE
REEE
HK$'000

TAL

9,804

Total
carying
amount

FELE
HK$'000
TR

9,423
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of

each reporting period for recurring and non-recurring

measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the fair value is observable in

accordance to the Group's accounting policy. The

directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

36.

TREE (&)
RESUBRRKRER 2D FER

==%
TREJINEREHRAFEAEZS
MEBRFAKEUENEREEAEZS
o DERBEBEAEEGFBREZAF
BEZABERBEEMENARIEIN - &K
RAIEZRB/NERE M WKL HK
RIERZMBEERMBREIREE
BEHENFEES -

31 December 2023
—E-=%t=R=+-H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER H2R E3IR £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FTER FET
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEIERRE
BERREEZ
BBEE
Convertible bonds Al AR (& 55 - - 12,700 12,700
Listed equity securities IR ES 155,133 - - 155,133
Financial assets at FVTOCI A FEIERE
Ht2EWB AR
BRECZHBEE
Unlisted equity securities FELETRAE S - - 16,439 16,439
Total wmat 155,133 - 29,139 184,272
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

36. TERE (&)

RESUBRRKRER 2D FE

£ (&)

31 December 2022

—E-F+-RA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF E2 E3R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FH T FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEIERRE
BEREREE2
BMEEE
Convertible bonds A& 25 - - 18,100 18,100
Listed equity securities EHRARE 300,595 - - 300,595
Financial assets at FVTOCI B AFEIIER#E
Hit2EWKRA X
BEECHEEE
Unlisted equity securities IE_E TR FE 5 - - 22,592 22,592
Total st 300,595 - 40,692 341,287
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair

value measurements of each financial instrument on a

recurring basis are set out below:

Financial instruments

ELES

Financial assets at FUTPL
BATENEREERR
REVHBEE

Convertible bonds

Listed equity securities

LiRAES

Fair value
hierarchy

DYHEER

Level 3

#34

Level 1
1%

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

Fair values as at
31 December

2023

“BCCE

HK§'000
TER

12,700

155,133

2022

It St
HK§ 000
TEn

300,595

36. TR R (&)

Valuation technique and
key inputs

RTZR=1-B2AVE HERARIZAALE

Binomial model: By reference

to the risk free rate of 4.07% (2022:
4.14%) and effective interest rate of

149
(2022: 140)

ZEA B
2ZEERTEL07%
(ZEZF:4149)
REBHZ14%
(ZEZZF:149)

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RRMEHAEAE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTRERANE

2023 Volatiity of 1520
(B: 70%

2022: Volatiity of 1520
(B: 85%
FICE:

15200 R EH 2
X8 : 70%

“ECoCE:
15200 Bk ERZ
I« 85%

N/A
¥l

Annual Report 2023 &%

RESUBRRKRER 2D FER
£ (&)

EORRBIEERIELEY AT EMHE
B AR 2 (i 1B 3 0 A BB BB ¢

Relationship of key inputs and
significant unobservable

inputs to fair value
IZHAHEREATURE
BAHBEATECBE

The higher the volatilty, the higher
of the fair value of the CBs

N/A
il
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36.

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets at FUTOCI
RATESIER AR
REZHKEE

Unlisted equity securities

F RS

Fair value
hierarchy
AYEER
2023
ZECZE
HK$'000
Thn
Level 3 16,439
238

Fair values as at
31 December

2022
“ECCF
HK$'000
Tén

259

Valuation technique and
key inputs

RT-A=1-R2AYE (ERARIEAAZSE

2023: Market approach

2022: Market approach

“$725

i Sube 231} 1

EHMEE ()

293

RESUBRRKRER 2D FE

£ (&)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTRREANE

2025: Marketability discount of
20.5%

2022: Marketabilty discount of
20.6%

s
[ dikelis
{f#120.5%

nEiElE
#1206%

Relationship of key inputs and
significant unobservable

inputs to fair value
TEGAIBREATTRE
BAUBELATEZBR

2025: By reference to price-to-book
value ratio of 0.368

2022: By reference to price-to-book
value ratio of 0.495

s

BETMHE0368

—EICE:
BEMEL0495E



294

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A T

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_T-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets on recurring basis are as follows:

Annual Report 2023 &%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %8 BT8R RMisE

36. TR RE (&B)
RESUBRRKRER 2D FER
E (%)

B EEREENEIRAFEFE Y
BEEHE

Financial Financial
assets at assets at
FVTPL FVTOCI Total

BOYE BOTETR
SRR A REEMZE

BREREE BKAREE
ZHBERE ZHBEE @t
Convertible Unlisted equity
bonds securities Total
FEH
TERES BRA®RS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
As 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_%—fF—H 8,964 23,173 32,137
Purchases BE 10,000 - 10,000
Gain on acquisition E B 15 s 7,600 - 7,600
Converted i (8,964) - (8,964)
Fair value gain through ERRKERL
profit or loss AT EkRE 500 - 500
Fair value loss through other EHMZEARARERZ
comprehensive income ATEER - (581) (581)
As 31 December 2022 and RZBEZZF+ZA=+—
1 January 2023 Ak-S-=%—H—H 18,100 22,592 40,692
Fair value gain through EERERRAZ 2T ERE
profit or loss (5,400) - (5,400)
Fair value loss through other EEMZERARER L
comprehensive income AHEBE - (6,153) (6,153)
At 31 December 2023 RZTZ=%
+=-A=+—"H 12,700 16,439 29,139
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include

financial assets and financial liabilities that:

« are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position; or

« are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and HKSCC and brokers, the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the money
obligation receivable and payable with HKSCC and
brokers on the same settlement date and the Group

intends to set off on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on the same
date and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
brokerage clients that are due to be settled on delivery
versus payment basis, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable

following an event of default.

36. TERE (&)

MBEERVKEBEIEE
TEREBN 2 HBEERNBRBERATER
ZHBEEMMBAE

%

RSB AR A M AR R R

ﬁ:

- XRERBEREBRY RGBT
2R R AR L Bk R R R R P AR
R TwmHEEERAEELEE MBS
IR RS o

REAEEEEBEE MELEDZH
BRBREEDE  AKEREAAKER
BT 2N BEEEGEERELZ
RMER—E&ERIHEAERAER
FEEERHEZ BERENEREER

BESN - KRB EE A ORE B BT 2R
Mo BEELEFP CRAER—EE
NPAASERRRFRERIBHE
Yot e A~ RR SRR 8H o

BRE— BB MEE 2 &5 T AR H
oh - BB EIRUNEEEE 2 IR
ENREEFPER  UFRA—BEHE
ZRE S ENEERE BREEERE
PR AEBERFBEAR (2
BRENEBF)  URTFRREBEE
MRz BE  —BITAaRB BRI
FAEBEZRE HAECHERSEL
BAMEREOFHRT ABRFIAT -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TR RE (&B)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MREERVBEEEEE (&)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2023 R=BZ=+=HA=+—H

Gross amounts of ~ Net amounts of  Related amounts not set off in the
accounts payable accounts consolidated statement of
setoffinthe receivable in the financial position
Gross amounts of consolidated consolidated
accounts statement of statement of Financial Collateral
receivable ~ financial position financial position instruments received Net amount
R&a R&a
BHRR BHRR TERGAHERRE
Bl RAf#Ez  RRZER REHZRBRE
BREE EARIAE BHER ¢RZE  EhEAR R
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Accounts receivable arising from the 7 B % £ B2+
ordinary course of business of REMEERFRS
dealing in securities transactions MES 2 BRER 143317 (1,173) 142,144 - (136929) 5,215
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TR RE (&B)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MBEERVEEEES (H)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2022 R_BE-__F+ZA=+—H

Grossamounts of — Netamountsof — Related amounts not st off in the

accounts payeble accounts consolidated statement of
setoffinthe  receivable in the financil posttion
Gross amounts of consolideted consolideted
accounts statement of statement of Financial Colteral
receiveble fiancial position financial position insfrumens received Net amount
MR MR

MR MR PERGRBBRNE
Bl RAE#H:  RAZER AEHZRBE

ERGE ENRIEE ERFE RRE  Chifm 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 K000

TEn TEn TEn TERL TERL TERL

Accounts receivable arising from the & R ¥ £ 8724
ordinary course of business of RETEEEARS
dealing in securites transactions MEE 2 EYER 170,340 (312) 167,218 (82) (166,982) 154
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. TR RE (&B)
MHEERMBAGEES (H)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Gross amounts
of accounts
payable

ERERNAE
HK$'000
Tén

Accounts payable arising flom the ~ EREEKBER
ordinary course of business of RETEERARS
dealing in securities transactions MEEZEFER 85,367

Gross amounts
of accounts
receivable
set off

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
RERETE
RRARA
BHZER
BRas
HK$'000
TR

(84,254)

R-B-_=%+Z-A=t+—H

Net amounts
of accounts
payable

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial

position

RE4HE
#2502
RAERFE
HK$'000
FAR

1,113

Related amounts not set off in the
consolidated statement of

financial position
Financial Collateral
instruments pledged
PERGRHHRRRA
EHzRBRE
Byt
tREE gl
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
- (1,175)

Net amount

FE
HKS'000
TERL

(62)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. eMERE (&)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities MBEERVEEEES (H)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF+=ZHAH=+—H
Gross amounts of Related amounts not set off n the
accounts receivable et amounts of consolidated statement of
setoffinthe — accounts payable financil postion
(ross amounts consolidated  in the consolidated
of accounts statement of statement of Financil Collteral
payeble  financial position  financial posttion instruments pledged Net amount
REREH TN BRRER
HARR  REsHE B REE
BHzER  WARAZ BEERY
ERENES FRgE EARNTE E=E3 ] Bfm ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Hk$000

TR TR TEn TEx TEx TEn

Accounts payable arising from the £ R E£H T2
ordinary course of business of RETEERFRS
dealing in securities transactions MELZERER 98457 (94655) 3802 (82) (2303) 1417
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

37. REEKEB QT

On 3 April 2023, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interests in VCIAM (formerly name as “Anli Asset
Management Limited”) from Anli Holdings, an
independent third party. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount
of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$6,308,000. VCIAM is engaged in the provision of
asset management service. VCIAM was acquired so as to
continue the expansion of the Group's asset

management service operation.

RZE-_=ZFNA=H " AEBERBL
E=FREBEERKEEREREEER
(B ZEEEEREARAA] Z
100%M% # - 1t T8 W g B B A B A A
F-ARUEMEEAECRESEAR
6,308,000 T - [ER BIFR & EE E)E
ERUEEEERLE KEERBEKRE
EERDRTRERAAEB ZEES
BRI -

Consideration transferred FrERAE
HK$'000
FET
Equity instruments issued EBITRARE 13,863
Contingent consideration arrangement AR E LB 335
14,198

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of VCIAM,
92,421,442 ordinary share of the Company with par
value of HK$0.1623 each were issued. The fair value of
the ordinary shares of the Company, determined using
the published price available at the date of the
acquisition, amounted to HK$13,863,000.

The contingent consideration arrangement requires the
Group to pay, in cash, to the former owners of VCIAM,
10.49 (the agreed price-earning multiple) times of the
actual audited net profit after tax of VCIAM as set out in
the audited accounts of VCIAM for the 12 months ended
from the acquisition date, in excess of HK$15,000,000,
up to a maximum undiscounted amount of
HK$25,000,000.

ERKEBEERBEBEEEER 25K
8 ANQRA)EETT92,421,402 BREE
0162382 EBMKR - ARBIEBR 2
AFERKEEB M ZERTER
13,863,000/ 7T °

IRAREBLHRTE  AEBEAUREM
ERBEREEER ZAEHRA AXZTHE
EREREREEEECEZERME
CERBBREETE S WEA ML
1218 A 2 BER K EZR B % %M FHE
21049 (B EMRBREBE) 2 &8 -
1B 15,000,000 & - AIZEAZ T 2
K BEIR & % LR A25,000,000/8 7T °
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The potential undiscounted amount of all future
payments that the Group could be required to make
under this arrangement is between nil and HK$390,000.
At date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement of HK$335,000 was estimated
by applying the income approach. The fair value
estimates are based on a discount rate of 13% and
assumed probability-adjusted profit in VCIAM of nil to

HK$335,000. This is a level 3 fair value measurement.

As of 31 December 2023, there was a fair value loss of
HK$335,000 recognised in the profit or loss and included
in other gains or losses, net for the contingent
consideration, as the assumed probability adjusted profit

in VCIAM was recalculated to nil.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

Analysis of fair value of assets and liabilities over which

control was acquired:

37. WEEK B AT (4])

BELEEZYE  NREBERRAEATE
RZAAEREZBEARBBRESERTE
390,000 7L - R EE B HI - KA KRB
Z B2 A F{E335,000/8 7T Ty £ A Uk &
EAEE o ATEMET T ER 13080 B X
RERBEREETEZBRELMEAR
2 M BT E£335000%8 7T o B R E
IMATETE -

HE-_Z-_=%+-_F=+—8 @R
ERBRREEEEZBRECHEAER
FEEFTERAT MR BEEPRE
BT AFEFI83350008 wW A E
fib Wz Sk BT 18 (HIBR KA RAE) o

RUKEE B2 B A E R R
mF :

RERHIRZEERBBEZRAFHED

3/4/2023

—E-=F

WA =H

HK$'000

FHET

Other intangible assets (note 17) HtEBEE (MiF17) 3,256
Deferred tax assets BEEFIREE 143
Accounts receivable JiE L BR 3R 5,102
Prepayments and deposits TEfTRIE Rig® 46
Bank balances and cash WITHBR IR S 316
Accrued expenses FEETF X (436)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE (537)
Net asset acquired PRl e & EFE 7,890
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The fair value of accounts receivable at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$5,102,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those accounts receivable
acquired amounted to HK$5,102,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected

amounted to nil.

37. WEEKI B D 7 (4])

EUEFRAUKBERZAFES
5,102,000/ JT © 5% 5 # W I8 2 JE W BR
FR S B B 2 & #048 %8 /35,102,000
BT o R B I EERE 2 & 4
ReERBEZRERTERES -

o

Goodwill arising on acquisition: RBBEmMEEZ2EE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred PEENKE 14,198
Less: net asset acquired W TR EERE (7,890)
Goodwill arising on acquisition MU EEmEE 2 HE 6,308

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of VCIAM because the
cost of the combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of VCIAM.
These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition

criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

A EERBEREEEEELE THE
FREREHZAANBIEEGEGE - Ut
S MAEHMIN 2REER LR
ERBEREEEE 2 ARBRME WK
HIER AR EERRREHNBAM
WRZME - ARZFMNELE AR
WA ENEEZERFTE  RALEER



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2023 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & It F8RFRMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_T-_=F+-A=1t—HLEFE

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 37. WIBHI B A | (4&)
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is MZFWEMEE 2 EETEN
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. HA® -
WEEREMREEEE 2
Net cash (inflow) on acquisition of VCIAM B & (R A) B4 HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration paid (note a) ENBeRE (Hita) =
Less: cash and cash equivalent B TR MR eFEER
balances acquired R (316)
(316)
Included in the loss for the year is HK$504,000 FEEEORERBRBREETEERK Y
attributable to the additional business generated by 58 9N ¥ 75 5 18504,00058 7T © &£ W 25
VCIAM. Revenue for the year includes HK$2,165,000 BRAXEBEREEEEEE 2 W&
generated from VCIAM. 2,165,000/ 7T °
Note a: The consideration is paid through issuing shares of the Midta : REDBEBEITADRRM AT o

Company.
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEME QA
On 8 December 2023, the Group agreed to dispose of RZBEZ=F+Z-ANB  A5ERE
the 100% equity interests in VC Financial Investment L‘Afﬁﬁﬁf@6 400,000/ T B 7 H =
Holding Limited to an independent third party for a cash FHEERSRREERBERAAZ
consideration of HK$6,400,000. 1009%% 1 °
The net liabilities of the Disposal Group at the date of HHESERLERM AEFHEOT

disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was KEBHEZBEERBEBEZDN :
lost:
8/12/2023
—E-=%F
+=ANHB
HK$'000
FHET
Bank balances and cash HRITA ﬁ?&fﬁi 4,022
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEft 3k ?Eé’?&ﬁﬁﬂf”&ﬁﬁ 11
Amount due to ultimate holding company J?EHWZU /NI (196)
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries e R 2 i B8 A Rl 5k 1A (4,558)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEFTBERE M EMERR )
Shareholder's loan Hx%ff = (68)
Net liabilities disposed of FrHEBEFE (791)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA Rz W HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HERE 6,400
Net liabilities disposed of FHEaBEFEaE 791
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries JE £ [A] %Fﬁ%’& ﬂ*”lﬁ (4,558)
Amount due to holding company FERHERR A (196)

2,437
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. HEME A A (&)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEEZRESRAFHE: HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReERKE 6,400
Less: consideration receivables (note) o EWRAE (H i) (2,198)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances W FTHEReRReEE
disposal of I8 B #A R (4,022)
180
The amounts due to the group companies of JE -7 & B A 7] 2 5/ 1B %94,754,000% 7T
approximately HK$4,754,000 were waived by the Group REKLENBRARIBRERAEERR -
upon completion of the disposal of subsidiaries.
Note: The consideration receivables is settled in cash by the it BERER-_ZF_MNFE—-—A++tH
purchaser on 17 January 2024. HEAARSEN -
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BB SR B
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated RGETBREREMBETREEIN
financial statements, during the year, the Group entered FA - AEEGEBHTETUATRS:
into the following transactions with related parties:
2023 2022
—E-= —_E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Brokerage commission income earned MARRETEFHZSE
from certain directors of the Company EERFEERBABZ
or close family members of or entities MRS REES 2 B8
controlled by these directors and key PRI 2 B 2B e WA
management 35 174
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. BB AR5 ()
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAS ZHRM
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other FARRAEEREMEBEEZES 2B
members of key management personnel during the year ST
is as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E£=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Short term benefits 2 HifR A 8,571 8,303
Post-employment benefits BB 2 12 A 54 54
Other long term benefits H h = Hi 42 A = (10)
8,625 8,347
The remuneration is determined by the Remuneration Me R ARAFHFME S GEED E5
Committee of the Company having regard to the ATRBEEMIGBEEET -

performance of individuals and market trends.
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. KRR Z B AR TR
COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-=HF —EFE-=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FH&xT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z®E 0) 2,688 2,688
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFERRERR
REECMBEE 12,700 18,100
Amount due from a subsidiary FE WK BB A R 3RIE (i) 500,733 483,345
516,121 504,133
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other JE{fZTE « #& &
receivables H b JE PR X 18,596 813
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEYERERZ
REEHBEE 144,933 265,183
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEU KT B A 738 i) 603,923 320,742
Bank balances RITHE AR 126 7,245
767,578 593,983
Current liabilities REAEE
Accrued liabilities and other EitaEREM
payables J& - BR 3K 11,612 986
Margin loan payable ERRBEE K 18,761 15,951
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A B3k IB (i) 744,056 346,532
Convertible bonds AT E - 5912
774,429 369,381
Net current (liabilities) assets 7% (A fE) EEFHE (6,851) 246,602
Total assets less current WEERRBERE
liabilities 509,270 728,735
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. A QB 2 MR K (E)
COMPANY (continued)

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE = 97
- 97
Net assets BEEFHE 509,270 728,638
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital f% Z< 1,803,718 1,753,934
Reserves G (1,294,448)  (1,025,296)
Total equity EREH 509,270 728,638
The Company’s statement of financial position was RRARZHBRAARKREFERN T
approved and authorised for issue by the board of THE=ZAZ T N\BHERERT X
directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf HTIIEEHREE
by:
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
R KL BEEIxRE
Director Director

ZF EF
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

() As at 31 December 2023, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost of approximately
HK$2,668,000 (2022: HK$2,668,000). No
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

(i) The amount from a subsidiary of approximately
HK$500,733,000 (2022: HK$483,345,000) is
unsecured and interest-free. The directors of the
Company do not expect repayments from a
subsidiary within next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. An impairment loss of
HK$150,000,000 (2022: nil) was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

(iii) The amounts due from subsidiaries included loan
and interest of approximately HK$293,089,000
(2022: HK$293,089,000), in which a loan of
approximately HK$18,208,000 (2022:
HK$18,208,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong prime rate 1.25% (2022: 1.25%) and
repayable on demand and a loan of approximately
HK$274,881,000 (2022: HK$274,881,000) is
unsecured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong prime rate
plus 10% (2022: plus 10%) per annum and
repayable within one year as at the end of the
reporting date. The remaining amounts due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$310,834,000
(2022: HK$27,653,000) are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. An impairment loss of
HK$6,197,000 (2022: HK$33,000,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2023.

The amounts due to subsidiaries included loan and
interest of approximately HK$338,336,000 (2022:
HK$340,849,000) are unsecured, interest-bearing at
Hong Kong below prime rate 4.5% (2022: below
prime rate 4.5%) per annum and repayable on
demand. The remaining amounts due to subsidiaries
of approximately HK$405,720,000 (2022:
HK$5,683,000) are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

40. A1 ) 2 B %5k & (4)

0]

(i)

(iii)

RZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H ' ®
M8 A B 2 1% & 1% 492,668,000/
T (ZZT - — 4% 2,668,000/ )
ARG - BE-_TE-_=ZF+—
A=+ —HIEFEMERRREE
B(ZEZZF :8|) o

47500,733,0008 L (ZE ==
483,345,000/ 7T) 2 fE U WE N
AIRBEREERRAGE c AR
ERVTBHEHBA TBA#EiQEEE
BT —EAZRER BHE-ZT
—ZF+-AZ+—BLFEERE
2R E 8 A150,000,000/8 7T (=
T F ) o
49293,089,0008 L (ZE ==
293,089,000/ 7t) 2 EUW K B A
AREBE(BEEREAMNE) F - 4
18,208,000 T (=& = =
18,208,000 7T) 2 B 3 & & IK
W ZABELTREZRENEM.25E
ZE - ZF125B)ERAR
ZREEE - B HMN9274,881,000
B (ZZEZ =4 : 274,881,000
BULIZEREEER BB TR
BEAMNEMOE(ZE=__F
10E) 2 FFEEFTE - ARIREH
Kk —FARNEE - HHBY
310,834,000 T (ZE = =
27,653,000/ 7T) 2 FE U BT B A 7]
RBAEER  THEREREX
H¢1Ei% BE-_T-_=%+=-A
T+ —HLFECERBREBES
6,197,000 L (ZF = =
33,000,000/ 7T) °

49338,336,0008 L (ZE = —F :
340,849,000 70) 2 B B A
ARE (BEERRFE) AEEK
%ﬁ BEAETHEAFERBISE(Z
T oF xEBEEMNERASE) 2
FREFBERANERFEE H
#8 #49405,720,0000 T (ZE = =
% : 5,683,000 0) ZEMHE R
AIRIEAEER T EREARE
KEFEE -
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(iv) Movement in the Company's capital and reserves

40. A7) 2 B #5iR R & (4)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %8 BT8R RMisE

(iv) RRRIERRHEES

Capital  Convertible ~ Accumulated ~ Share option
Share capital reserve  bonds reserve losses reserve Total
Lk
k& BAGE EHRE ZitEE  BRERG @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TR TER ThEn ThEn
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%-f-H 1,753,934 123,758 1565 (1,155223) 4,604 728,638
Loss and total comprehensive CEFERZERYEE
expenses for the year - - - (278,721) - (278,721)
Recognition of equity-settled share  BEAMRA ST 2 BB AR i
option expense 53 - - - - 11,134 11,134
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~ RERTAREARMES
convertible bonds &t 644 - (144) - - 500
Issue of consideration shares BIRERR 13,863 - - - - 13,863
Issue of shares by placement REEMmETRR 36,000 = = = = 36,000
Transaction costs attibutable to issue - EEETETRA RS
of shares by placement AR (123) - - - - (123)
Release of deferred tax liabiifes on ~ AEEE A Ak ES
settlement or cancellation of MERELHEE G
convertible bonds - - (1421) - - (1.421)
Transfer of share option reserve upon  REFEXATERER
lapse of share options B - - - 4,650 (4,650) S
At 31 December 2023 R-8-=F
tZA=1-H 1,803,718 123,758 - (1429.299) 11,088 509,270
Convertible
Capital bonds ~ Accumulated  Share option
Share capital resenve fesene losses fesene Total
AR
e sl ErfEE 2R BRERR h
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thr Thn TR TR TR
At 1 January 2022 R-E--F-F-H 1,753,934 123,758 1,565 (994,621) 4739 889,375
Loss and total comprehensive EEERRAE
expenses for the year R a8 - - - (160,737) - (160,737)
Transfer of share option resenve upon R % M # &
lapse of share options BRERE = = - 135 (135 -
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZF
+ZA=+-R 1,753,934 123,758 1565 (1,155223) 1604 728638
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end

4. XRFR 2T EMBATAFE

RPEHIR  AEEZIEMBLRA

of each reporting period are set out below: FEHENOT
Paid up issued Proportion of voting
Place of  Class of shares registered ordinary Proportion of ownership interest power held by the  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation ~held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ifft HREET ADRf%
KELTER RIBY  FEROEH HERA KARFERERRRLH REELH TEXBRAELE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
E& 3 t2AZt-H
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECZE “%-CF ISR CECCF CEIZE CE°C
% % % % % %
VC Financial Group Limited BV Ordinary share ~ USS] 100%  100% N/A NA  100%  100% Investment holding in
ERREEARLT EBRRES LR %7 TER  TER Hong Kong
REEUZREER
VCBrokerage Limited ~ HongKong  Ordinary shares  HK$400,000,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of brokerage
ERESBRAT B EER 4000000008 TER  TEE and securiies margin
financing services in
Hong Kong
REERUALR
EHRECHERK
VC Futures Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares ~ HK$30,000,000 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Notes
ERAERRAA & Lk 0000008 FER  TER Hiita
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end

of each reporting period are set out below: (Continued)

41.

RARZEEWE 2 RAFE (H)

REBEMR  AEEZTEHNEBAR
HEENMT : ()

Paid up issued Proportion of voting
Place of  Class of shares registered ordinary Proportion of ownership interest power held by the  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ifft HREET A0
KEATER RIBY  FEROEH EERA KARFERRRRRLH REELH TERBRAELE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
Bk 3 t=AZt-H
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZCZE C3CCF CBISE C5CCF CECZE CRoC
% % % % % %
VC Capital Limited Hong Kang ~ Ordinary shares  HK$68,500,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of corporate
ERRERRAT i ERR 68,500,000/ T TER  TERE finance and advisory
senvices in Hong Kong
REERBLZRER
ERRH
VC Asset Management ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$42,100,000 N/A N/A NA - 100% N/A~ 100% Provision of asset
Limited (note b) ) Lk 4210000057 TEE TEB  TER TER management services
ERBEERARLA to clients in Hong
(Wits) Kong
REEWEFRH
EEEERE
VC Finance Limited Hong Kang ~ Ordinary shares  HK$1,000,000 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Moneylendingin
ERMBERAR B EER 1,000,000 70 TER  THER Hong Kong
REERE
VC Corporate Sevices ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares ~ HK$10,890,100 N/A NA - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
Limited £5 TER 10,890,100/ 7 TER  TEE senices in Hong Kong
ERNEREERAR REBRUNERY
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 4. ARF2EENWE A RAFE (F&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end NEREMR  NEE T TERER T
of each reporting period are set out below: (Continued) HESEIMNT : (&)
Paid up issued Proportion of voting
Place of  Class of shares registered ordinary Proportion of ownership interest power held by the  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation ~held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ifft HREET ADRf%
KEATER RIBY  FEROEH EERA KARFERRRRRLH REELH TEEBRAEHY
Directly Indirectly 31 December
B 3 t2AZt-H
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECZE C%CCF ISR CECCF CEISE C5°C
% % % % % %
VC Sevices Limited HongKong ~ Ordinery shares ~ HK$10,000 100%  100% N/A NA  100%  100% Provision of
ERREARAA B EAR 100007 TER  TER management senices
fo group companies
in Hong Kong
REEREEAT
REEERY
\VC Research Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary shares ~ HK$500,000 N/A NA  100%  100%  100%  100% Provision of research
ERRRARAA (i ERR 500,000/ ¢ TER  TEE senices in Hong Kong
REERUAERE
Easy Task Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary shares ~ US$1 N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding in
RERARE TRk 3 TER  TER Hong Kong
Century Race Investments BV Ordinary shares ~ US§1 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment holdingin
Limited AERRES L@k B3 TER  TER Hong Kang
REEUEREER
Experts Management Hong Kang ~ Ordinary shares  HK$3,190,000 N/A NA - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Provision of insurance
Limited EE TER 3,190,000/ 70 TER  TER broker in Hong Kong
REER{RR
feks
D8K Asset Management ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HKS1 100% 100% N/A N/A 100% 100% Investment holding in
(HK) Limited &4 £k 137 TER  TEE Hong Kong
EREEER(FR) REEUZRERR

ARAT
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 41. KRR 2 EEM B L AFE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end MNEREK  NEBTEHB AT
of each reporting period are set out below: (Continued) HESEIMT (&)
Paid up issued Proportion of voting
Place of  Class of shares registered ordinary Proportion of ownership interest power held by the  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary incorporation held share capital held by the Company Company place of operation
ifft HREET A0
KEATER RIBY  FEROEH EERA KARFERRRRRLH REELH TERBRAELE
Directly Indirectly 31 December
Bk 3 t=AZt-H
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZCZE C3CCF CBISE C5CCF CECZE CRoC
% % % % % %
FE(EEREER  Peoples  NA RMB12478,100 N/A NA~ 100%  100%  100%  100% Sales and marketing of
BRAT Republic of R ARED4BIO0T  FER  TEE digital assets
China UEEEHERER
hEAR
$HE
AITHEERRE  Peoples  N/A RMB11,974,745 N/A NA - 100%  100%  100%  100% Seles and marketing of
HHERAF Republic of 7 ARENOM4IST  FER TEB digtel assets
China SEREHERER
REAR
AR
VCIntemational st~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares  HK$9,200,000 N/A NA - 100% NA - 100% N/A  Provision of asset
Menagement Limted &% ERR 9,200,000/ 70 TER  TEE 0yl REE  management senices
(Note ¢) to clients in
ERARAEER Hong Kong
RRARWH) REERRPRIEEE

ERRE
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 41. ARFAZEEZMBARAFE (K)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at the end RERESHAR  FAEBZEEZNBAA

of each reporting period are set out below: (Continued) FHEHINOT - (&)

Note: Wi

(a) VC Futures Limited which was engaged in provision of (@ REARFRUPERMEANES
futures and options contracts dealing services in Hong BEsERNEARATE T ——
Kong, ceased its operation since July 2022 and became FrARKIILE LT ELYE .
inactive.

(b) VC Asset Management Limited was disposal of on 8 b) EREEEEARARNN-_T_=F
December 2023. +-ANBYHE-

(c) VC International Asset Management Limited was acquired © EREEEETBEERARAR-E
on 3 April 2023. —=Em A= UEE o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, ERINEARAEER 7%3?? BARE

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally EXENEECAEENBELAR - AR

affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. REERAR JEHEMMEL TZ 15

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion HLTRERANITE -

of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries are either inactive or

investment holding companies. A summary of these

subsidiaries are set out as follows:

Principal activities
TEXER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REER

Sales and marketing of digital assets

BBEEHEENERE

Principal place of business

TEREWR

Hong Kong
5

BVI
REBRUES
Cayman Islands
Heis

PRC

i

ARRF2EEWE A RAFE ()

el

!

EEETEES S )
7o HEHBAT
BE SRR EERA
WEHFIWT :

HE At

e

Bk o S
S
53d

=<

N o> S oo
==
S

NI

9
IS

70

oo

=
] N
o = M

eall
Z

Number of subsidiaries

CEp =N - 4=
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
12 14
10 11
3 2
3 3

28 30
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42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

As more fully explained in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 February 2024 and 13 March 2024, the
Company is desirous of carrying out certain transactions
including (i) placing of new shares under general mandate;
(i) acquisition of certain equity interest in a PRC natural gas
company by issuing consideration convertible bonds under
general mandate; and (iii) placing of convertible bonds

under specific mandate.

(i) Placing of new shares under general mandate
On 22 February 2024, the Company entered into
the share placing agreement with the placing agent
(the “Placing Agent") to procure not less than six
share placees to subscribe for up to 244,200,000
placing shares at the share placing price of HK$0.12
per placing share. Assuming all the placing shares
are successfully placed by the Placing Agent, the
maximum gross proceeds from the Share Placing will
be approximately HK$29.3 million. The maximum
net proceeds from the share placing will be
approximately HK$28.3 million which will be used
for general working capital including but not limited
to rental expenses, salary expenses and other office
overhead. As at the date hereof the share placing
had not yet completed. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the Company’'s announcements
dated 22 February 2024, 8 March 2024 and 5 April
2024.

2. HMEMEEE

B ARARBHA-_T _MFE_HA
“T+ZHAERZTE_NMFE=A+=HZA
HMELXEERE  ARRIBRETET
R BEOBE -—BREEREFTR
D ()EBRE - REEZETREA
BRREFMBERE-—BRARARZ
EFRE: RGNBEFREERS A
BRES -

() RE—REEREFRAG
RZZT-_NME_A=+=H AR
AERERE ((RERE]) T
RO ERZE - AMEKTLRA
AR 17 7 BE A2 B AR AL & IR 19 0.12/8
T2l OEEBRERZ
244,200,0000% fid & X 17 - R 3% Ac
EREXINEE2BEERD - K&
NEEELENMESRBLERS S
#)%29,300,000% 7t ° B 15 Fl & &
ERRBREEFERER BOR
28,300,000/ 7T - A AR —MK =
BES (BEABTRAES XM
A AREMBEARY) - BEXR
XEH - BROBEEHARTK - B H
ReZeF1E F2HARTBE®A
ZE-_NMF-A=-+=ZH - =%
ZMFE=ANBEZZ_MFMNA
FRZAM -
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42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(ii) Acquisition of 24% equity interest in a

natural gas company involving the issue of
consideration convertible bonds under
general mandate

On 22 February 2024, the Company, Astral Wealth
Limited (the “Purchaser”), being an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and 1t 5 & & &
A EBR AT (the "Vendor") entered into the
Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which
the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell to the
Purchaser, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to
purchase from the Vendor, 24% of the total equity
interest of JE{L AZMR AR A A (the "Target
Company”) at the consideration of HK$30,000,000
by the issue of the consideration convertible bond
(the “Consideration CB") by the Company to the
Vendor. The initial Consideration CB conversion price
shall be HK$0.12 per Consideration CB conversion
share. A maximum of 250,000,000 new shares to
be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
Consideration CB conversion rights. The Vendor
irrevocably guaranteed to the Purchaser and the
Company that based on its audited financial
statements, the net income after tax of the Target
Company for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 shall not be less than
HK$20,000,000 as the profit guarantee. As at the
date hereof, the acquisition had not yet completed.
For details of the transaction, please refer to the
Company’'s announcements dated 22 February
2024 and 13 March 2024.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_T-_=F+-A=1t—HLEFE

42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (continued) 42. REHEEE (F)
(i) REFIRERETRRES

(iii) Placing of convertible bonds under specific

mandate

On 22 February 2024, the Company entered into
the convertible bond placing agreement (the “CB
Placing Agreement”) with the placing agent to
procure not less than six (6) CB placees to
subscribe for the placing convertible bonds (the
“Placing CB") in the aggregate principal amount of
up to HK$84.0 million. Assuming all the Placing CB
are successfully placed by the placing agent, the
maximum gross proceeds from the CB placing will
be HK$84.0 million. The maximum net proceeds
from the CB placing will be approximately HK$81.4
million which will be used for (i) general working
capital including but not limited to rental expenses,
salary expenses and other office overhead of
approximately HK$11.4 million; (ii) brokerage
business of approximately HK$30.0 million; (iii)
repayment of liabilities of approximately HK$10.0
million; and (iv) potential investment in the future
when opportunities arise of approximately HK$30.0
million. As at the date hereof, the CB placing had
not yet completed. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the Company’'s announcements
dated 22 February 2024 and 13 March 2024.
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A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated

assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial

years is set out below.

AEEBEREAMBFRZEE
BEERAEREHIMT -

For the year ended 31 December

F B AR AR

BE+-A=t-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—8-=f -%-C —EZ-%  ZEZ%F  ZE-NE
Consolidated results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GRER TR AT FATL TET TAT
Revenue g 76,138 73,281 90,607 77,909 49210
(Loss) profit before tax BB Al (B 8) & A (293,597) (178,166) 17,668 (30,498) (93,960)
Income tax credit (expenses) FERER (AX) 5,399 74 (10,874) (1,823) 591
(Loss) profit for the year FE(B8) a7 (288,198) (178,092) 6,794 (32,321) (93,369)
Other comprehensive expenses for FEAMZEMY (6,243) (1,152) (6,344) (17,537) (160,030)
the year
Total comprehensive (expenses) income £E 2 (B%) WA (294,441) (179,244) 450 (49,858) (253,399)
for the year ok
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) S (518) 2F (84L)
Basic EX (12.05) (8.57) 081 (2.36) 7.59)
Diluted #E (12.05) (8.57) 081 (2.36) (7.59)
As at 31 December
BR+=A=t-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZE-=f -E-- —E--f CZZZZE  ZZ-hE
Consolidated assets and liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GREEREE TEL TAT FEL TAT T
Total assets BEE 569,152 808,901 999,065 929,259 849,105
Total liabilities gaf (55,870) (61,251) (72,171) (90,555) (63,242)
Total equity BEm 513,282 747,650 926,894 838,704 785,863
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